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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
[0 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

OR
[l TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-36410

Phibro Animal Health Corporation

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 13-1840497
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization)

Glenpointe Centre East, 3" Floor 07266((:-6d712
300 Frank W. Burr Boulevard, Suite 21 (Zip Code)

Teaneck, New Jersey
(Address of Principal Executive Offices;

(201) 329-7300

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) afhe Act:

Class A Common Stock, $0.0001 par value per sha NASDAQ Stock Market
(Title of each class) (Name of each exchange on which registered)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢iie Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a vikelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405afriBies Act. Yesl! Nol!

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieeg to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yesl] NolJ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ék) filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l@8ring the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegynt was required to file such reports), anché®) been subject to such filing requirements ferpidst 90 days.Yes[ ] No (!

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ésnitted electronically and posted on its corpovélb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be submitted
and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation $-23@.405 of this chapter) during the precedingnbths (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to submit and
post such files.) Yes[] NolJ

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (82®% of this chapter) is not contained herein, aitidhot be contained,
to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in défie proxy or information statements incorporabgdreference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or anpendment to this Form 10-K!

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantl&z@e accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&@se the definitions of
“large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” ataaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of thecBange Act.

Large accelerated fil¢ 0 Accelerated filel

Nor-accelerated file 0 Smaller reporting compar 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Brge Act). Yesl] NolJ

The registrant completed the initial public offeyiof its Class A common stock on April 16, 2014efidhwas no public market for the registrant's ClRRg®mmon stock or
Class B common stock as of December 31, 2013a8tdusiness day of the registrant’s most receotiypleted second fiscal quarter. The registranhbason-voting common stock.

As of September 9, 2014, there were 17,442,95%studrthe registrant’s Class A common stock, pare/$0.0001 per share, and 21,512,275 shares oégfisrant’s Class
B common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, ouistg.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:
Portions of the registrant’'s Proxy Statement fer2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be heldlovember 10, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as26&4 Proxy

Statement”) are incorporated herein by referend#air 111 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Symioxy statement will be filed with the SecuritiesleExchange Commission within
120 days of the registrant’s fiscal year ended A&014.
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Forward-Looking Statements.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardlimg statements that are subject to risks andrtaioges. All
statements other than statements of historicalioent fact included in this report are forwardkow statements. Forward-
looking statements discuss our current expectatodsprojections relating to our financial conditioesults of operations,
plans, objectives, future performance and busir¥ss.can identify forward-looking statements by fhet that they do not
relate strictly to historical or current facts. Bhestatements may include words such as “aim,'iciate,” “believe,”
“estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “outlook,” “potdial,” “project,” “projection,” “plan,” “intend,” “seek,” “believe,” “may,”
“could,” “would,” “will,” “should,” “can,” “can have,” “likely,” the negatives thereof and other wowrtsl terms of similar
meaning in connection with any discussion of th@rg or nature of future operating or financialfpemance or other events.
For example, all statements we make relating toestimated and projected earnings, revenues, @gisnditures, cash flon
growth rates and financial results, our plans avjdatives for future operations, growth or initie$, strategies, or the expec
outcome or impact of pending or threatened litmatre forward-looking statements. All forward-lauk statements are
subject to risks and uncertainties that may caotehresults to differ materially from those tha expected. Examples of
such risks and uncertainties include:

» restrictions on the use of antibacterials in +-producing animals may become mprevalent;
e amaterial portion of our sales and gross profisgenerated by antibacterials and orelated products

e competition in each of our markets from a numbdagge and small companies, some of which havetgrea
financial,research and developme“R&D") , production and otheresources than we hay

« the impact of current and future laws and regujattranges
e outbreaks of animal diseases could significanttiuce demand for our produc

» perceived adverse effects on human health linkéde@onsumption of food derived from animals thtilize
our products could cause a decline in the saléisoske products

» our ability to successfully implement several of etrategic initiatives
« our business may be negatively affected by weatheditions and the availability of naturesources

» the continuing trend toward consolidation of certaistomer groups as well as the emergence of largeg
groups;

» our ability to control costs and expens

e any unforeseen material loss or casus

e exposure relating to rising costs and reduced oustancome

»  competition deriving from advances in veterinarydmel practices and animal heatechnologies
* unanticipated safety or efficacy concer

e our dependence on suppliers having current regylafgprovals

e our raw materials are subject to price fluctuatiand their availability can be limite;

e natural and man-made disasters, including butimoteld to fire, snow and ice storms, flood, hailrticanes and
earthquakes

e terrorist attacks, particularly attacks on or withnarkets in which we operai

» our reliance on the continued operation of our nfiaturing facilities and application of our inteiteal
property;
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* adverse U.S. and international economic marketitiond, including currency fluctuation
. therisks of product liability claims, legal prockmegs and general litigation expens

. ourdependence on our Israeli and Brazilian opamat

. our substantial level of indebtedness and relagdx-service obligations

. restrictions imposed by covenants in our debt agess;

. therisk of work stoppages; a

. other factors as described“Risk Factor” in Item 1A. of this Annual Report cForm 1(-K.

While we believe that our assumptions are reasena@ caution that it is very difficult to preditie impact of
known factors, and it is impossible for us to aptite all factors that could affect our actual tessumportant factors that co.
cause actual results to differ materially from expectations, or cautionary statements, are disdlasder “Risk Factors” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations.” All forwdabking statements a
expressly qualified in their entirety by these tanary statements. You should evaluate all forwlaoking statements made in
this report in the context of these risks and uiadeties.

We caution you that the important factors referdrefgove may not contain all of the factors thatisngortant to
you. In addition, we cannot assure you that we regdllize the results or developments we expechiicipate or, even if
substantially realized, that they will result iretbonsequences we anticipate or affect us or aenatipns in the way we expe
The forward-looking statements included in thisortare made only as of the date hereof. We urkkeria obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking staént as a result of new information, future evemtstherwise, except as
otherwise required by law. If we do update one orerforward-looking statements, no inference shbelagnade that we will
make additional updates with respect to those lwrdbrward-looking statements.

Emerging Growth Company Status

We are an “emerging growth company,” as define8éntion 2(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (thec\Béies
Act”), as modified by the Jumpstart Our Busineswt8ps Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”). As such, we atigible to take
advantage of certain exemptions from various répgrequirements that are applicable to other putBimpanies that are not
“emerging growth companies.” These exemptions theuput are not limited to, (i) not being requiteccomply with the
auditor attestation requirements of Section 40£¢t®n 404") of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002aa®nded (the “Sarbanes-
Oxley Act”), (ii) reduced disclosure obligationgyerding executive compensation in our periodic respand proxy statements,
and (iii) exemptions from the requirements of hotga non-binding advisory vote on executive compgos and stockholder
approval of any golden parachute payments not pusly approved. We have taken , and plan to coatindake , advantage
of some or all of these exemptions. If we do cargito take advantage of any of these exemptionslon®t know if some
investors will find our Class A common stock lefisagtive as a result. If some investors find olas§ A common stock less
attractive, there may be a less active trading stdde our Class A common stock and our stock pmies be more volatile.
We have elected to forego the extended transitamiog for complying with new or revised accountsigndards that emerging
growth companies are permitted to take advantagesuant to Section 107 of the JOBS Act .

Pursuant to Section 102 of the JOBS Act, our 20b4yPStatement will provide reduced executive congagion
disclosure.

We could remain an emerging growth company foraufive years, or until the earliest of (a) the lday of the first
fiscal year in which our annual gross revenues ex&i billion, (b) the date that we become a “laageelerated filer” as
defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities Exchakgeof 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), mhimuld occur if the
market value of our Class A common stock that Id bg non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of tast business day of our
most recently completed second fiscal quartergpthe date on which we have issued more thanIfdrbin non-convertible
debt during the preceding three-year period.
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Market, Ranking and Other Industry Data

Unless otherwise indicated, information contairethis report concerning our industry and the miarkewhich we
operate, including our general expectations anketgnosition, market opportunity and market sharbased on information
from Vetnosis Limited (“Vetnosis”), a research ammhsulting firm specializing in global animal héed#tnd veterinary
medicine, and management estimates. Vetnosiseading provider of research products, commercfatination and analysis
of the global animal health sector. The informafiemm Vetnosis contained in this report was nopgred by Vetnosis on our
behalf. Management estimates are derived from glykdivailable information, our knowledge of our irstry and assumptions
based on such information and knowledge, which @liee to be reasonable. We believe these estirmeta®asonable as of
the date of this report, or if an earlier datepsdified, as of such earlier date. However, thiermation may prove to be
inaccurate because of the method by which we obdasiome of the data for our estimates or becaisefbrmation is subjec
to change and cannot always be verified due tddiom the availability and reliability of indepemdesources, the voluntary
nature of the data gathering process and othefaliimns and uncertainties inherent in any statissarvey of market shares. In
addition, purchasing patterns and consumer prefesecan and do change. As a result, you shoulevbeahat market share,
ranking and other similar data set forth in thjsa®, and estimates and beliefs based on suchmasanot be reliable.

Trademarks, Service Marks and Trade Names

The following trademarks and service marks useaifinout this report belong to, are licensed t@rerotherwise
used by us in our business: Staf%tc Eskalin ™ ; V-Max®; Terramycin®; Neo-Terramycin®; Neo-TM ™ ; TM-50®;
TM-100 ™ : Mecadox®; Nicarb ®; Boviprol ™ ; Bloat Guard® ; Aviax ®; Aviax Il ™ : Aviax Plus ™ ; Coxistac ™ ;
Posistac ™ ; Banmintl@; Cerditac ™ ; Cerdimix ™ ; Rumaté'?; OmniGen-AF® ; Animate ®; Procreatin 7®;
NutrafitoPlus™ ; Chromax®; Provia 6086 ™ ; SRI@; Safmannan®; Biosaf ® : AB20 ®; Lactrol ®; and TAbic ©.
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PART |
Iltem 1. Business

Overview

Phibro Animal Health Corporation is a leading gliotiaersified animal health and mineral nutritioonecpany. For
nearly 40 years we have been committed to provitegtock producers with value-based productssotdtions to help them
maintain and enhance the health and productivithef animals and meet the growing demand for ahprotein. Our sales,
marketing and technical support organization ofrapimately 225 employees sells more than 1,200ywrbpresentations in
over 65 countries to approximately 2,900 customfes.develop, manufacture and market products fooad range of food
animals including poultry, swine, beef and dairjtlesand aquaculture. Our products help preventiroband treat diseases,
enhance nutrition to help improve health and pentorce and contribute to balanced mineral nutrition.

Our products include:

* Animal health products such as antibacterialscantidials and vaccines, which help prevent andagan
infectious disease in livestock and therefore imprivod safety, and nutritional specialty produatkich aid the
continued health of livestock by enhancing nutnitto helpimprove health and performant

e Mineral nutrition products, which fortify the anil’'s diet and help maintain optimal hea

We have focused our efforts in regions where thprita of livestock production is consolidated ergje commercii
farms such as the United States, Brazil, ChinasRuMexico, Australia, Turkey, Israel, Canada Endope and we believe \
are well positioned to further accelerate our growith our established network of sales, markesing distribution
professionals in emerging markets in Latin Amer&sia Pacific, Europe and Africa.

In addition to animal health and mineral nutritiproducts, we manufacture and market specific irigresl for use in
the personal care, automotive, industrial chenaoal chemical catalyst industries.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context requitesrwise, references in this report to “we,” “8dus,” “the
Company,” “Phibro,” “PAHC” and similar expressioafer to Phibro Animal Health Corporation and itbsidiaries.

Initial Public Offering and Refinancing

On April 16, 2014, we completed the initial pubdiffering (“IPO”) of 14,657,200 shares of Class Aranon stock
(including the exercise of the underwriters’ ovoiaent option) at a price to the public of $15@) share. In connection
with the IPO, we issued and sold 8,333,333 shdr€ass A common stock and Mayflower Limited Parghgp
(“Mayflower”), a limited partnership that is managey 3i Investments plc and advised by 3i Corporgtand whose sole
limited partner is 3i Group plc, the ultimate pareompany of both 3i Investments plc and 3i Corfiora sold 6,323,867
shares of Class A common stock including 1,911 8G8es of Class A common stock pursuant to thecksesof the
underwriters’ over-allotment option.

As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10Bk| Co., LLC (“BFI"), an investment vehicle of tiRendheim
family, is our controlling stockholder and owns 212,275 shares of our Class B common stock, whicludes shares of our
Class B common stock issued pursuant to the autometrcise of a warrant on August 1, 2014. BFI 800% of our
outstanding Class B common stock, which represgmpsoximately 55.2% of our total outstanding equitgrests and 92.5%
of the combined voting power of all classes of autstanding common stock. Prior to the IPO, BFI edi70.1% of our total
outstanding equity interests. As of the date of fhmnual Report on Form 1KQ; Mayflower owns 2,785,753 shares of our C
A common stock. Mayflower owns approximately 16.686ur outstanding Class A common stock, whicheepnts
approximately 7.2% of our total outstanding eqiritgrests and 1.2% of the combined voting poweallaflasses of our
outstanding common stock. Prior to the IPO, May#owwned 29.9% of our total outstanding equityriesés.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Our Class A common stock trades on the NASDAQ Siakket (‘“NASDAQ") under the symbol “PAHC.” Our
Class B common stock is not listed or traded onsiagk exchange.

Concurrently with the IPO, Phibro, together withita@ of its subsidiaries acting as guarantorsgrext into a Credit
Agreement with Bank of America, N.A., as Adminisiva Agent, Collateral Agent and L/C Issuer andrel@nder from time to
time party thereto. Under the Credit Agreement,libeders agreed to extend credit to the Compatiyeriorm of (i) a Term B
loan in an aggregate principal amount equal to $2&dllion (the “Term B Loan”) and (ii) a revolvingredit facility in an
aggregate principal amount of $100.0 million (tfReVolving Credit Facility,” and together with thef B Loan, the “Credit
Facilities”). The Revolving Credit Facility was uagvn at closing and at June 30, 2014, and congaleter of credit facility.

Business Segments

We manage our business in three segments—AnimattHddineral Nutrition and Performance Products—readth
its own dedicated management and sales team, ffianeed focus and accountability. Net sales by setsnspecies and
regions were:

Segments Change Percentage of tota
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2014 /2012 2013 /201 2014 2013 2012
($in millions)
Animal Health $431 $38E $37E  $46 12% $10 3% 62% 59% 57%
Mineral Nutrition 20z 20z 2icC 1 @)% 7 (@)% 29% 31% 32%
Performance Produc 59 65 _ 68 6 (9)% 4) (6)% 9% 10% 11%
Total $69z $65¢ $654 $39 6% $(1) )%
Species Change Percentage of tota
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2014 /201 2013 /201z 2014 2013 2012
($in millions)
Poultry $284 $261 $25z $23 9% $9 4% 41% 40% 39%
Swine 9C 91 93 1) @1Q)% 2 @)% 13% 14% 14%
Dairy 12C 10z 104 18 18% 2 @)% 17% 16% 16%
Cattle 83 75 70 8 11% 5 7% 12% 11% 11%
other @ 115 124 138 (9) (7)% 11  (8)% 17% 19% 21%
Total $69z $65¢ $654 $39 6% $(Q 0%
Regions @ Change Percentage of tota
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2014 /201t 2013 /201z 2014 2013 2012
($in millions)
U.S. & Canad: $44E  $437 $434 $ 8 2% $3 1% 64% 67% 66%
Brazil and Latin Americi 92 73 70 18 26% 3 4% 13% 11% 11%
China & Asia Pacific 62 53 56 9 17% B G)% 9% 8% 9%
Israel & Othel 93 9C 94 3 3% 4 @) 13% 14% 14%
Total $69z $655 $654 $39 6% $1) ()%

(1) Other includes the Performance Products segmengnsli Nutrition sales to pet food and fertilizermagacturers and
sales to the ethanol indus

(2) Net Sales by region are based on country of de&tm

Certain amounts and percentages may reflect rogratijustment.
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Adjusted EBITDA by segment was:

Adjusted EBITDA Change Percentage of total®”

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2014/ 201¢ 2013 /2012 2014 2013 2012
($in millions)
Animal Health $10C $83 $70 $17 21% @ $13 18% 86% 85% 80%
Mineral Nutrition 12 12 13 0 (@)% 1) (7)% 10% 12% 15%
Performance Produc 5 3 5 2 58% 2 @3)% 4% 3% 6%
Corporate (260 (22 (22 (4) * (0) *
Total $91 $76 $67 $15 20% $9 13%
(1) Before unallocated corporate co
Net identifiable assets by segment we
Net Identifiable Assets Change Percentage of tota
As of June 3C 2014 2013 2012 2014/ 201¢ 2013 /201Z 2014 2013 2012
($in millions)

Animal Health $361 $32¢ $26¢ $32 10% $ 6C 23% 77% 69% 61%
Mineral Nutrition 58 65 63 7 (11)% 2 2% 12% 14% 14%
Performance Produc 23 21 23 2 10% ) (8)% 5% 4% 5%
Corporate 30 58 86 (29 (49)% 27 (1) 6% 12% 19%
Total $472 $474 3441 $(22  (0)% $ 33 8%

Certain amounts and percentages may reflect rogratijustments .

Animal Health

Our Animal Health business develops, manufactunesnaarkets more than 550 product presentationiidimy:

* antibacterials, which inhibit the growth of pathagebacteria that cause bacterial infections imeais;
anticoccidials, which inhibit the growth of cocadjparasites) that damage the intestinal trachiofials; and
related products (MFAand Other)

* nutritional specialty products, which enhance tiatnito help improve health and performance (Niatnil

Specialties); an

e vaccines, which cause an increase in antibodydeagdhinst a specific virus or bacterium, thus pniag
infection from that viral or bacterial antigen (\tates).

Our animal health products help our customers prigwentrol and treat diseases and enhance nattiidielp
improve health and performance, enabling our custerto more efficiently produce high-quality, wissene animal protein
products for human consumption. We develop, matufa@and market animal health product s for a braade of food
animals including poultry, swine, beef and dairftlezand aquaculture . We provide technical andlped support directly to
our customers to ensure the optimal use of ourymtsd The animal health industry and demand forynodrour animal health
products in a particular region are affected byndireg disease pressures and by weather condiisnssage of our products
follows varying weather patterns and seasons. #&esalt, we may experience regional and seasor@U#itions in our animal
health segment. Animal Health net sales by produmip and regions were:

For the Years Ended June 3(

MFAs and othe
Nutritional Specialtie:
Vaccines

Animal Health

Product Groups Change Percentage of tota
2014 2013 2012 2014 / 201 2013 /201Z 2014 2013 2012
($in millions)
$327 $304 $291 $23 8% $13 5% 76 % 79% 7%
63 52 48 11 21% 5 10% 15% 14% 13%
41 29 37 12 44% 8 (22)% 10% 7% 10%
ﬁ $38¢E g $46 12% $1C 3%
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Regions @ Change Percentage of tota
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2014/ 201z 2013/ 201z 2014 2013 2012
($in millions)

U.S. & Canad: $195 $184 $17z $11 6% $12 7% 45% 48% 46%
Brazil and Latin Americ:i 85 70 63 15 21% 7  11% 20% 18% 17%
China & Asia Pacific 62 53 56 9 17% B GB)% 14% 14% 15%
Israel & Othel 89 78 84 11 14% 6 (7)% 21% 20% 22%
Total $431 $38° $37E $46 12%  $1C 3%

(1) Net Sales by region are based on country of de&im

Certain amounts and percentages may reflect rogratijustments .

MFAs and Othe

Our MFAs and Other business primarily consistsafoentrated medicated products that are adminégstareugh
animal feeds, commonly referred to as Medicated! Patitives (“MFAs”). Our MFAs and Other businessnparily consists

of the production and sale of antibacterials (S:té?a Terramycin® , Neo-Terramycin® and Mecadox®) and anticoccidials

(nicarbazin, Aviax®, Aviax Plus ™ , Coxistac ™ , and amprolium). Grbwi this business primarily stems from increased

penetration into emerging markets. MFAs and Otlsr encludes antibacterial products used to coriteaiterial infections, as
well as other processing aids, for the ethanol étattion industry.

Approximately 60% of our MFAs and Other sales arthe poultry industry, with sales to swine, cattlairy and
other customers accounting for the remainder. Tmeipal regions we serve include the U.S. and @anBrazil and Latin
America, China and Asia Pacific, and Israel ananttvith the largest region (as measured by nesyalccounting for less
than half of total net sales.

Nutritional Specialtie:

Many of our proprietary nutritional specialty prats have been developed through basic researdopecation
with private research companies or by leading usities with whom we collaborate and then furthevelop through

commercial trials with customers. Our nutritionpésialty products include omniGen-AE, a unigue, patented nutritional

specialty product that has been shown in sevardlest to help maintain a cow’s healthy immune systnd Animate®, a
unique, patented anionic nutritional specialty pictdhat helps optimize the health and performaridhe transition dairy cow.
We sell OmniGen-AF in the U.S., Canada, Mexicaadsand Japan and have recently launched OmniGein-8éveral
European countries, Brazil and Australia. We aekisgg regulatory approval to sell OmniGen-AF in @&hiWe sell Animate in
the U.S., Canada and Mexico.

Our Nutritional Specialties sales are primarilyttie U.S. dairy market, with recent or planned estimto the dairy
markets of Europe, Brazil and Latin America, Ausarand China.

Vaccines

Our Vaccines products are primarily focused on enéing diseases in the poultry industry. We mathese products
in China, South East Asia, India, Turkey, East @edtral Europe, Africa, Brazil and other Latin Arican countries and Israel.

In late 2013, we entered into a manufacturing astlidution agreement with Epitopix which estabéidhus as the
exclusive distributor of Epitopix’s autogenous viaes for chickens in the United States, containieir proprietary SRP

technology. This partnership has provided us witletry into vaccine sales in the United Statebfoiler breeders and table
egg laying hens. Net sales for the year ended 3002014 , were $0.6 million and are expected ¢avgn future years.

In 2013, we registered a vaccine to combat a neainsdf infectious bronchitis that had only recgriken identified
to exist in Turkey. We were the first company tinggpproval for a vaccine which contained this némws strain, and as a
result of this registration and the additional vaes registered in Turkey we believe we are a teagrovider of poultry
vaccines in Turkey
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We have also developed TAbf, an innovative and proprietary delivery platforon ¥accines. TAbic is a patented
technology for formulation and delivery of vaccimetigens in effervescent tablets, packaged in dedieninum blister
packages. The technology replaces the glass btiiiésre in common use today, and offers signifieglvantages in a numt
of areas including storage requirements, custoraedling and disposal.

Mineral Nutrition

Our Mineral Nutrition business manufactures andketrmore than 450 formulations and concentratibrisace
minerals such as zinc, manganese, copper, iromiued compounds, with a focus on customers in Narterica. Our
customers use these products to fortify the daibdfrequirements of their livestock diets and na&inan optimal balance of
trace elements in each animal. We manufacture arllenmineral nutrition products for a broad ran§éod animal s
including poultry, swine and beef and dairy catdelume growth in the mineral nutrition sector rinparily driven by
livestock production numbers, while pricing is lalgbased on costs of the underlying commodity faeemand for our
mineral nutrition products can vary in differenasens of the year and due to extreme changes ith@rezonditions in a
particular region, both of which may cause anineadf consumption to fluctuate. As a result, we maegence regional and
seasonal fluctuations in our Mineral Nutrition segnh Our Mineral Nutrition business operates preidamtly in the United
States.

Performance Products

Our Performance Products business manufacturemarikts a number of specialty ingredients for nshé
personal care, automotive, industrial chemical ememical catalyst industries, predominantly in theted States.
Our Products

Animal Health

MFAs and Othe

The MFA business primarily consists of the produttnd sale of antibacterials (Stafac, Terramydan-
Terramycin and Mecadox) and anticoccidials (nicaifaAviax, Aviax Plus, Coxistac, amprolium).

Antibacterials and Anticoccidia

We manufacture and market a broad range of anébats and other medicated products to the glabestock
industry. These products provide therapeutic bengdi the animals and increased feed conversiiiciegfcy, which are
proven drivers of profitability for animal produseiThe table below presents our core MFA products:

Market Entry of
Brand Active Ingredient Active Ingredient Description

Terramycin ® /TM-50 ®/ TM-100™  Oxytetracycline 1951 Combination of two
antibacterials with multiple
applications for a wide
number of specie

Nicarb ® nicarbazin 1954 Anticoccidial for poultry

Amprolium amprolium 1960 Anticoccidial for poultry and
cattle

Bloat Guard® poloxalene 1967 Antil-bloat treatment for
cattle

Banminth ® pyrantel tartrate 1972 Anthelmintic for livestock
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Market Entry of

Brand Active Ingredient Active Ingredient Description

Mecadox ® carbadox 1972 Antibacterial for swine to
control salmonellosis and
dysentery

Stafac ® /Eskalin ™ /V-Max ® virginiamycin 1975 Antibacterial used to prevent
and control diseases in
poultry, swine and cattl

Coxistac ™ /Posistac ™ salinomycin 1979 Anticoccidial for poultry and
cattle; disease preventative
in swine

Rumatel ® morantel tartrate 1981 Anthelmintic for livestock

Cerditac™ /Cerdimix ™ oxibendazole 1982 Anthelmintic for livestock

Aviax ©/Aviax I| ™ semduramicin, 1995 Anticoccidial for poultry

Nec-Terramycin ® /Neo-TM ™ oxytetracycline + 1999 Antibacterial with multiple

neomycin applications for a wide

number of specie

Aviax Plus ™ semduramicin + 2010 Anticoccidial for poultry

nicarbazir

Antibacterials are biological products used indhénal health industry to treat or to prevent dissathereby
promoting more efficient livestock growth. Sevdiadtors contribute to limit the efficiency, weiglain and feed conversions
of livestock production, including stress, poorritign, environmental and management challengesd@sehse. Antibacterials
help prevent and treat disease in livestock wreeld$ to improved overall health of the animalsrande efficient feed
conversion. Our antibacterial products include:

»  Oxytetracycline and NeomyciTerramycin utilizes the active ingredient oxyaercline and Neo-Terramycin
combines the active ingredients neomycin and osadgtline to prevent and treat a wide range ofaties in
chickens, turkeys, cattle and swine. We sell Tey@mand/or Neo-Terramycin products primarily ire tinited
States, Latin America, Mexico and Asialivestock producers, feed companies and distrilsu

»  Virginiamycin. Virginiamycin is an antibacterial marketed unttex brand names Stafac to swine, cattle,
chickens and turkeys producers, Eskalin ™ to dairys and beef cattle producers and V-Mor beef cattle
producers. Virginiamycin is used to prevent necretiteritis in chickens, treat and control swinsefytery and
aid in the prevention of liver abscesses in ca@lar. experience in the development and productfon o
virginiamycin has enabled us to develop signifidatellectual property and know-how, which havepeel
protect against generics. We are the sole worldwideufacturer and seller of virginiamyc

»  Carbadox. We market carbadox under the brand name Mecaxtaxse in swine feeds to control swine
salmonellosis and swine dysentery and, as a résydtpve animal performance and control swine salefiosis
and swine dysentery. Mecadox is sold primarilyhie United States to feed companies and large aiedjiswine
producers

Anticoccidials are produced through fermentatiod enemical synthesis, and are primarily used togmeand
control the disease coccidiosis in poultry andleathereby promoting more efficient livestock gtbwCoccidiosis is a disease
of the digestive tract that has considerable healttsequences to livestock and, as a result,gseaft concern to livestock
producers. We sell our anticoccidials primarilyritegrated poultry producers and feed companiéoith America, Latin
America and Asia, and to international animal Heeimpanies. Our anticoccidial products include:

*  Nicarbazin. We produce and market nicarbazin under the tradeiticarb ® and as an active pharmaceutical
ingredient. Nicarbazin is a brc-spectrum anticoccidial used for coccidicprevention in chicken:
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*  Amprolium. We produce and market amprolium as an activenphegutical ingredient. We also have received
FDA approval to sell amprolium as Bovip™ 9.6% Oral Solution to cattland calves

. Salinomycin and SemduramiciiVe produce and market Coxistac, Aviax/Aviax Il/Rviax Plus and Posistac
™ “which are in a class of compounds known aspboees, to combat coccidiosis and increase feédefty
in poultry and swine. We market our salinomycin aathduramicin products in Asia, Latin America amel t
Middle East and have received Flapproval to sell Coxistac in the United Sta

Anthelmintics are used to treat infestations ofpdic intestinal worms. Our anthelmintic producislude Rumatel
® and Banminth® which are both marketed to control major interrethatode parasites in beef and dairy cattle andeswin

Bloat Guard® is an anti-bloat treatment used in cattle to cdritimat in animals grazing on legume or whpasture

Nutritional Specialtie:

Our primary nutritional specialty products haveratentified, developed and commercialized by daff ®f
nutritionists working with private research commmileading universities and customers with whontaliaborate. For those
of our nutritional specialty products that are paiprietary or exclusive to us, we typically maintanique supply agreements
or primary distributor status with the product depers giving us preferential access to trademaekstories and research
data. Our nutritional specialty products include:

Market

Brand Entry Description

AB20 ® 1989 Natural flow agent that improves overall feed quyadind effectivenes

Chromax ® 1992 Source of organic chromium used to optimize swirgglpction through reproductive
efficiency

Biosaf ® 1997 Heat stable live-cell yeast that optimize produtdficiency

Procreatin 7® 1997 Live-cell yeast product for ruminant nutrition

Animate ® 1999 Maintains proper blood calcium levels in dairy causing critical transition period

Safmannan® 2000 Yeast cell wall components that optimize productdiiciency

OmniGen-AE® 2004 Optimizes immune status in dairy cows

NutrafitoPlus™ 2011 Proprietary blend that enhances absorption anidattdn of nutrients for poultry,
swine, ruminant and aquatic fee

Provia 6086™ 2013 Direct fed microbial for all classes of livesto

AB20 ®is a natural flow agent that, when added to femgyoves the overall feed quality. The product is ofthe
most thoroughly researched in the broad flow agegment.

Chromax®, chromium tripicolinate, is a source of organicazhium used to optimize swine production and is
predominantly used in sows where it has been pravémprove reproductive efficiency and litter sigghromax can result in
significant return on investment for swine prodsdeecause of its low cost relative to other prodaotosts and the
reproductive and litter size improvements it proesot

Procreatin 7%is a branded live-cell yeast product specificadijested for ruminant nutrition. It is a single gtraf
saccharomyces cerevisidNA-verified yeast.

Animate is a unique patented anionic mineral suppl& that helps optimize the health and performafitiee
transition dairy cow and improves profitability fdairy producers.

OmniGenAF is a proprietary nutritional specialty producamufactured and marketed exclusively by us thableas
shown in various studies to help maintain a cowalthy immune system and improve their naturalgese to potential
environmental and health challenges.
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NutrafitoPlus ™ is a proprietary blend of saponiniserpenoids and polyphenols marketed exclusibgiys in the
U.S. and other countries that enhance the absarptid utilization of nutrients for poultry, swireminant and aquaculture
feeds.

Our other nutritional specialty products includewa 6086 ™ , a direct fed microbial, and Safmanftaand Biosaf
® yeast cell wall and protected live-cell yeast poments, respectively, that optimize productiomcefhcy.

Nutritional specialty products are marketed todieek producers by working through key influencstsh as anim
nutritionists and veterinarians.

Vaccines

We develop, manufacture and market vaccines priyriari poultry in China, South East Asia, India,rkey, East
and Central Europe, Africa, Brazil and other Laimerican countries and Israel. In addition, werdbistte certain autogenous
vaccines for chickens in the United States. We peedsaccines which protect animals from both \arad bacterial disease
challenges.

We have developed TAbic, a unique and proprietativery platform for vaccines. TAbic is a patentgdtform
technology for formulation and delivery of vaccsteains in effervescent tablets. This technologyiales superior
convenience to poultry producers by requiring Etssage space, less labor and increased dosiribifigxas compared to
traditional delivery technology using bottles. Sev@f our vaccine products are available in thiepted TAbic format.

The IB variant 1 and IB variant 2 vaccines arerimediate virulence live vaccine strains used ferghevention of
Infectious Bronchitis in poultry. Both vaccine strhave become significant tools in the increagiiodpal fight against
infectious bronchitis in regions throughout the ldomhese vaccine strains present us with an oppitytfor growth.

The M.B. strain of Gumboro vaccine is an intermtliarulence live vaccine strain used for the preisn of
Infectious Bursal Disease. The intermediate strain developed to provide protection against the fiedd epidemic virus,
which is more virulent than those previously endeced.

The V.H. strain of Newcastle disease vaccine iataggenic strain and is effective when applied énpsol, coarse
spray, drinking water or eye-drops. It has beem ssecessfully under various management and clic@tditions in many
breeds of poultry.

The autogenous vaccines for chickens produced &pitgpix’s proprietary SRP vaccine technology, ethive
distribute in the United States, are effectiveaducing Salmonella and E. coli bacteria levelsroilér breeders and table egg
laying hens. Salmonella and E. coli bacteria carsedood-borne illnesses and, consequently, avews fof food safety.

We also focus on innovation to produce new antigemsew presentations of antigens, and have degdlopw
vaccines, such as the recombinant VP2 and EDSnedeing sold as monovalent vaccines or in coatibins with other
antigens.

Mineral Nutrition

Our mineral nutrition products principally includepper, zinc, cobalt, iron, selenium, manganesgnesium, iodin
and molybdenum.

Our major mineral nutrition customers are regiarad national feed companies, distributors, co-ppamixers,
integrated swine, beef and poultry operations atdgnd companies. The majority of our customergehautrition staffs who
determine their own formulae for custom trace mahpremixes.

Trace minerals’ costs fluctuate with commodity nedskand therefore these products are price-semskheir sale
requires a focused effort on cost management,tguantrol, customer service, pricing and logisesgcution to be profitable.
Performance Product:

Our Performance Products business manufacturemariekts products for use in the personal care nantive,
industrial chemical and chemical catalyst industri&’e operate the business through our PhibroChetivision of PAHC),
Ferro Metal and Chemical Corporation Limited an@R¥-Tech, Inc. (“Phibrc-Tect”) business units
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Sales and Marketing

Our sales organization includes sales, marketinigte@chnical support employees. In markets wherdaovaot have a
direct commercial presence, we generally contraitt distributors that provide logistics and saled anarketing support for
our products. Together, our Animal Health and Mahétutrition businesses have a sales, marketingestthical support
organization of approximately 225 employees plyzaximately 180 distributors who market our poitiadf more than 1,000
product presentations to animal feed companiesitdisors and livestock producers in over 65 coestr

In direct sales markets, we sell our animal heattth mineral nutrition products through our locdésaffices, either
directly to integrated poultry, swine and cattleegrators or through commercial animal feed manufacs, wholesalers and
distributors. Our sales representatives visit aist@mers, including animal feed companies, distoilsiand livestock
producers, to inform, promote and sell our prodacid services. In direct service markets, our techoperations specialists
provide scientific consulting focused on diseaseagament and herd management, training and edoaatidiverse topics,
including responsible product use.

We sell our Performance Products through our Isabds offices to the personal care, automotiveystréal chemical
and chemical catalyst industries. We market thesdyzts predominately in the United States.

Customers

We have approximately 2,900 customers, of whiclr@pmately 2,500 customers are served by our Anideslth
and Mineral Nutrition businesses. We consider amd® set of livestock producers, including poudtngl pork operations and
beef and dairy farmers, to be the primary custoragaair livestock products. We sell our productdily to livestock and
aquaculture producers and to distributors thatslpi re-sell the products to livestock produc&¥e do not consider the
business to be dependent on a single customefear austomers, and we believe the loss of any astoomer would not have
a material adverse effect on our results. Our Ergestomer (a distributor) represented approxim&@ of our revenues for
fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. Our Performano@uets business has approximately 400 customers.

We typically sell pursuant to purchase orders foustomers and generally do not enter into long-wefivery
contracts.

Product Registrations, Patents and Trademarks

We own certain product registrations, patents gnz@imes and trademarks, and use khow; trade secrets, formu
and manufacturing techniques which assist in matimg the competitive positions of certain of ouogucts. We believe that
technology is an important component of our contipetiposition, and it is intended to provide ushwitw cost positions
enabling us to produce high quality products. Ratprotect some of our technology, but a signifigaortion of our
competitive advantage is based on know-how builbwgr many years of commercial operation whicthrggrted as
commercial secrets. To that end, we have more&dgratents or pending applications in more thanalhtries but we belie\
that no single patent or trademark is of matenglaortance to our business and, accordingly, treexpiration or termination
thereof would not materially affect our business.

We market our animal health products under hundoédsvernmental product registrations approvingwynaf our
products with respect to animal drug safety and&dfy. The use of many of our medicated productigrolled by regulatory
authorities that are specific to each country (¢hg FDA in the United States, Health Canada inada and EFSA/EMA in
Europe). Because they regulate the safety and whiieness of the human food supply, their respditgiivicludes feed
additives for animals from which human food produate derived. Each of our medicated productsjistered separately in
each country where it is sold. We continuously rrmmnimaintain and update the appropriate regisindiles pertaining to suc
regulations and approvals. In certain countriesre/ae work with a third party distributor, locabrdatory requirements may
require registration in the name of such distribués of June 30, 2014, we had over 500 produdstedions globally for our
MFA products, including more than 90 product regisbns for virginiamycin, and 280 product regititvas globally for our
vaccine products
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Additionally, many of our vaccine products are lthea proprietary master seeds and proprietary @mnped
adjuvant formulations. We actively seek to protaat proprietary information, including our tradessts and proprietary
know-how, including by seeking to require our enygles, consultants, advisors and partners to ertteconfidentiality
agreements and other arrangements upon the commentef their employment or engagement.

We seek to file and maintain trademarks aroundubritd based on commercial activities in most regiamere we
have, or desire to have, a business presencepfntiaular product or service. We currently maintaiore than 1,250
trademark applications and registrations globadlgntifying goods and services related to the oftevestock.

Our technology, brands and other intellectual priyp@re important elements of our business. We ealpatent,
trademark, copyright and trade secret laws, asagetion-disclosure agreements to protect our autelhl property rights. Our
policy is to vigorously protect, enforce and defenunl rights to our intellectual property, as appiaie.

Regulatory

Many of our animal health and mineral nutrition ¢wots require licensing by a governmental agendégrbe
marketing. To maintain compliance with these reuiiarequirements, we have established procesgstenss and dedicated
resources with end-to-end involvement from produactcept to launch and maintenance in the marketréyulatory function
seeks to engage in dialogue with various globaheigs regarding their policies that relate to athinglth products.

United States

In the United States, governmental oversight ofmahinutrition and health products is shared prilpday the United
States Department of Agriculture (“USDA”) and theSUFood and Drug Administration (“FDA”"). The UnitStates
Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) hasgdiction over certain products applied topicatlyahimals or to premises
to control external parasites and shares regul@toigdiction of ethanol manufactured in biofuelmogacturing facilities with
the FDA.

The USDA and the FDA are primarily responsibletfa safety and wholesomeness of the U.S. humansiopply.
The FDA regulates foods intended for human consiampind, through the Center for Veterinary Medigit@vM”),
regulates the manufacture and distribution of ahiinags that will be given to animals from whichnman foods are derived.
All manufacturers of animal health pharmaceuticalst show their products to be safe, effective @duced by a consistent
method of manufacture as defined under the Fe@fexa, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. To protect the fond drug supply for
animals, the FDA develops technical standardsrional drug safety and effectiveness and evaluats iecessary to support
approvals of veterinary drugs. Drug sponsors ajaired to file reports of certain product qualigfects and adverse events in
accordance with agency requirements.

The main regulatory body in the United States fetevinary pesticides is the EPA. The EPA’s Offi€®esticide
Programs is responsible for the regulation of petgiproducts applied to animals. All manufactugranimal health
pesticides must show their products will not cduseeasonable adverse effects to man or the envieot’ as stated in the
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide M4thin the United States, pesticide products tratapproved by the EPA
must also be approved by individual state pestiaig@orities before distribution in that state. tPaggproval monitoring of
products is required, with reports provided to B®A and some state regulatory agencies.

FDA approval of Type A/B/C Medicated Feed Artickasd drugs is based on satisfactory demonstraticafety,
efficacy, manufacturing quality standards and appate labelling. Efficacy requirements are basedh& desired label claim
and encompass all species for which label indicasalesired. Safety requirements include targmhainsafety and, in the ca
of food animals, human food safety (HFS). HFS negiencompass drug residue levels and the safehosé residue levels.
addition to the safety and efficacy requirementsafimal drugs used in food-producing animals, emrental safety must be
demonstrated. Depending on the compound, the emmgatal studies may be quite extensive and expenisivmany
instances, the regulatory hurdles for a drug whighbe used in food-producing animals are at lessstringent as if not more
so than those required for a drug used in hunr
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The Office of New Animal Drug Evaluation is respiloies for reviewing information submitted ldrug sponsors wt
wish to obtain approval to manufacture and selirahidrugs. A new animal drug is deemed unsafe artle=e is an approved
New Animal Drug Application“NADA"). Virtually all animal drugs are “new animalrugs”within the meaning of the term
the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. An appadodbbreviated New Animal Drug Application (“ANADA'Is a generic
equivalent of an NADA previously approved by theA:Both are administered by the FDA. The drug depeient process
for human therapeutics can be more involved thanhftr animal drugs. However, because human fofetysand
environmental safety are issues for food-produeinignals, the animal drug approval process for fpamttucing animals
typically takes longer than for non-food-producargmals, such as companion animals.

The FDA may deny an NADA or ANADA if applicable relgtory criteria are not satisfied, require additibtesting
or information, or require postarketing testing and surveillance to monitor thfety or efficacy of a product. There can be
assurances that FDA approval of any NADA or ANADAI e granted on a timely basis, or at all. Morenuf regulatory
approval of a product is granted, such approval emdgil limitations on the indicated uses for whicinay be marketed.
Finally, product approvals may be withdrawn if cdiapce with regulatory standards is not maintaiaed problems occur
following initial marketing. Among the conditionsrfNADA or ANADA approval is the requirement thaetprospective
manufacturer’s quality control and manufacturinggadures conform to FDA'’s current Good Manufaciyiftactice
(“cGMP”) regulations. A manufacturing facility ispodically inspected by the FDA for determinatmficompliance with
cGMP after an initial pregpproval inspection. Certain subsequent manufagwfianges must be approved by the FDA pri
implementation. In complying with standards settfan these regulations, manufacturers must coattotexpend time, moni
and effort in the area of production and qualitpteol to ensure compliance. The process of sedkib@y approvals can be
costly, time consuming, and subject to unanticipabed significant delays. There can be no assurtéatesuch approvals will
be granted on a timely basis, or at all. Any détegbtaining or any failure to obtain FDA or foraigovernment approvals, or
the suspension or revocation of such approvals|dvadversely affect our ability to introduce andrked our products and to
generate revenue.

The issue of the potential for increased bacteeisistance to certain antibiotics used in certagdfproducing
animals is the subject of discussions on a worlévidsis and, in certain instances, has led to gowent restrictions on the L
of antibiotics in these food-producing animals. Bhate of antibiotics is a material portion of ousslmess. Legislative bills are
introduced in the U.S. Congress from time to tintech, if adopted, could have an adverse effectwrbasiness. One of these
initiatives is a proposed bill called the Presanrabf Antibiotics for Medical Treatment Act, whidtas been introduced in
every Congress since the mid 2000’s. To date, bilishhave not had sufficient support to become. I8ould statutory,
regulatory or other developments result in restnict on the sale of our products, it could haveagenial adverse impact on ¢
financial position, results of operations and cimls.

In November 2004, the CVM released a draft for cantof its risk assessment of streptogramin resistéor
treatment of certain infections in humans attribigao the use of streptogramins in animals (thek‘assessment”). The risk
assessment was initiated after approval of a husnagn called Synercid (quinupristin/dalfopristiny toeating vancomycin
resistant Enterococcus faecium (VRE), which lethtyeased attention regarding the use of streptogns in animals.
Synercid and virginiamycin are both members ofdneptogramin class of antimicrobial drugs. Thi& assessment was una
to produce any firm conclusions as to whether, &rah, how much, the use of virginiamycin in foadimals contributes to tt
occurrence of streptogramin-resistant infectionsumans via a foodborne pathway.

The stated concern underlying the status of viegimicin as a “medically important antimicrobial” (1) on the
CVM'’s Guidance for Industry (“GFI1") 152 list, a giance document for evaluating the microbial saéégntimicrobial new
animal drugs on food for human consumption, wagttential impact on use of Synercid for treatifgBf in humans. In
2010, the U.S. label for Synercid was changed hed/REf indication was removed. The FDA determitiet data submitted
by the sponsor of Synercid failed to verify clifibanefit of the product for the treatment VREfdafions in humans. In
September 2011, we requested that FDA remove thptsgramin class of antimicrobials from GFI 152dflect that they are
not“medically importar” for human therapy. In March 2012, the FDA declioed
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request, citing primarily the need to engage akesholders on any possible changes to GFI 152 ghrthe processes
mandated by the FDA'’s good guidance practicesudinb issuing guidance revisions in draft and givine public an
opportunity to comment. There can be no assurdratehe FDA will in the future agree with our vighat removal of the
VRE( indication for Synercid requires the FDA tomeve virginiamycin from the GFI 152 list.

In April 2012, the CVM released its GFI 209 (“Thedicious Use of Medically Important Antimicrobiarims in
Food-Producing Animals”). In December 2013, the Cx#lkased the final version of GFI 213 (“New Aninbaligs and New
Animal Drug Combination Products Administered inoorMedicated Feed or Drinking Water of Food-Pradgdnimals:
Recommendations for Drug Sponsors for Voluntariligding Product Use Conditions with GFI #209"), atheé proposed
language relating to amending the current Veteyifr@ed Directive (“VFD”) regulations. The two Guidz documents and
the proposed revised VFD language are all reletatite use of MIAs in the feed or drinking wateffabd-producing animals.
The two key principles of GFI 209 are that MIAs sltbbe limited to those uses that are consideredssary for assuring
animal health, namely for the prevention, contaold/or treatment of disease and that MIA use infp@ducing animals
should include veterinary oversight/consultatiofl @13 outlines CVM’s proposal with respect to reting production claims
for MIAs as well as the path a sponsor may takenéw claims. These Guidance documents are notydgatling, but they di
reflect the FDA'’s current thinking. These GFls pdevan opportunity for sponsors to seek to ameondymt claims to more
accurately reflect the health function of antimlued products; however, there can be no assurdratéfta sponsor presents a
specific proposal to pursue such changes the FDlfagiiee with that proposal or, even if the FDA siagree, that the
execution of the work and the subsequent submigeitime FDA will successfully achieve the desirabldl amendments.

The proposed revision to the current VFD languaggedbes changes to the control of use of antirbiaf@roducts
and certain other drugs for use in animal feedr&hily in the United States, many approved antiaticl products may be
obtained and used without formal veterinary auttagion. If the proposed VFD language is adopteféctfd antimicrobial
products could only be used if authorized by anedgian in accordance with the VFD. The currerg agour antimicrobial
products in the U.S. typically, but not always,atwes veterinary oversight. However, the proposé&®Vanguage could
impose additional costs on some producers thatdismpurage them from using our antimicrobial pradu€he FDA has
indicated it expects to complete the amendmerit¢d/A=D language by the end of 2016. The FDA haig#ted that, provided
it completes the VFD amendments within the propdsedline, it would like sponsors to complete thieqess for label
changes relating to the new GFI 213 within thregryethat is, late 2016.

In the United States, the antibacterial producthiwiour poultry business, our largest busineghimregion, as well
as our cattle business, have both approved theiapewd non-therapeutic indications. We believesdobon current producer
usage patterns, that the large majority of usauofpooducts in these segments is for therapeutiggzes. We currently
generate a portion of our revenues from antibaatproducts sold for use in turkeys and swine elthnited States where we
do not currently have therapeutic claims that matohcustomers’ usage patterns. We intend to eritbateur antibacterial
product offerings are in full alignment with the AB guidance documents within the FDA'’s thrgear implementation perio
and will pursue both new and additional therapetiiams for these products under the process peoMiny the FDA. Howeve
there can be no assurance that we will be sucdasgibtaining such claims. While it is difficuld tpredict exactly what impact
the removal of non-therapeutic claims for our priduahat are medically important antibacteriald wiimately have on our
sales, we estimate that, had we voluntarily dectdesithdraw all of our non-therapeutic claims e tUnited States, and did
not add any new therapeutic claims, for our fisesr ended June 30, 2014, our MFA & Other net satedd have been
reduced by approximately $15 to $20 million.

Our carbadox product has been approved for usgoith &nimals for over 40 years. In 1998, followingudmission
by the drug sponsor, the FDA conducted an evalnaticarbadox and found that it was safe baseth@ttS. “sensitivity of
the method” policy. Accordingly, the FDA continumspermit the approved use of carbadox. In Jund 20& FDA issued a
letter to us requiring us to submit informatiorergnt to the safety evaluation of carbadox. We Iparécipated in a number
meetings with the CVM to discuss the approved diors of use of carbadox in the United States afutess the
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CVM'’s concerns that certain residues may persisisgues for longer than previously determined.sEhdiscussions are
ongoing, and we have indicated our willingness tokwith the FDA and undertake further scientifiadies if necessary to
support the safe use of carbadox. There can beswance that the FDA will not seek some othersmof action which coul
result in restriction of sales, or even a total barthe use, of carbadox in the United Statesatrttie results of any additional
work we undertake will successfully support thetocared market approval of carbadox.

In October of 2012, the FDA conducted a cGMP aofiitarious quality documents and records at oung&elr, NJ
headquarters. At the conclusion of the audit, thé kssued inspectional observations (Form 483)tiredeto various analytical
test results and practices, expiration dating apdnting requirements regarding specification nonfearmance for one of our
product formulations of virginiamycin (Stafac 20he procedures used to generate information aradidatur records were
consistent with our documented Standard Operatingeures. We responded to the inspectional olbis@ngan writing in
December 2012. In May 2013, the FDA sent us arletticating they were seeking further explanatiowl corrective actions
regarding the issues raised in the inspectionambsions. We provided responses in July and Aug@$8 outlining changes
and providing additional information to address B¥A requests. In December 2013, the FDA replieduoresponse, noting
some changes and proposed refinements to the deteiseng procedures for our product, indicatirat ihwould be beneficial
for us to engage a third party consultant with cG&4Pertise, and indicating that our updated procegjilamong additional
cGMP requirements, would be reviewed at the FDA&stinspection. While we believe we have taken appate actions to
address our cGMP program, and are working to imptarthe FDA'’s remaining recommendations promptigré can be no
assurance that the FDA will concur. Failure to chmyth cGMP standards could have a financially eni@ impact on our
business.

In July 2008 and May 2010, the FDA conducted ingpas of our Guarulhos, Brazil manufacturing fagiliThe
FDA issued inspectional observations (Form 483raftich inspection, citing observations made veitipect to operational
procedures and processes. We worked to addresssthes cited in the inspectional observations. pnl&2012, the FDA
conducted a cGMP inspection of the same facilitye Thspection resulted in no adverse observatieimglreported and no
inspectional observations (Form 483) were issubé. ADA issued a finalized Establishment Inspecieport (EIR)
confirming acceptable cGMP compliance in Septen2iods3.

Following an August 2009 plant inspection at adhgarty supplier's plant in Canada, the FDA issimspectional
observations (Form 483) citing observations madh véspect to the operational procedures and akloich they required
further comment, explanation or changes. In Oct@04r, the FDA issued a satisfactory EIR relateithéosame site indicatir
they had no further comment or questions.

European Unior

European Union (“E.U.”) legislation requires thaterinary medicinal products must have a markedirttorization
before they are placed on the market in the Eumopidaon. A veterinary medicinal product must mestain quality, safety,
efficacy and environmental criteria to receive akating authorization. The European Medicines Agefand its main
veterinary scientific committee, the Committee Kbedicinal Products for Veterinary Use) and the ovaai authorities in the
various E.U. Member States, are responsible forimidtaring this regime.

A separate E.U. regime applies to feed additiigsrdvides for a reegistration process for existing additives and
process is still ongoing. For certain types of &dés the authorizations are not generic in natsoethat they can be relied
upon by any operator) but are limited to the conyghat obtained the marketing authorization. Theylaown as Brand
Specific Approvals (“BSAs”). The system is simitarthe U.S. system, where regulatory approvaliigHe formulated product
or “brand.”

The European Food Safety Authority (EFSA) is resjlme for the E.U. risk assessment regarding foutifaed
safety. In close collaboration with national autties and in open consultation with its stakehadd&FSA provides
independent scientific advice and communicatiomxisting and emerging risks. EFSA may issue adegarding the process
of adopting or revising European legislat
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on food or feed safety, deciding whether to appregrilated substances such as pesticides and dliti/as, or, developing
new regulatory frameworks and policies for instaimcthe field of nutrition. EFSA aims to providepappriate, consistent,
accurate and timely communications on food safetyes to all stakeholders and the public at ldrgsed on the Authority’s
risk assessments and scientific expertise. Onleeokey topics for the moment is containment ofraittiobial resistance.

A number of manufacturers, including us, submitiedsiers in order to re-register various anticaatsdor the
purpose of obtaining regulatory approval from thedpean Commission. The BS@ér our nicarbazin product was publishet
October 2010. We sell nicarbazin under our own B®4 as an active ingredient for another markefgdsluct which has
obtained a BSA and is sold in the European Uniemil&ly, a BSA for our semduramicin product, Aviaxas published in
2006 and will require reauthorization in Octobe26f16. We intend to submit a dossier for reautladidn in accordance with
the requirements of the EFSA. There can be no gtegahat the submission will be reviewed favoraislyn a timely manner.
Failure to gain reauthorization in a timely manceuld have an adverse financial impact on our lassin

Brazil

The Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock Productiom@ Supply (“MAPA”), is the regulatory body in Brathat is
responsible for the regulation and control of prezauticals, biologicals and medicinal feed addétif@r animal use. MAPA's
regulatory activities are conducted through ther&acy of Agricultural Defense and its Livestoclo&ucts Inspection
Department. These activities include the inspeciot licensing of both manufacturing and commemesahblishments for
veterinary products, as well as the submissiorigveand approval of pharmaceuticals, biologicald aredicinal feed
additives.

Rest of worlc

We are also subject to regulatory requirements igning investigation, clinical trials and marketiagproval for
animal drugs in many other countries in which owduocts are sold. The regulatory approval procedsides similar risks to
those associated with FDA and European Commisgproaal set forth above.

Global policy and guidance

Country-specific regulatory laws have provisionattimclude requirements for certain labeling, safefficacy and
manufacturers’ quality procedures (to assure tmsistency of the products), as well as companyrdscand reports. With the
exception of Australia, Canada, Japan and New Bdalaost other countries’ regulatory agencies géterally refer to the
FDA, USDA, European Union and other internatiomahzal health entities, including the World Orgartiaa for Animal
Health, Codex Alimentarius Commission, the recogdiinternational standard-setting body for foodgt€x”), in establishing
their own standards and regulations for veteriqdrgrmaceuticals and vaccines.

The Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Addisive an international expert scientific committeattis
administered jointly by the Food and Agricultureg@nization of the United Nations and the World le&rganization. It
provides risk assessments and safety evaluatioresiofues of veterinary drugs in animal producteels as exposure and
residue definition and maximum residue limit progegor veterinary drugs in traded food commoditiEsese internationally
published references may also be used by natiaiabaties when setting domestic standards. We wott the national
authorities to establish acceptable safe levetssifiual product in food-producing animals afteatment. This in turn enables
the calculation of appropriate withdrawal times éor products prior to an animal entering the fobdin.

In July 2014, the Codex adopted risk managemerntadanguage for a number of compounds includingadox.
The advice language states “authorities shouldgresesidues of carbadox in food. This can be aptished by not using
carbadox in food producing animals.” The adviceylaage is to provide advice only and is not bindingndividual national
authorities, and almost all national authoritieeatly have long-established regulatory standamsaidadox, including
prohibiting the use of carbadox in swine productiathin their territory, prohibiting the importatioof pork from swine that
are fed
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carbadox, or permitting the importation of porkrfrewine that are fed carbadox provided there idetection of carbadox
residues in the meat. The advice language may f&dered by national authorities in making futlis& management
determinations. To the extent additional nationdharities elect to follow the advice and prohibi¢ use of carbadox in food-
producing animals and/or the importation of podairswine that are fed carbadox, such decisiongldmate an adverse effect
on our sales of carbadox in those countries opumntries that produce meat for export to those t@s

Advertising and promotion revie

Promotion of ethical animal health products is colied by regulations in many countries. Theseggenerally
restrict advertising and promotion to those appdoslaims and uses that have been reviewed and sadlby the applicable
agency. We conduct a review of promotion matenakcbmpliance with the local and regional requirateén the markets
where we sell animal health products.

Food Safety Inspection Service/Generally RecogrmzeHafe

The FDA is authorized to determine the safety dssances (including “generally recognized as séfeRAS")
substances, and food and feed additives), as w@ltescribing safe conditions of use. The FDA, Witias the responsibility
for determining the safety of substances, togetlittrthe Food Safety and Inspection Service , thoel fsafety branch within
the USDA, maintain the authority in the United 8tato determine that new substances and new ugesvidusly approved
substances are suitable for use in meat, milk andtry products.

In 2008, the FDA announced that the agency reqdimedal review of all additives used in the prodaitof ethanol

including our Lactrol® product (formulated virginiamycin), where the caguctsmay be used for animal feed. Virginiamy
has been certified GRAS as a processing aid imethmoduction and as related to the use of thealtieg distiller’s co-

products for animal feed. We believe that this debeation satisfies the FDA requirement. Howevkere can be no assurance
we will be successful in maintaining market acdes®ur Lactrol product or other ethanol productaiditives that we sell.

Competition

We are engaged in highly competitive industries, avith respect to all of our major products, facenetition from
a substantial number of global and regional congrsti Some competitors have greater financial, Rgduction and other
resources than we have. Our competitive positidraged principally on our product registrationstomer service and
support, breadth of product line, product qualiygnufacturing technology, facility location, anadguct prices. We face
competition in every market in which we participé@®me of our principal competitors include Bay&,ACeva Santé
Animale, Boehringer Ingelheim International GMBHj Elly and Company (Elanco Animal Health), Huvegsima Inc.,
Lallemand Inc., Merck & Co., Inc. (Merck Animal H#mand MSD Animal Health), Novartis AG, Pennfi&rporation,
Sanofi (Merial), Southeastern Minerals, Inc., Viland Zoetis Inc. Many of our products face contjpetifrom products that
may be used as an alternative or substitute.

There continues to be consolidation in the aninealth market, which could strengthen our compeit@ur
competitors can be expected to continue to imptbeealesign and performance of their products anittoduce new products
with competitive price and performance charactiessiThere can be no assurance that we will haffieismt resources to
maintain our current competitive position, howewee, believe the following strengths create sustdmaompetitive
advantages that will enable us to continue our gr@ag a leader in our industry:

Products Aligned with Need for Increased ProteindRrction

Increased scarcity of natural resources is incngasie need for efficient production of food anisalich as poultry,
swine and cattle. Our key animal health produciduding our MFAs, vaccines and nutritional spdgiproducts, help prevent
and manage disease outbreaks and enhance nutiti@hp support natural defenses against dise@bese products are often
critical to our customers’ efficient production leéalthy animals. Our leading product franchisefegf®-Max/Eskalin, is
approved in over 30 countries for use in poultrg awine and is regarded as one of the leading Mie8lycts for livestock.
Similarly, our nutritional product offerings likerniGer-AF are used increasingly in the global dairy indys
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Global Presence with Existing Infrastructure in Kidigh-Growth Markets

We have an established direct presence in manyrtaqgeemerging markets, and we believe we aredetda many
of the emerging markets in which we operate. Oustiexg operations in 14 countries and establistadelss marketing and
distribution network in over 65 countries, provigewith opportunities to take advantage of glolalgh opportunities.
Outside of the United States, our global footprggches to key high growth regions (countries whtegdivestock production
growth rate is expected to be higher than the aeegaowth rate) including Brazil and other courgtiire South America, Chin
India and Asia Pacific, Russia and former CIS coast Mexico, Turkey, Australia, Canada and SoufiticA and other
countries in Africa. Our operations in countriesside of the United States contributed approxinya®&@ of our revenues for
the year ended June 30, 2014.

Leading Positions in High Growth S-sectors of the Animal Health Market

We are a global leader in the development, manufagtnd commercialization of MFA products for timénaal
health market, a sector that, according to Vetndsisrojected to grow at a compound annual raggppfoximately 5.3%
between 2012 and 2017. Measured by revenues, wetheBrd largest business in the MFA sector ir220ie believe we are
well positioned in the fastest growing food anirspécies segments of the animal health market vgtiifeant presence in
poultry and swine, which are projected by Vetnésigrow globally at compound annual rates betwe?2and 2017 of 6.2%
and 6.6%, respectively.

Diversified and Complementary Product Portfoliom@trong Brand Name Recogniti

We market products across the three largest lickstpecies (poultry, cattle and swine) and aquacitind in the
major product categories (MFAs, vaccines and notdt specialty products). We believe our diversitgpecies and product
categories enhances our sales mix and lowers teg sancentration risk. The complementary natureuofAnimal Health and
Mineral Nutrition portfolio provides us with uniquweoss-selling opportunities that can be used o aecess to new customers
or deepen our relationships with existing customfs believe we have strong brand name recogriidinthe Phibro name
and for many of our animal health and mineral tiomiproducts and we believe Phibro Vaccines ategrized as an industry
standard in efficacy against highly virulent diseaballenges. Our diverse portfolio of producte @lfows us to address the
distinct growing conditions of livestock in differeregions.

Experienced Sales Force and Technical Support $t#ffStrong, Consultative Customer Relations|

Within our Animal Health and Mineral Nutrition segmts, utilizing both our sales, marketing and tézddrsupport
organization of approximately 225 employees andbaddistribution network, we market our portfatibmore than 1,000
product presentations to livestock producers ameriverians in over 65 countries. We interact vetistomers at both their
corporate and operating level, which we believevedl us to develop an in-depth understanding of tieeds. Our technical
support and research personnel are also impontenitilsutors to our overall sales effort. We hauetal of approximately 100
technical, field service and quality control/quakissurance personnel throughout the world. Thesfegsionals interface
directly with our key customers to provide pradt®alutions to derive optimum benefits from our guots.

Experienced, Committed Employees and Management

We have a diverse and highly skilled team of anineallth professionals, including technical anddfigrvice
personnel located in key countries throughout thddv These individuals have extensive field exgece and are vital to
helping us maintain and grow our business. Oud fiehm consists of more than 180 people, a sulataottion of whom hav
more than 20 years of experience in the animakiéadustry and many of whom have been with usifore than 10 years.

We have a strong management team with a provek tegord of success at both the corporate and tipgravels.
The executive management team has diverse backig@nu an average of approximately 17 years ofreque in the animi
health industry
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Employees

As of August 31, 2014, we had more than 1,100 epgas. Employees at our Guarulhos, Brazil faciliey @overed
by a multi-employer regional industry-specific umi@ur Israeli operations operate under the terithsrael’s national
collective bargaining agreement. Certain of ouaéfiremployees are covered by collective bargaiagr@ements. Certain
employees are covered by individual employmentemgents. We believe our relations with union and-anoion employees
are good.

Manufacturing

The Animal Health business segment manufacturey maoducts internally and supplements that produactvith
contract manufacturing organizations (“CMO s ")n&gessary.

We manufacture active pharmaceutical ingredientsdatain of our antibacterial and anticoccididated products ¢
our facilities in Guarulhos, Brazil (virginiamycand semduramicin) and Braganca Paulista, Brazibthazin). We
manufacture active pharmaceutical ingredients thazn and amprolium) at our facility in Naot Hovdermerly Ramat
Hovav), Israel. We produce vaccines at our facititeit Shemesh, Israel. We produce pharmaceastid&infectants and
other animal health products at our facility indét Tikva, Israel. We produce certain of our majatritional specialty and
mineral nutrition products at our facility in Quindllinois, and we produce certain of our minematrition products at our
facility in Omaha, Nebraska.

We supplement internal manufacturing and produatepabilities with CMOs . We purchase active phaenéical
ingredients for other medicated products from CM©OEhina, India and other locations. We then forateithe final dosage
form in our facilities and in contract facilitiesdated in the United States, Brazil, Canada, Mexiestralia, China and Israel.

We purchase certain raw materials necessary fardhemercial production of our products from a vigrief third-
party suppliers. Such raw materials are generatyl@ble from multiple sources, are purchased weidé and are normally
available in quantities adequate to meet the netthe Company’s business.

Additionally, we are joint investors in a fermemat facility in Hannibal, Missouri.

We believe that our existing sites, as supplemelnyedMOs, are adequate for our current requiremamdsfor our
operations in the foreseeable future.

Research and Development

Most of our manufacturing facilities have chemistsl technicians on staff involved in product depeient, quality
assurance, quality control and providing technseaiices to customers. Research, development aehdital service efforts
are conducted by our veterinarians (DVMs) and tiatrists at various facilities.

We operate Animal Health R&D at our facilities {i): Guarulhos, Brazil; (ii) Beit Shemesh, Israéil) (Naot Hovav
(formerly Ramat Hovav), Israel; (iv) Quincy, lllirg (v) Corvallis, Oregon; (vi) Manhattan, Kansasgd (vii) St. Paul,
Minnesota.

These facilities provide R&D services relating fermentation development and micro-biological sirai
improvement; vaccine development; chemical synthasd formulation development; nutritional spegialtoduct
development; and ethanol-related products.

O ur R&D expenses were $8.2 million, $6.6 milliand$7.2 million for fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 201
respectively.

Environmental, Health and Safety

Our operations and properties are subject to Enmiental Laws (as defined below) and regulations.héte
incurred, and will continue to incur, expensesttaia and maintain compliance with EnvironmentaisaWhile we believe
that our operations are currently in material coemle with Environmental Laws, we have, from tirodiine, received notices
of violation from governmentz
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authorities, and have been involved in civil omanal action for such violations, including for adeleases or wastewater
discharges in Guarulhos, Brazil and Naot Hovawn(eny Ramat Hovav), Israel. In May 2013, the partievolved in the
wastewater discharge violation at the Naot Hovailifa in Israel reached a final settlement resotyall outstanding charges
with no significant effect on the Company or anytsfemployees. Additionally, at various sites, subsidiaries are engagec
continuing investigation, remediation and/or morniitg to address contamination associated with ticstboperations. We
maintain accruals for costs and liabilities assedavith Environmental Laws, which we currentlyibeé are adequate. In
many instances, it is difficult to predict the nitite costs under Environmental Laws and the timegeuring which such
costs are likely to be incurred.

Governmental authorities have the power to enfoceepliance with their regulations. Violators of Eionmental
Laws may be subject to civil, criminal and admirdsive penalties, injunctions or both. Failure éanply with Environmental
Laws may result in the temporary or permanent susipe of operations and/or permits, limitationsppaduction, or increased
operating costs. In addition, private plaintiffsymaitiate lawsuits for personal injury, propertgrdage, diminution in property
value or other relief as a result of our operatids/ironmental Laws, and the interpretation ooecément thereof, are subj
to change and may become more stringent in thefupotentially resulting in substantial future tsosr capital or operating
expenses. We devote considerable resources to gmgmith Environmental Laws and managing environtatliabilities.
We have developed programs to identify requirementier and maintain compliance with Environmentalk; however, we
cannot predict with certainty the impact of inceshand more stringent regulation on our operatifutsre capital expenditure
requirements, or the cost of compliance. Based wporexperience to date, we believe that the futost of compliance with
existing Environmental Laws, and liabilities fordwn environmental claims pursuant to such Enviromiad_aws, will not
have a material adverse effect on our financiaitjpos results of operations, cash flows or liqtydi

Environmental Health and Safety Regulation
The following summarizes the principal Environmenhizws affecting our business.

Waste Managementur operations are subject to statutes and régntaaddressing the contamination by, and
management of, hazardous substances and solidaaaddous wastes. In the U.S., the Comprehensiviedamvental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980amended (“CERCLA"), also known as the “Superfuladt/, and
comparable state laws, generally impose strict jaimdl several liability for costs of investigatiand remediation and related
liabilities, on defined classes of “potentially pesisible parties” (“PRPs”). PRPs can be requirdoktar all of such costs
regardless of fault, the legality of the originégbsal or ownership of the disposal site. We Hmen, and may become,
subject to liability under CERCLA for cleanup costsinvestigation or clean up obligations or redetieird-party claims in
connection with releases of hazardous substanagsf@tm our current or former sites or offsite veadisposal facilities used
by us, including those caused by predecessordatingto divested properties or operations.

We must also comply with the Resource Conservati@hRecovery Act of 1976 , as amended (“RCRA")d an
comparable state laws regulating the treatmeniagéy disposal, remediation and transportatiomld sind hazardous wastes.
These laws impose management requirements on gerseaad transporters of such wastes and on thersvemd operators of
treatment, storage and disposal facilities. Asentror historic recyclers of chemical waste, certiour subsidiaries have
been, and are likely to be, the focus of extensorapliance reviews by environmental regulatory arities under RCRA. Our
subsidiary Phibro-Tech currently has a RCRA opegatiermit for its Santa Fe Springs, Californialiggcifor which a renewal
application is under review. Phibro-Tech initiadlybmitted an application for renewal of its perfoitthe Santa Fe Springs
facility in 1996. The State of California is expegtto issue a draft permit in 2014 or 2015 for ukdview and comment. In
addition, because we or our subsidiaries have dlsseeral facilities which had been the subje®GRA permits, we or our
subsidiaries have been and will be required tostigate and remediate certain environmental comtatioin conditions at the
shutdown plant sites within the requirements of RQRrrective action program
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Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amendé&tle must comply with regulations related to the klisge of
pollutants to the waters of the United States witlgpvernmental authorization, including those parg to the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act.

Chemical Product Registration Requiremehit®& must comply with regulations related to tlsting, manufacturing
labeling, registration and safety analysis of awdpicts in order to distribute many of our produttsluding, for example, in
the U.S., the federal Toxic Substances Controlakct Federalnsecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, anthenEuropea
Union, the Regulation on Registration, Evaluatidnthorization and Restriction of Chemical Substan¢REACH").

Air Emissions Our operations are subject to the U.S. Cleamatr(the “CAA”) and comparable U.S. state and
foreign statutes and regulations, which regulatessions of various air pollutants and contamina@estain of the CAA’s
regulatory programs are the subject of ongoingese\and/or are subject to ongoing litigation, susltree rules establishing
new Maximum Achievable Control Technology for intiied boilers; significant expenditures may be rieed to meet current
and emerging air quality standards. Regulatory eigsrcan also impose administrative, civil and erahpenalties for non-
compliance with air permits or other air qualitguéations. States may choose to set more strirgjeptnissions rules than
those in the CAA. State, national and internati@nahorities have also issued requirements focusingreenhouse gas
reductions. In the U.S., the EPA has promulgatdér@ gree n house gas regulations under the Chektafg certain sources.
In addition, a number of state, local and regigraknhouse gas initiatives are also being developade already in place. In
Israel and Brazil, implementation of the Kyoto Pl requirements regarding greenhouse gas emissituctions consists of
energy efficiency regulations, carbon dioxide eiiss allowances trading and renewable energy reménts.

Capital Expenditures.

We have incurred and expect to continue to incsttd maintain compliance with environmental, tieahd safety
laws and regulations. Our capital expendituredirglao environmental, health and safety regulatioere $ 3.7 million for
fiscal year 2014. We estimate that our capital exljiares for compliance will be $3.2 million and.@3nillion in fiscal years
2015 and 20186, respectivelypwever, these estimates are subject to changa thieeuncertainty of future Environmental L
and the interpretation and enforcement theredijriser described in this Annual Report on FormKL@ur environmental
capital expenditure plans cover, among other thitigscurrently expected costs associated with knpgrmit requirements
relating to facility improvements.

Contamination and Hazardous Substance Risks.

Investigation, Remediation and Monitoring ActiwstieCertain of PAHC's subsidiaries that are currentlyvere
historically engaged in recycling and other aciggtinvolving hazardous materials have been redquogerform site
investigations at their active, closed and fornaeilities and neighboring properties. Contaminatiésoil, groundwater and
other environmental media has been identified suipected at several of these locations, incluBarga Fe Springs,
California; Powder Springs, Georgia; Union, lllispBewaren, New Jersey; Sumter, South Carolina]alnet, lllinois, and
regulatory authorities have required, and will aoué to require, further investigation, correctaation and monitoring over
future years. These subsidiaries also have bedringhe future may be, required to undertake &ufthd capital improvements
as part of these actions. In addition, RCRA ane@m#pplicable statutes and regulations requirestbabsidiaries to develop
closure and post-closure plans for their facilii@sl in the event of a facility closure, obtainearpit which sets forth a closure
plan for investigation, remediation and monitorargd requires post-closure monitoring and maintemdorcup to30 years. W
believe we are in material compliance with thespirements and maintain adequate reserves to ctemelmediation and
monitoring obligations at these locations.

In connection with past acquisitions and diveséitiwe have undertaken certain indemnificationgalbions that
require us, or may in the future require us, todemt or finance environmental cleanups at sites@i®nger own or operate.
Under the terms of the sale of the former facilityloliet, lllinois, Phibro-Tech remains responsifdr any required
investigation and remediation of the site attriblego conditions at the site at the time of thbreary 2011 sale date and we
believe we have sufficient reserves to cover ttst obthe remediatior
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PRP at Omega Chemical Superfund Sithe EPA is investigating and planning for the eelmtion of offsite
contaminated groundwater that has migrated fronOtmega Chemical Corporation Superfund Site (“Onfegemical Site”),
which is upgradient of Phibro-Tech’s Santa Fe SpirCalifornia facility. The EPA has named Phibmeef and certain other
subsidiaries of PAHC as PRPs due to groundwatemounation from Phibro-Tech’s Santa Fe Springdlifgdhat has
allegedly commingled with contaminated groundwétem the Omega Chemical Site. In September 202EPA notified
approximately 140 PRPs, including Phibro-Tech dmddther subsidiaries, that they have been idedtds potentially
responsible for remedial action for the groundwateme affected by the Omega Chemical Site ané&RA oversight and
response costs. Phibro-Tech contends that grouedeamtamination at its site is due to historiga¢@tions that pre-date
Phibro-Tech and/or contaminated groundwater thatnhigrated from upgradient properties. In additesuccessor to a prior
owner of the Phibro-Tech site has asserted that®Aht PhibroFech are obligated to provide indemnification fsrpotentia
liability and defense costs relating to the grouathw plume affected by the Omega Chemical SitebrBHiech has vigorously
contested this position and has asserted thatutteessor to the prior owner is required to indeynRifibro-Tech for its
potential liability and defense costs. Furthermaragarby property owner has filed a complainh@ $uperior Court of the
State of California against many of the PRPs atlpgassociated with the groundwater plume affetiethe Omega Chemical
Site (including Phibro-Tech) for alleged contamioatof groundwater underneath its property; a groLipompanies that sent
chemicals to the Omega Chemical Site for procesamimgrecycling has filed a complaint under CERChAlie United States
District Court for the Central District of Califaaagainst many of the PRPs allegedly associatédtihe groundwater plume
affected by the Omega Chemical Site (including Riibech) for contribution toward past and futurstscassociated with the
investigation and remediation of the groundwatene# affected by the Omega Chemical Site; and #raesgroup of
companies has served Phibro-Tech with a NoticendEgerment and Intent to Sue Pursuant to RCRA8(a)1)(B)
seeking to abate alleged imminent and substamiddmgerment to health or the environment resuftiog the lack of
adequate offsite monitoring and groundwater sooocgrol associated with former and/or continuingmpions at Phibro-
Tech'’s Santa Fe Springs facility. Due to the ongaiature of the EPA’s investigation and Phibro-Tedispute with the prior
owner’s successor, at this time we cannot preditt any degree of certainty what, if any, liabilRhibro-Tech or the other
subsidiaries may ultimately have for investigatimmediation and the EPA oversight and responss essociated with the
affected groundwater plume.

Potential Claims In addition to cleanup obligations, we could dsoheld liable for any and albnsequences arisi
out of human exposure to hazardous substanceber evironmental damage, which liability may netdovered by
insurance.

Environmental Accruals and Financial Assurandée have established environmental accruals to davewn
remediation and monitoring costs at certain of@urent and former facilities. Our accruals for ieovmental liabilities are
recorded by calculating our best estimate of prigbabd reasonably estimable future costs usingntimformation that is
available at the time of the accrual. Our accrémignvironmental liabilities totaled $7.3 million a88.3 million as of June 3
2014 and 2013, respectively.

In certain instances, regulatory authorities hapiired us to provide financial assurance for estih costs of
remediation, corrective action, monitoring and alesand post-closure plans. Our subsidiaries havapst instances, chosen
to provide the required financial assurance by reedihetters of credit issued pursuant to our Gredcilities. As of June 30,
2014, the total outstanding balance of lettersredlit providing such financial assurance was $h3lbon.

Workplace Health and Safety.

We are committed to manufacturing safe productsaahieving a safe workplace. Our Environmental Heahd
Safety (“EHS") Global Director, along with regioreahd site-based EHS professionals, manage envimaméealth and
safety matters throughout the Company. The siteagens are responsible for implementing the estadgi€HS controls. To
protect employees, we have established healthaetypolicies, programs and processes at all anufacturing sites. An
external EHS audit is performed at each of oussieneeded based on the conditions at the respsités.

Where You Can Find More information

We are subject to the information and periodic emalent reporting requirements of the Exchange Awd, in
accordance therewith, will file periodic and cutregports, proxy statements a
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other information with the Securities Exchange Cassion (“SEC”) . Such periodic and current repopt®xy statements and
other information will be available to the public the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov and throughnalosite at
www.pahc.com . You may also read or copy such périor current reports, proxy statements and dtifermation the
Company files with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Refee Room, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.6490Please call the
SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider all of the informatiset forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K,lueing the
following risk factors, before deciding to investaur Class A common stock. If any of the followirigks actually occurs, our
business, financial condition, results of operatorcash flows could be materially adversely afdctn any such case, the
trading price of our Class A common stock couldlide¢ and you could lose all or part of your invesht. The risks below are
not the only ones the Company faces. Addition&srisot currently known to the Company or that tleenpany presently
deems immaterial may also impair its business diogx® This Annual Report on Form 10-K also corgdmrward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertaintiege. Chmpany’s results could materially differ fronogle anticipated in these
forward-looking statements as a result of certagtidrs, including the risks it faces described wednd elsewhere. See also
“Forward-Looking Statements.”

Risk Factors Relating to Our Business

Restrictions on the use of antibacterials in fo-producing animals may become more prevalent.

The issue of the potential transfer of antibacteesistance from bacteria from food-producing aadsrio human
bacterial pathogens, and the causality and imgabia transfer, are the subject of global sciémahd regulatory discussion.
Antibacterials refer to molecules that can be usetdeat or prevent bacterial infections and aselacategorization of the
products that make up our medicinal feed additp@sfolios. In some countries, this issue has teddvernment restrictions
the use of specific antibacterials in some fooddpoing animals, regardless of the route of adnratisin (in feed, water,
intramammary, topical, injectable or other routedministration). These restrictions are more gestan countries where
animal protein is plentiful and governments ardimgl to take action even when there is scientificertainty. In
December 2013, the FDA announced a plan to phaseveua three-year period the use of medicallydrtamt antibacterials
administered in animal feed or water for growthrpation in food producing animals. Medically impartantibacterials
include classes that are prescribed in animal andiin health and are listed in the Appendix of tB&fCVM Guidance for
Industry (GFI) #152. The FDA plan objectives arealibed in GFI #209 and provide for the continued af medically
important antibacterials in food-producing aninfalstreatment, control and prevention of diseaseefapeutic’use) under th
supervision of a veterinarian. The FDA indicateat fih took this action to help preserve the efficaEmedically important
antibacterials to treat infections in humans. i thited States, the antibacterial products withinpoultry business, our
largest business in this region, as well as outechtisiness, have both approved therapeutic andheyapeutic indications.
We believe, based on current producer usage pattinat the large majority of use of our produntthese segments is at
therapeutic dosage levels. We currently generatation of our revenues from antibacterial produsctiel for use in turkeys
and swine in the United States where we do nokatiyr have therapeutic claims that match our custshusage patterns. We
intend to ensure that our antibacterial productrirfigs are in full alignment with the FDA’s guidandocuments within the
FDA's threeyear implementation period, and will pursue bottvrmed additional therapeutic claims for these potglwith the
FDA. However, there can be no assurance that wédwiuccessful in obtaining such claims. Whilis difficult to predict
exactly what impact the removal of non-therapeciaéms for our products that are medically impotrtantibacterials will
ultimately have on our sales, we estimate thagdba® our customers’ usage patterns, had we vallyndecided to withdraw
all of our non-therapeutic claims for these productthe United States, and did not add any nevapieaitic claims for these
products, our MFA & Other net sales would have begluced by approximately $15 to $20 million for discal year ended
June 30, 2014.

Our carbadox product has been approved for useoih &nimals for over 40 years. Certain regulatagiés have
raised concerns about the possible presence afirceesidues of our carbadox product in meat fraimals that consume the
product. The product was banned for use in theriE1DDB8
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and has been banned in several other countriegledte United States. In 1998, following a subinisdy the drug sponsor,
the FDA conducted an evaluation of carbadox andddhat it was safe based on the U.S. “sensitifitthe method” policy.
Accordingly, the FDA continues to permit the appdwse of carbadox. However, the FDA has subselguaiged concerns
that certain residues from our carbadox product pegist in tissues for longer than previously dateed. See “Business—
Regulatory.” In July 2014 , the Codex adopted n&nagement advice language for a number of compoactliding
carbadox . The advice language states “authostiesld prevent residues of carbadox in food. Thislee accomplished by
not using carbadox in food producing animals.” Taleice language is to provide advice only andishinding on individual
national authorities, and almost all national atitres already have long-established regulatorgddiads for carbadox . T he
advice language may be considered by national atig®in making future risk management determinagi To the extent
additional national authorities elect to follow tigk management advice and prohibit the use dfadox in food-producing
animals, those decisions could have an adverset ®ifeour sales of carbadox in those countries aointries like the United
States that produce meat for export to those csntr

In 2008, the FDA announced that the agency reqdimedal review of all additives used in the prodaitof ethanol
including our Lactrol product (formulated virginigwin), where the co-products may be used for anfed. Virginiamycin
has been certified by an independent expert pamslaned by us as GRAS as a processing aid in dtpeoduction and as
related to the use of the resulting distiller'sproducts for animal feed. We believe that thisifieation satisfies the FDA
requirement. However, there can be no assuranceilee successful in maintaining market accessofar Lactrol product or
other ethanol production additives that we sell.

Our global sales of antibacterials and other rdlgt®ducts were approximately $326.6 million foe thear ended
June 30, 2014. We cannot predict whether resistemeeerns with antibacterials will result in adalitél restrictions, expanded
regulations or public pressure to discontinue duoe use of antibacterials in food-producing angmahich could materially
adversely affect our operating results and findrezadition.

A material portion of our sales are generated bytinacterials and other related product

Our medicated products business is comprised elasively small number of compounds and accounted 7% anc
47% of net sales for the years ended June 30, 042013, respectively. The significant loss oftauterial or other related
product sales for any reason, including competjfoduct bans or restrictions, public perceptioamy of the other risks
related to such products as described in this AnRaport on Form 10-K, could have a material adveffect on our business.

We face competition in each of our markets from amber of large and small companies, some of whicvk greater
financial, R&D, production and other resources thane have

Many of our products face competition from alteivebr substitute products. We are engaged in higbinpetitive
industries and, with respect to all of our majardarcts, face competition from a substantial nunabglobal and regional
competitors. We believe many of our competitorscameducting R&D activities in areas served by owdpicts and in areas in
which we are developing products. Some competiiare greater financial, R&D, production and ottemources than we
have. Some of our principal competitors include 824G, Ceva Santé Animale, Boehringer Ingelheiredmational GmbH,
Eli Lilly and Company (Elanco Animal Health), Huvearma Inc., Lallemand Inc., Merck & Co., Inc. (Mlergnimal Health
and MSD Animal Health), Novartis AG, Pennfield Coration, Sanofi (Merial), Southeastern Minerals, ]Wirbac and Zoeti
Inc. To the extent these companies or new entifes comparable animal health , mineral nutritarperformance products
at lower prices, our business could be adversébctefd. New entrants could substantially reducenoarket share or render
our products obsolete.

In certain countries, because of our size and mtoghix, we may not be able to capitalize on change®mpetition
and pricing as fully as our competitors. In recgedrs, there have been new generic medicated psuhtioduced to the
livestock industry, particularly in the United Siat

There continues to be consolidation in the aninealth market, which could strengthen our competit@ur
competitors can be expected to continue to impthedormulation and performance
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their products and to introduce new products witinpetitive price and performance characteristiter& can be no assurance
that we will have sufficient resources to maintaim current competitive position or market share.

Outbreaks of animal diseases could significantlydtee demand for our products.

The demand for our products could be significaaffected by outbreaks of animal diseases, and scairrences
may have a material adverse impact on the salargfmducts and our financial condition and resofteperations. The
outbreaks of disease are beyond our control antdl gignificantly affect demand for our products ammshsumer perceptions of
certain meat products. An outbreak of disease caddlt in governmental restrictions on the img@ortl export of chicken,
pork, beef or other products to or from our custenéhis could also create adverse publicity thay fmave a material adverse
effect on our ability to sell our products succaBgfand on our financial condition and resultsoprations. In addition,
outbreaks of disease carried by animals may redkgienal or global sales of particular animal-dedJood products or result
in reduced exports of such products, either direetghtened export restrictions or import prohiliispwhich may reduce
demand for our products due to reduced herd ok fbies.

There has been substantial publicity regarding HKdbdwn as North American (or Swine) Influenza goeyviously.
H5N1, known as Highly Pathogenic Avian Influenzathie human population. There have also been cosicelating to E. co
in beef and other food poisoning micro-organismsagats and other foods. Consumers may associaterhbealth fears with
animal diseases, food, food production or food afsnwvhether or not it is scientifically valid, whiecnay have an adverse
impact on the demand for animal protein. Occurrsrdehis type could significantly affect demand é&mimal protein which i
turn could affect the demand for our products mamner that has a significant adverse effect orfinancial condition and
results of operations. Also, the outbreak of amghlyi contagious disease near our main producti@s sould require us to
immediately halt production of our products at ssitbs or force us to incur substantial expensg@sdouring raw materials or
products elsewhere.

Outbreaks of an exotic or highly contagious diséasecountry where we produce our products (paleity
vaccines, which we currently produce in Israel) mesult in other countries halting importation of groducts for fear that
our product may be contaminated with the exoti@nigm.

Perceived adverse effects on human health linkedhe consumption of food derived from animals thatilize our products
could cause a decline in the sales of those product

Our business depends heavily on a healthy and ggpliviestock industry. If the public perceives skrto human
health from the consumption of the food derivedrfranimals that utilize our products, there may lleeline in the production
of those food products and, in turn, demand forgraducts. Livestock producers may experience @ésee demand for their
products or reputational harm as a result of emghd@onsumer views of animal rights, nutrition arealth-related or other
concerns. Any reputational harm to the livestoaustry may also extend to companies in relatedstias, including the
Company. In addition, campaigns by interest groapsyists and others with respect to perceivekbrassociated with the use
of our products in animals, whether or not sciéealfy-supported, could affect public perceptionsl aeduce the use of our
products. Those adverse consumer views relatdeetade of one or more of our products in animaldccbave a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and ressof operations.

Our business may be negatively affected by weatiterditions and the availability of natural resoursgas well as by climat
change.

The animal health industry and demand for manyuofamimal health products in a particular region @fected by
changing disease pressures and by weather corgliisrusage of our products follows varying weaplagterns and weather-
related pressures from diseases. As a result, weemperience regional and seasonal fluctuatiomaiirresults of operations.

In addition, livestock producers depend on thelakdity of natural resources, including abundaibfall to sustain
large supplies of drinking water, grasslands armdhgoroduction. Their animals’ health and theidiapto operate could be
adversely affected if they experience a shortageesh
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water due to human population growth or floodsudtds or other weather conditions. In the evergdyerse weather
conditions or a shortage of fresh water, livestpdducers may purchase less of our products.

Our operations could be subject to the effects fnate change.

Our operations and customers may be subject topalt@hysical impacts of climate change, includaignges in
weather patterns and the potential for extreme hegatvents, which could affect the manufacturedistlibution of our
products, agricultural yields and the demand farmaducts and result in additional regulation thatease our operating
costs.

The testing, manufacturing, and marketing of certabf our products are subject to extensive regutetiby numerous
government authorities in the United States and etftountries, including, but not limited to, the F®

Among other requirements, FDA approval of antibaate and other medicated products, including the
manufacturing processes and facilities used toymeduch products, is required before such prodoatsbe marketed in the
United States. Further, cross-clearance approvalgenerally required for such products to be us@dmbination in animal
feed. Similarly, marketing approval by a foreigrvgmmental authority is typically required befotels products may be
marketed in a particular foreign country.

In addition to approval of the product and its lalzg regulatory authorities typically require appal and periodic
inspection of the manufacturing facilities. In arde obtain FDA approval of a new animal healthduret, we must, among
other things, demonstrate to the satisfaction @RDA that the product is safe and effective feiitended uses and that we
are capable of manufacturing the product with pdoces that conform to FDA'’s current cGMP regulasiomhich must be
followed at all times. Following a cGMP inspectiohour Teaneck, New Jersey headquarters in Oc@lE2, the FDA issued
inspectional observations (Form 483) relating tootgs analytical test results and practices, exipimedating and reporting
requirements regarding specification non-conforneaoc one of our product formulations of virginiaany (Stafac 20). In
response to our subsequent submissions, the FDAAisenletter in May 2013 indicating they were segKurther explanation
and corrective actions regarding the issues raisttke inspectional observations, to which we resjgal. In December 2013,
the FDA replied to our response, noting some chaiage proposed refinements to the revised testimgegdures for our
product, indicating that it would be beneficial {8 to engage a third party consultant with cGMpeetise, and indicating that
our updated procedures, among additional cGMP remngints, would be reviewed at the FDA's next inipacThese
observations have not impacted our ability to migpkeducts in the United States or any other cqurind we expect that the
identified observations will be satisfactorily adgsed. However, the FDA may not be satisfied byebponses and actions
taken by us in regard to the inspectional obsesaattited. The FDA has various means of enforc@®NIP requirements,
including seizures and injunctions and failuredsalve this cGMP issue could have a financiallyematimpact on our
business.

The process of seeking FDA approvals can be cdstlg, consuming, and subject to unanticipated apificant
delays. There can be no assurance that such apprmillebe granted to us on a timely basis, orlat/ny delay in obtaining ©
any failure to obtain FDA or foreign government epls or the suspension or revocation of sucha@s would adversely
affect our ability to introduce and market medidafieed additive products and to generate prodwetmge. For more
information on FDA and foreign government approwais cCGMP issues, see “Business—Regulatory.”

We may experience declines in the sales volume jamckes of our products as the result of the conting trend toward
consolidation of certain customer groups as wellthe emergence of large buying groups.

We make a majority of our sales to a number ofarajiand national feed companies, distributorspgs-blenders,
integrated poultry, and swine and cattle operatiSmgnificant consolidation of our customers magulein these groups
gaining additional purchasing leverage and constumcreasing the product pricing pressures fa@uor business.
Additionally, the emergence of large buying groppgentially could enable such groups to attempixtoact price discounts
our products
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Moreover, if, as a result of increased leveragstarer pressures require us to reduce our pricioly #hat our gross margins
are diminished, we could decide not to sell oudpnrts to a particular customer, which could reisu#t decrease in our
revenues. Consolidation among our customer baseatsayead to reduced demand for our products epldecement of our
products by the combined entity with those of aumpetitors. The result of these developments mag hamaterial adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.

Our business is subject to risk based on customegrasure to rising costs and reduced customer income

Feed, fuel and transportation and other key casthvestock producers may increase or animal jmqigces or sale
may decrease. Either of these trends could causeaation in the financial condition of our liiesk producer customers,
potentially inhibiting their ability to purchase mproducts or pay us for products delivered. Ougdtock producer customers
may offset rising costs by reducing spending ongsaducts, including by switching to lower-coskaitatives to our products.

Generic products may be viewed as more cost-effedtian our products.

We face competition from products produced by otleenpanies, including generic alternatives to aexéour
products. We depend primarily on trade secretsduige us with competitive advantages for manywfmroducts. The
protection afforded is limited by the availability new competitive products or generic versionsxsting products that can
successfully compete with our products. As a restdtmay face competition from new competitive prctd or lower-priced
generic alternatives to many of our products. Germmpetitors are becoming more aggressive ingerhpricing , and
generic products are an increasing percentageashfhanimal health sales in certain regions. Ifread health customers
increase their use of new or existing generic petgjwour financial condition and results of openasi could be materially
adversely affected.

Advances in veterinary medical practices and aninh&alth technologies could negatively affect the ket for our products.

The market for our products could be impacted riegigtby the introduction and/or broad market adcaape of
newly-developed or alternative products that adsdties diseases and conditions for which we setlyests, including “green”
or “holistic” health products or specially bred efise-resistant animals. In addition, technolodicadkthroughs by others may
obviate our technology and reduce or eliminatentlaeket for our products. Introduction or acceptasicguch products or
technologies could materially adversely affect business, financial condition and results of openat

The misuse or extra-label use of our products maarim our reputation or result in financial or othedamages.

Our products have been approved for use underfgpeiccumstances for, among other things, the pnéion,
control and/or treatment of certain diseases anditions in specific species, in some cases subjecértain dosage levels or
minimum withdrawal periods prior to the slaughtated There may be increased risk of product lighililivestock producers
or others attempt any extra-label use of our prtgjucluding the use of our products in speciesvioich they have not been
approved, or at dosage levels or periods prioritodrawal that have not been approved. If we asntsl by a governmental
or regulatory agency to have engaged in the pramatf any of our products for extra-label use, sagéncy could request that
we modify our training or promotional materials grdctices and we could be subject to significares and penalties. The
imposition of these sanctions could also affectreputation and position within the industry. Eviewe were not responsible
for having promoted the extra-label use, conceonsdcarise about the safety of the resulting medhé human food supply.
Any of these events could materially adversely@ciféir financial condition and results of operasion

Animal health products are subject to unanticipatedfety or efficacy concerns, which may harm ouprgation.

Unanticipated safety or efficacy concerns can awitle respect to animal health products, whetherair
scientifically or clinically supported, leading pooduct recalls withdrawals or suspended or dedisiales as well as product
liability, and other claims
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In addition, we depend on positive perceptionshefdafety and quality of our products, and aninealth products
generally, by our customers, veterinarians andws®as, and such concerns may harm our reputaticarhe countries, these
perceptions may be exacerbated by the existenceuniterfeit versions of our products, which, depegan the legal and law
enforcement recourse available in the jurisdictidrere the counterfeiting occurs, may be difficalpblice or stop. These
concerns and the related harm to our reputatiotdaoaterially adversely affect our financial comalit and results of
operations, regardless of whether such reportaarerate.

We are dependent on suppliers having current regoly approvals, and the failure of those suppligmsmaintain these
approvals or challenges in replacing any of thoagppliers could affect our supply of materials orfatt the distribution or
sale of our products.

Suppliers and third party contract manufacturerofo animal health and mineral nutrition produtitss us, are
subject to extensive regulatory compliance. If ang of these third parties discontinues its supplys because of significant
regulatory violations or otherwise, or an advergeng occurs at one of their facilities, the int@tian in the supply of these
materials could decrease sales of our affectedygtsdin this event, we may seek to enter intoexgents with third parties to
purchase raw materials or products or to leaseia@hase new manufacturing facilities. We may beblento find a third party
willing or able to provide the necessary producttaoilities suitable for manufacturing pharmaceais on terms acceptable to
us or the cost of those pharmaceuticals may bakitivle. If we have to obtain substitute materiatgproducts, additional
regulatory approvals will likely be required, apepvals are typically specific to a single prodpiduced by a specified
manufacturer in a specified facility. As such, tise of new facilities also requires regulatory appls. While we take
measures where economically feasible and avaitaldecure back-up suppliers, the continued recéiattive ingredients or
products from a sole source supplier could creladdienges if a sole source was interrupted. We nodye able to provide
adequate and timely product to eliminate any thoéatterruption of supply of our products to custrs and these problems
may materially adversely impact our business.

The raw materials used by us in the manufactureafr products can be subject to price fluctuationsdatheir availability
can be limited .

While the selling prices of our products tend toré@ase or decrease over time with the cost of ratenals, such
changes may not occur simultaneously or to the slegeee. The costs of certain of our significamt naaterials are subject to
considerable volatility, and we generally do nagage in activities to hedge the costs of our rawenels. Although no single
raw material accounted for more than 6% of our obsipods sold for the year ended June 30, 2014fikity in raw material
costs can result in significant fluctuations in gosts of goods sold of the affected products. ddsts of raw materials used by
our Mineral Nutrition business are particularly gdb to fluctuations in global commodities markatgl cost changes in the
underlying commodities markets typically lead dileto a corresponding change in our revenues.oAigh we attempt to
adjust the prices of our products to reflect sigaifit changes in raw material costs, we may natibe to pass any increases in
raw material costs through to our customers irfdh@ of price increases. Significant increaseddosts of raw materials, if
not offset by product price increases, could haweaterial adverse effect on our financial conditord results of operations.
The supply of certain of our raw materials is defmei on third party suppliers. There is no guamtitat supply shortages of
such raw materials will not occur. In additionaify one of these third parties discontinues itpbsuip us, or an adverse event
occurs at one of their facilities, the interruptiarthe supply of these materials could decrealss sd our affected products. In
the event that we cannot procure necessary majomaerials from other suppliers, the occurrencanyf of these may have
an adverse impact on our business.

Our revenues are dependent on the continued operatf our various manufacturing facilities.

Although presently all our manufacturing facilitiase considered to be in good condition, the opmeraif our
manufacturing facilities involves many risks, indilng the breakdown, failure or substandard perfaceaf equipment,
construction delays, shortages of materials, |aboblems, power outages, the improper installadioaperation of equipment,
natural disasters, terrorist activities, the owlref any highly contagious diseases near our mtaztusites and the need to
comply with
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environmental and other directives of governmeag@ncies. In addition, regulatory authorities sagthe FDA typically
require approval and periodic inspection of the ufiacturing facilities to confirm compliance withg@jzable regulatory
requirements, and those requirements may be ewftncearious means, including seizures and injonsti Certain of our
product lines are manufactured at a single facilityd certain of our product lines are manufactaiteal single facility with
limited capacity at a second facility, and prodagtivould not be easily transferable to another Site occurrence of material
operational problems, including but not limitedthe above events, may adversely affect our findwoiadition and results of
operations.

A significant portion of our operations are conduad in foreign jurisdictions and are subject to tieeonomic, political, lega
and business environments of the countries in whigle do business.

Our international operations could be limited srdpted by any of the following:
e volatility in the international financial market

e compliance with governmental contrc

« difficulties enforcing contractual and intellectymbperty rights

» compliance with a wide variety of laws and regualas, such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
(“FCPA") and similar no-U.S. laws and regulation

« compliance with foreign labor law
e compliance with Environmental Law

e burdens to comply with multiple and potentially 8aning foreign laws and regulations, including#e relating
to environmental, health and safety requireme

« changes in laws, regulations, government contnotnéorcement practices with respect to our busimesl the
businesses of our custome

«  political and social instability, including crimeiyvil disturbance, terrorist activities and arnconflicts;

e trade restrictions, export controls and sanctiamssland restrictions on direct investments by fpraintities,
including restrictions administered by the Offide~oreign Assets Control of the U.S. Departmerthef
Treasury;

e changes in tax laws and tarif
e costs and difficulties in staffing, managing andnibaring international operations; a

* longer payment cycles and increased exposure toteqarty risk

The multinational nature of our business subjest®potential risks that various taxing authositieay challenge tt
pricing of our cross-border arrangements and stbgto additional tax, adversely impacting oueefive tax rate and our tax
liability.

In addition, international transactions may invoivereased financial and legal risks due to diffgriegal systems
and customs. Compliance with these requirementsprayibit the import or export of certain produatsd technologies or
may require us to obtain a license before impontingxporting certain products or technology. Auia to comply with any of
these laws, regulations or requirements could r@saivil or criminal legal proceedings, monetamynon-monetary penalties,
or both, disruptions to our business, limitationsoair ability to import and export products andvemrs, and damage to our
reputation. In addition, variations in the priciofjour products in different jurisdictions may réso the unauthorized
importation of our products between jurisdictionhile the impact of these factors is difficult teegict, any of them could
materially adversely affect our financial conditiand results of operations. Changes in any of ttaags, regulations or
requirements, or the political environment in atipatar country, may affect our ability to engagebusiness transactions in
certain markets, including investment, procurenaemt repatriation of earninc
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We are subject to product registration and auth@fion regulations in many of the jurisdictions in ich we operate and/c
distribute our products, including the United Stat@nd member states of the European Union.

We are subject to regulations related to testingaufiacturing, labeling, registration, and safetglgsis in order to
lawfully distribute many of our products, includify example, in the U.S., the federal Toxic Subsés Control Act and the
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Awtl in the European Union, the Regulation on RBA@Ve are also
subject to similar requirements in many of the ofbasdictions in which we operate and/or disttdour products. In some
cases, such registrations are subject to periediew by relevant authorities. Such regulations heag to governmental
restrictions or cancellations of, or refusal taiesscertain registrations or authorizations, orseaus or our customers to make
product substitutions in the future. Such reguletimay also lead to increased third party scrudimy personal injury or
product liability claims. Compliance with these uégions can be difficult, costly and time consughand liabilities or costs
relating to such regulations could have a matedakrse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

We have significant assets located outside the BahiStates and a significant portion of our salesthearnings is
attributable to operations conducted abroad.

As of June 30, 2014, we had manufacturing and sedegations in 14 countries and sell our produttver 65
countries. Our operations outside the United Statesunted for 53% and 56% of our consolidatedtesseof June 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively, and 37% and 37% of ouralatated net sales for the years ended June 3@, 20d 2013,
respectively. Our foreign operations are subjecutwency exchange fluctuations and restrictiootitipal instability in some
countries, and uncertainty of, and governmentatrobover, commercial rights.

Changes in the relative values of currencies td&eepfrom time to time and could in the future adety affect our
results of operations as well as our ability to trerest and principal obligations on our indelotess. To the extent that the
U.S. dollar fluctuates relative to the applicalbesfgn currency, our results are favorably or unfably affected. We may fro
time to time manage this exposure by enteringfimteign currency contracts. Such contracts genegaé entered into with
respect to anticipated costs denominated in foreigrencies for which timing of the payment carré@sonably estimated. No
assurances can be given that such hedging addiwilenot result in, or will be successful in penting, losses that could have
an adverse effect on our financial condition outssof operations. There are times when we ddedge against foreign
currency fluctuations and therefore are subjetii¢orisks associated with fluctuations in curreegghange rates.

In addition, international manufacturing, sales emd materials sourcing are subject to other infitienisks, including
possible nationalization or expropriation, laborast, political instability, price and exchange tols, limitation on foreign
participation in local enterprises, health-careutation, export duties and quotas, domestic aretiational customs and
tariffs, compliance with export controls and samies laws, the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act anérows and regulations
governing international trade, unexpected changesgulatory environments, difficulty in obtainidgstribution and support,
and potentially adverse tax consequences. Althsugh risks have not had a material adverse effeasadn the past, these
factors could have a material adverse impact orability to increase or maintain our internatiosales or on our results of
operations in the future.

We have manufacturing facilities located in Israahd a portion of our net sales and earnings is #itrtable to products
produced and operations conducted in Isra

Our Israeli manufacturing facilities and local ogtésns accounted for 21% and 24% of our consoldtlassets as of
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and 19% 8%gdf our consolidated net sales for the yearseéddae 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. We maintain manufacturing faed in Israel, which manufacture:

e nicarbazin and amprolium anticoccidials, most ofcltare exported from Israel to maworld markets

e vaccines, a substantial portion of which are exgbto international markets; a
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< animal health pharmaceuticals and trace mineralsatritional specialty products for the local aairfeed
industry.

A substantial portion of this production is expdrfeom Israel to major world markets. Accordingbyr Israeli
operations are dependent on foreign markets anatitiey to reach those markets. Since the estailent of the State of Isre
in 1948, Israel and its Arab neighbors have engagachumber of armed conflicts. A state of hastilvarying in degree and
intensity, has led to security and economic proksiéon Israel. Major hostilities between Israel discheighbors may hinder
Israel’s international trade. This, in turn, coblave a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition and results of
operations.

Certain countries, companies and organizationsroesto participate in a boycott of Israeli firmsdaother
companies doing business in Israel or with Isre@ipanies. Currently, the Palestinian Authoritpriemoting a boycott
against goods produced in Israeli settlementsaniest Bank. We cannot predict whether such boydgtitexpand to include
all Israeli goods, or the extent to which otherrtoies will join in such boycott. We do not beliethat the boycott has had a
material adverse effect on us, but we cannot peoaibsurance that restrictive laws, policies ortmes directed toward Israel
or Israeli businesses will not have an adverse anpa our operations or expansion of our busin@ss.Israeli subsidiaries
receive a portion of their revenues in U.S. dollahsle their expenses are principally payable imNsraeli Shekels. Changes
in the currency exchange rates could have an agledfesct on our results of operations.

We have manufacturing facilities located in Brazaind a portion of our sales and earnings is attrilaitle to products
produced and operations conducted in Bra:

Our Brazilian manufacturing facilities and localeogtions accounted for 19% and 19% of our cons@itlassets, as
of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and 22928f06 of our consolidated net sales for the yeadea June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. We maintain manufacturing faed in Brazil, which manufacture virginiamycirgraduramicin and
nicarbazin. Our Brazilian facilities also produdef&c, Aviax, Aviax Plus, Coxistac, Nicarb and Benycin granular
formulations. A substantial portion of the prodoatis exported from Brazil to major world markescordingly, our
Brazilian operations are dependent on foreign ntar&ed the ability to reach those markets.

Our business, financial condition and results afragions in Brazil may be adversely affected bydexoutside of
our control, such as currency fluctuations, enatgyrtages and other political, social and econatei®lopments in or
affecting Brazil.

Certain of our employees are covered by collechaegaining or other labor agreements.

As of June 30, 2014, approximately 182 of our Isem@ployees and 341 of our Brazilian employeesenamvered b
collective bargaining agreements. We believe weetsatisfactory relations with our employees. Thwene be no assurance tl
we will not experience a work stoppage or strikewatmanufacturing facilities. A prolonged work gpage or strike at any of
our manufacturing facilities could have a matesid¥erse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

The loss of key personnel may disrupt our businass adversely affect our financial results.

Our operations and future success are dependeheaontinued efforts of our senior executive @fficand other
key personnel. Although we have entered into empkayt agreements with certain executives, we mapaaible to retain all
of our senior executive officers and key employ@éese senior executive officers and other key eyggls may be hired by
our competitors, some of which have considerablyenfimancial resources than we do. The loss okéreices of any of our
senior executive officers or other key personnethe inability to hire and retain qualified empéms, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

Our R&D relies on evaluations in animals, which mdecome subject to bans or additional regulations.

As a company that produces animal health medi@nédsvaccines, evaluation of our existing and nevdpcts in
animals is required in order to be able to registerproducts. Animal testing in certain industites been the subject of
controversy and adverse publicity. Some organinatand individuals
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have attempted to ban animal testing or encoutsgadoption of additional regulations applicablanémal testing. To the
extent that the activities of such organizations idividuals are successful, our R&D, and by esten our financial conditic
and results of operations, could be materially esklg affected. In addition, negative publicity abas or our industry could
harm our reputation.

Our operations, properties and subsidiaries are gdb to a wide variety of complex and stringent édl, state, local and
foreign environmental laws and regulation

We are subject to environmental, health and sddetg and regulations, including those governinduioin;
protection of the environment; the use, managemedtelease of hazardous materials, substancesastes; air emissions;
greenhouse gas emissions; water use, supply, aobdadges; the investigation and remediation ofarirtation; the
manufacture, distribution and sale of regulatedemials, including pesticides; the importing, expwtand transportation of
products; and the health and safety of our empkogee the public (collectively, “Environmental LajvsSee “Business—
Environmental, Health and Safety .”

Pursuant to Environmental Laws, certain of our glibses are required to obtain and maintain numgro
governmental permits, licenses, registrations,@ightions and approvals, including “RCRA Part Bizardous waste permits,
to conduct various aspects of their operationddctively “Environmental Permits”), any of which snhe subject to
suspension, revocation, modification, terminatioenial under certain circumstances or which matybe renewed upon th
expiration for various reasons, including noncoiptie. See “Business—Environmental, Health and pafdhese
Environmental Permits can be difficult, costly dimde consuming to obtain and may contain conditidwas limit our
operations. Additionally, any failure to obtain amdintain such Environmental Permits could restiabtherwise prohibit
certain aspects of our operations, which could fzaneterial adverse effect on our business, fimeoindition and results of
operations.

We have expended, and may be required to expethe ifuture, substantial funds for compliance wittviEonmenta
Laws. As recyclers of hazardous metal-containingnuleal wastes, certain of our subsidiaries hava baed are likely to be,
the focus of extensive compliance reviews by emvitental regulatory authorities under Environmehgad's, including those
relating to the generation, transportation, treatingtorage and disposal of solid and hazardoutewasider the RCRA . In the
past, some of our subsidiaries have paid fineseatered into consent orders to address allegedoerméntal violations. See
“Business— Environmental, Health and Safety .” Vdarot assure you that our operations or activitigbose of certain of
our subsidiaries, including with respect to comptia with Environmental Laws, will not result in gier criminal enforcement
actions or private actions, regulatory or judicieders enjoining or curtailing operations or retngrcorrective measures,
installation of pollution control equipment or redi@ measures or costs, revocation of required ilBnmental Permits, or
fines, penalties or damages, which could have amadtdverse effect on our business, financiab@@m and results of
operations. In addition, we cannot predict the mixte which Environmental Laws, and the interprietabr enforcement
thereof, may change or become more stringent ifiuttuee, each of which may affect the market for products or give rise
additional capital expenditures, compliance costgbilities that could be material.

Our operations or products may impact the environmi@r cause or contribute to contamination or expog to hazardous
substances.

Given the nature of our current and former operatiparticularly at our chemical manufacturingssitee have
incurred, are currently incurring and may in theufe incur liabilities under the CERCLA , or unagher federal, state, local
and foreign Environmental Laws related to releades contamination by hazardous substances, wipeact to our current or
former sites, adjacent or nearby third-party sibeffsite disposal locations. See “Business—Eoinental, Health and
Safety .” CertairEnvironmental Laws, including CERCLA, can imposgcstjoint, several, and retroactive liability fire cos
of investigation and cleanup of contaminated siteswners and operators of such sites, as welhgemsons who dispose of
or arrange for disposal of hazardous substancaschtsites. Accordingly, we could incur liabilityhether as a result of
government enforcement or private claims, for kn@vanknown liabilities at, or caused by migratfoom or hazardous was
transported from, any of our current
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former facilities or properties, including thosermd or operated by predecessors or third partes‘Business—
Environmental, Health and Safety .” Such liabiliguld have a material adverse effect on our busjriggncial condition and
results of operations.

The nature of our current and former operations algoses us to the risk of claims under Envirortaldraws. We
could be subject to claims by environmental reguiaguthorities, individuals and other third pastgeeking damages for
alleged personal injury, property damage, and dasém natural resources resulting from hazardobstance contamination
or human exposure caused by our operations, fasilir products, and there can be no assurancentietial costs and
liabilities will not be incurred in connection widny such claims. Our insurance may not be suffidie cover any of these
exposure, product, injury or damage claims.

Furthermore, regulatory agencies are showing istmgaconcern over the impact of animal health petsland
livestock operations on the environment. This insegl regulatory scrutiny may necessitate thatiaddittime and resources
be spent to address these concerns for both newxastéhg products and could affect product satesraaterially adversely
affect our business, financial condition or resofteperations.

We cannot assure you that our liabilities arisirggrf past or future releases of, or exposure taafdazns substances
will not materially adversely affect our busineisancial condition or results of operations.

We have been and may continue to be subject tonesadf injury from direct exposure to certain of oyoroducts which
constitute or contain hazardous substances and fromdirect exposure when such substances are incogted into other
companies’ products.

Because certain of our products constitute or é¢otitazardous substances, and because the prodottentain
chemicals involves the use, handling, processitogage and transportation of hazardous substafroes time to time we are
subject to claims of injury from direct exposurestah substances and from indirect exposure wheinsubstances are
incorporated into other companies’ products. Tharebe no assurance that as a result of pastuwefaperations, there will
not be additional claims of injury by employeesr@mbers of the public due to exposure, or alleggdsure, to such
substances. We are also party to a number of claimddawsuits arising out of the normal courseusfihess, including produ
liability claims and allegations of violations obgernmental regulations, and face present andduiaims with respect to
workplace exposure, workers’ compensation and atfegters. In most cases, such claims are coveréushyance and, where
applicable, workers’ compensation insurance, suiltgepolicy limits and exclusions; however, oururence coverage, to the
extent available, may not be adequate to protefrons all liabilities which we might incur in conagon with the manufactur
sale and use of our products. Insurance is expersid in the future may not be available on actéptarms, if at all. A
successful claim or series of claims brought agaigsn excess of our insurance coverage could hawvaterially adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations. In addition, any claims, eviemot ultimately successful,
could adversely affect the marketplace’s acceptafcer products.

We are subject to risks from litigation that may meaially impact our operations.

We face an inherent business risk of exposureriowstypes of claims and lawsuits. We are involiredarious
legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary coofsmur business. Although it is not possible tedict with certainty the
outcome of every pending claim or lawsuit or thege.of probable loss, we believe these pendinguasvand claims will not
individually or in the aggregate have a materialesge impact on our results of operations. Howewercould in the future be
subject to various lawsuits, including intellectpabperty, product liability, personal injury, proet warranty, environmental
antitrust claims, among others, and incur judgmenenter into settlements of lawsuits and claina tould have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations inganyicular period.

We are subject to risks that may not be covereabyinsurance policies.

In addition to pollution and other environmentaks, we are subject to risks inherent in the antmealth , mineral
nutrition and performance products industries, ackxplosions, fires and spills
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releases. Any significant interruption of operasia our principal facilities could have a mateadverse effect on us. We
maintain general liability insurance, pollution &djability insurance, and property and businegsrruption insurance with
coverage limits that we believe are adequate. Berafithe nature of industry hazards, it is poedibét liabilities for pollution
and other damages arising from a major occurrermyemat be covered by our insurance policies ordtedteed insurance
coverages or policy limits or that such insuran@y mot be available at reasonable rates in theguAny such liabilities,
which could arise due to injury or loss of lifeyeee damage to and destruction of property andbegit, pollution or other
environmental damage or suspension of operatiandd hiave a material adverse effect on our business

Adverse U.S. and international economic and markenditions may adversely affect our product salesldusiness

Current U.S. and international economic and marketlitions are uncertain. Our revenues and operatisults may
be affected by uncertain or changing economic aarcket conditions, including the challenges facethancredit markets and
financial services industry. If domestic and globabnomic and market conditions remain uncertaipeosist or deteriorate
further, we may experience material impacts onbusiness, financial condition and results of openst Adverse economic
conditions impacting our customers, including, amothers, increased taxation, higher unemploynewer customer
confidence in the economy, higher customer delei$evower availability of customer credit, higheterest rates and
hardships relating to declines in the stock marlaisld cause purchases of meat products to dectiselting in a decrease in
purchases of our products, which could adverségcabur financial condition and results of opeyati

Adverse economic and market conditions could aéggatively impact our business by negatively affegthe parties
with whom we do business, including among otheus coistomers, our manufacturers and our suppliers.

We may not be able to realize the expected benefitaur investments in emerging markets.

We have been taking steps to take advantage oisthé global demand for animal protein in emegginarkets,
including by expanding our manufacturing presesages, marketing, and distribution in these markedsure to continue to
maintain and expand our business in emerging madatld also materially adversely affect our opegatesults and financial
condition.

Some countries within emerging markets may be éaibhegulnerable to periods of local, regional dolgal
economic, political or social instability or crisiSsor example, our sales in certain emerging markave suffered from
extended periods of disruption due to natural désasFurthermore, we have also experienced ldwaer €xpected sales in
certain emerging markets due to local, regionalglobal restrictions on banking and commerciahdtigis in those countries.
For all these and other reasons, sales within @ngergarkets carry significant risks.

We may not be able to expand through acquisitiomsraegrate successfully the products, services gaisonnel of acquire:
businesses.

From time to time, we may make selective acquisiito expand our range of products and servicescaexpand
the geographic scope of our business. However, ayeba unable to identify suitable targets, and aatitipn for acquisitions
may make it difficult for us to consummate acqiosis on acceptable terms or at all. We may notdbe t® locate any
complementary products that meet our requiremantsat are available to us on acceptable termseomay not have
sufficient capital resources to consummate a pregh@squisition. In addition, assuming we identifijtable products or
partners, the process of effectively entering thi&se arrangements involves risks that our managé&srattention may be
diverted from other business concerns. Furtheveiucceed in identifying and consummating appabt@rcquisitions on
acceptable terms, we may not be able to integrateessfully the products, services and personnahpfacquired businesses
on a basis consistent with our current businesstipea In particular, we may face greater than etgukcosts, time and effort
involved in completing and integrating acquisiti@rsl potential disruption of our ongoing busin€asthermore, we may
realize fewer, if any, synergies than envisaged. dbility to manage acquired businesses may aldwriited if we
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enter into joint ventures or do not acquire fullr@sship or a controlling stake in the acquired bess. In addition, continued
growth through acquisitions may significantly straur existing management and operational resoufcea result, we may
need to recruit additional personnel, particulatiyhe level below senior management, and we mapeable to recruit
qualified management and other key personnel tcageour growth. Moreover, certain transactionsaadversely impact
earnings as we incur development and other expeeked to the transactions and we could incut ttebomplete these
transactions. Debt instruments could contain cehigl commitments and covenants that could advyeegtdct our cash flow
and our ability to operate our business, finanoiaddition and results of operations.

We may not successfully implement our businesstsiyés or achieve expected gross margin improvement

We are pursuing and may continue to pursue st@ateiiatives that management considers criticadio long-term
success, including, but not limited to, increassates in emerging markets, base revenue growtbighroew product
development and value added product lifecycle dgreknt; improving operational efficiency throughmatacturing
efficiency improvement and other programs; and agpey our complementary products and services.€ ez significant
risks involved with the execution of these type#dfatives, including significant business, ecorio and competitive
uncertainties, many of which are outside of ourtc@nAccordingly, we cannot predict whether welwsilcceed in
implementing these strategic initiatives. It cotdde several years to realize the anticipated fitsrfedm these initiatives, if
any benefits are achieved at all. We may be urtakdehieve expected gross margin improvements opragucts or
technologies. Additionally, our business strategyrohange from time to time, which could delay ability to implement
initiatives that we believe are important to ousibess.

Our product approval, R&D, acquisition and licensinefforts may fail to generate new products and guat lifecycle
developments.

Our future success depends on both our existinduatgoortfolio, including our ability to obtain @s-clearances
enabling the use of our medicated products in cartjon with other products, approval for use of products with new
species, approval for new claims for our produspgroval of our products in new markets, and opelfie of new products,
including new products that we may develop throjoght ventures and products that we are able taiolthrough license or
acquisition. The majority of our R&D programs foaus product lifecycle development, which is defiredR&D programs
that leverage existing animal health products Wjireginew species or claims, achieving approvatein markets or creating
new combinations and reformulations. We commit tariigl effort, funds and other resources to expanpdur product
approvals and R&D, both through our own dedicatsburces and through collaborations with thirdigsart

We may be unable to determine with accuracy whemhather any of our expanded product approvalstior
existing product portfolio or any of our product®mnunder development will be approved or launcleedye may be unable to
obtain expanded product approvals or develop, sieen otherwise acquire product candidates or mtedin addition, we
cannot predict whether any products, once launcigidhe commercially successful or will achievdesaand revenues that ¢
consistent with our expectations. The animal haalflastry is subject to regional and local trendd eegulations and, as a
result, products that are successful in some ofrarkets may not achieve similar success whendotred into new markets.
Furthermore, the timing and cost of our R&D mayr@ase, and our R&D may become less predictablee¥amnple, changes
in regulations applicable to our industry may makaore time-consuming and/or costly to researekt and develop products.

Products in the animal health industry are sometidegived from molecules and compounds discovered o
developed as part of human health research. Weemizy into collaboration or licensing arrangemaevith third parties to
provide us with access to compounds and other tdobwy for purposes of our business. Such agreenagatsypically comple
and require time to negotiate and implement. Ifenter into these arrangements, we may not be altaintain these
relationships or establish new ones in the futur@aceptable terms or at all. In addition, anyadwkation that we enter into
may not be successful, and the success may depethe efforts and actions of our collaborators,clihive may not be able to
control. If we are unable to access human healtteigeed molecules and compounds to conduct R&Dostreffective terms,
our ability to develop new products could be lirdit
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We are subject to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Pracscact and other an-corruption laws or trade control laws, as well
other laws governing our operations. If we fail momply with these laws, we could be subject tol @vicriminal penalties,
other remedial measures, and legal expenses, witighld adversely affect our business, financial cotah and results of
operations.

Our operations are subject to anti-corruption languding the FCPA and other anti-corruption lawat apply in
countries where we do business. The FCPA, UK Byidext and these other laws generally prohibit u$ aar employees and
intermediaries from bribing, being bribed or makatger prohibited payments to government offical®ther persons to
obtain or retain business or gain some other besiadvantage. We operate in a number of jurisdistibat pose a high risk of
potential FCPA violations, and we participate imfosentures and relationships with third partidsose actions could
potentially subject us to liability under the FCBAlocal anti-corruption laws. In addition, we cabpredict the nature, scope
or effect of future regulatory requirements to whaur international operations might be subjedhermanner in which
existing laws might be administered or interpreted.

We are also subject to other laws and regulationgiging our international operations, includinguiations
administered by the U.S. Department of Commercei®8u of Industry and Security, the U.S. Departnoéfireasury’s
Office of Foreign Asset Control, and various norslugovernment entities, including applicable exgoritrol regulations,
economic sanctions on countries and persons, castequirements, currency exchange regulationsrandfer pricing
regulations (collectively, the “Trade Control lays”

However, there is no assurance that we will be detaly effective in ensuring our compliance withaplicable
anticorruption laws, including the FCPA or othegdérequirements, including Trade Control lawsvé are not in compliance
with the FCPA and other anti-corruption laws ordeaontrol laws, we may be subject to criminal eivd penalties,
disgorgement and other sanctions and remedial messand legal expenses, which could have an aglirapact on our
business, financial condition, results of operatiand liquidity. Likewise, any investigation of apgtential violations of the
FCPA other anti- corruption laws or Trade Conteal$ by U.S. or foreign authorities could also hameadverse impact on our
reputation, business, financial condition and rssofl operations.

The actual or purported intellectual property rightof third parties may negatively affect our busg®

A third party may sue us or otherwise make a claitheging infringement or other violation of therthparty’s
patents, trademarks, trade dress, copyrights, sadets, domain names or other intellectual ptgpaghts. If we do not
prevail in this type of litigation, we may be rerpd to:

e pay monetary damage

e obtain a license in order to continue manufactuangiarketing the affected products, which maybet
available on commercially reasonable terms, ofladia

«  stop activities, including any commercial activitieelating to the affected products, which coualdude a recall
of the affected products and/or a cessation otsaléhe future

The costs of defending an intellectual propertyneleould be substantial and could materially adelgraffect our
operating results and financial condition, eveweéfsuccessfully defend such claims.

The intellectual property positions of animal heattedicines and vaccines businesses frequentliviexxmmplex
legal and factual questions, and an issued paterg dot guarantee us the right to practice thenpedeiechnology or develop,
manufacture or commercialize the patented prodMetcannot be certain that a competitor or othedtharty does not have
will not obtain rights to intellectual property thmay prevent us from manufacturing, developingnarketing certain of our
products, regardless of whether we believe sudiléntual property rights are valid and enforceatsleve believe we would t
otherwise able to develop a more commercially ss&fed product, which may harm our financial corafitand results of
operations.

If our intellectual property rights are challengedr circumvented, competitors may be able to takeattage of our R&D
efforts. We are also dependent upon trade secwtsch generally are difficult to protect.

Our long-term success largely depends on our yidimarket technologically competitive productse Vély and
expect to continue to rely on a combination oflietgual property, including pater
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trademark, trade dress, copyright, trade secretlanthin name protection laws, as well as confidditytiand license
agreements with our employees and others, to grotedntellectual property and proprietary righfswe fail to obtain and
maintain adequate intellectual property protectiwa,may not be able to prevent third parties fr&img our proprietary
technologies or from marketing products that amy gémilar or identical to ours. Our currently pémglor future patent
applications may not result in issued patentseoafiproved on a timely basis, or at all. Similaglyy term extensions that we
seek may not be approved on a timely basis, ifl.dnaaddition, our issued patents may not contd@ms sufficiently broad to
protect us against third parties with similar temlogies or products or provide us with any competiadvantage, including
exclusivity in a particular product area. The scopeur patent claims also may vary between coesytias individual countries
have their own patent laws. For example, some cimsndnly permit the issuance of patents coveringal chemical
compound itself, and its first use, and thus furthethods of use for the same compound, may npatentable. We may be
subject to challenges by third parties regardingimtellectual property, including claims regardiwajidity, enforceability,
scope and effective term. The validity, enforcaghikcope and effective term of patents can baljigncertain and often
involve complex legal and factual questions anagedings. Our ability to enforce our patents alpethds on the laws of
individual countries and each coungypractice with respect to enforcement of intellatproperty rights. In addition, if we &
unable to maintain our existing license agreementther agreements pursuant to which third pagfast us rights to
intellectual property, including because such agergs expire or are terminated, our financial ctoniand results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

In addition, patent law reform in the United States other countries may also weaken our abilitgriforce our
patent rights, or make such enforcement financiafigttractive. For instance, in September 2011Uthiéed States enacted the
America Invents Act, which will permit enhancedrthparty actions for challenging patents and immetra first-to-invent
system, and, in April 2012, Australia enacted fitellectual Property Laws Amendment (Raising the) Bat, which provides
higher standards for obtaining patents. These mefaould result in increased costs to protect mellectual property or limit
our ability to patent our products in these jurisidins.

Additionally, certain foreign governments have gated that compulsory licenses to patents may &een in the
case of national emergencies, which could dimioiséliminate sales and profits from those regiams materially adversely
affect our operating results and financial conditio

Likewise, in the United States and other countrescurrently hold issued trademark registratiamd lsave
trademark applications pending, any of which mayheesubject of a governmental or third party ofigec which could
prevent the maintenance or issuance of the samthaadreate the potential need to rebrand or eekproduct. As our
products mature, our reliance on our trademarkifterentiate us from our competitors increases asd result, if we are
unable to prevent third parties from adopting, seging or using trademarks and trade dress tfratde, dilute or otherwise
violate our trademark rights, our business couldiag¢erially adversely affected.

Our competitive position is also dependent uporatented trade secrets, which generally are difficuprotect.
Others may independently develop substantially\edent proprietary information and techniques oy rotherwise gain
access to our trade secrets, trade secrets magdheseéd or we may not be able to protect our sightunpatented trade secr

Many of our vaccine products and other productdased on or incorporate proprietary informatiocjuding
proprietary master seeds and proprietary or padeed@ivant formulations. We actively seek to protea proprietary
information, including our trade secrets and pretary know-how, by requiring our employees, coresul, other advisors and
other third parties to execute confidentiality agnents upon the commencement of their employmagggement or other
relationship. Despite these efforts and precautimesmay be unable to prevent a third party froqyang or otherwise
obtaining and using our trade secrets or our dtfiellectual property without authorization anddégemedies may not
adequately compensate us for the damages causeathyinauthorized use. Further, others may indegmetlycand lawfully
develop substantially similar or identical produtttat circumvent our intellectual property by meahalternative designs or
processes or otherwise.

The misappropriation and infringement of our irgetlial property, particularly in foreign countrigbere the laws
may not protect our proprietary rights as fullyiraghe United States, may occ
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even when we take steps to prevent it. In the éjtwre may be party to patent lawsuits and othetl@ttual property rights
claims that are expensive and time consuming, faesolved adversely, could have a significant iotfma our business and
financial condition. In the future, we may not liBeato enforce intellectual property that relaestr products for various
reasons, including licensor restrictions and otkstrictions imposed by third parties, and thatdbsts of doing so may
outweigh the value of doing so, and this could haweaterial adverse impact on our business anddiabcondition.

Increased regulation or decreased governmental ficéal support for the raising, processing or consption of food
animals could reduce demand for our animal healthgglucts.

Companies in the animal health industry are sultigeektensive and increasingly stringent regulatidfilivestock
producers are adversely affected by new regulattorhanges to existing regulations, they may recherd sizes or become
less profitable and, as a result, they may reduee tise of our products, which may materially adety affect our operating
results and financial condition. Furthermore, adeaegulations related, directly or indirectlyttie use of one or more of our
products may injure livestock producers’ marketifpms. More stringent regulation of the livestoeidustry or our products
could have a material adverse effect on our opegagsults and financial condition. Also, many istial producers, including
livestock producers, benefit from governmental &libs, and if such subsidies were to be reducediminated, these
companies may become less profitable and, as #,nesy reduce their use of our products.

We have substantial debt and interest payment regimients that may restrict our future operations amdpair our ability to
meet our obligations under our indebtedness.

As of June 30, 2014, we had $290.1 million aggregatstanding indebtedness (reflects the prineipaunt of the
Term B Loan an d cap italized lease obligatiom®)putstanding borrowings under the Revolving GrEdctility and $17.1
million of outstanding letters of credit. Subjegtrestrictions in our Credit Facilities, we mayunsignificant additional
indebtedness. If we and our subsidiaries incuriigmt additional indebtedness, the related ritled we face could intensify.

Our substantial debt may have important conseq@ef@ instance, it could:
* make it more difficult for us to satisfy our finaakobligations, including those relating to iICredit Facilities;

*  require us to dedicate a substantial portion of@sh flow from operations to the payment of irdeeand
principal due under our debt, which will reducedaravailable for other business purposes, includamital
expenditures and acquisitior

« increase our vulnerability to general adverse egbo@nd industry condition:

« limit our flexibility in planning for or reactingotchanges in our business and the industwhich we operate

» place us at a competitive disadvantage comparédssine of our competitors that may have less debbatter
access to capital resources; i

» limit our ability to obtain additional financinggaired to fund working capital and capital expendit and for
other general corporate purpos

Our ability to satisfy our obligations and to reduaur total debt depends on our future operatimfppeance and on
economic, financial, competitive and other factongny of which are beyond our control. Our busimaag not generate
sufficient cash flow, and future financings may hetavailable to provide sufficient net proceedsneet these obligations or
to successfully execute our business strategy.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cashdovee all of our indebtedness and may be forcedatke other actions to
satisfy our obligations under our indebtedness, wiimay not be successful.

Our ability to make scheduled payments on or reftesour debt obligations depends on our finan@at@ion and
operating performance, which are subject to prexgaéconomic and competitive conditions and toatartinancial, business,
legislative, regulatory and other factors beyondaantrol. We may be unable to maintain a levetash flows from operating
activities sufficient to permit us to pay the pijred and interest on our indebtedne
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If our cash flows and capital resources are insigffit to fund our debt service obligations, we ddiake substantial
liquidity problems and could be forced to reduceelay investments and capital expenditures, dispose of material assets
or operations, alter our dividend policy, seek tddal debt or equity capital or restructure oirrahce our indebtedness. We
may not be able to effect any such alternative omeason commercially reasonable terms or at all enen if successful, tho
alternative actions may not allow us to meet otiedaled debt service obligations. The instrumdrds govern our
indebtedness may restrict our ability to disposassiets and may restrict the use of proceeds frosetdispositions and may
also restrict our ability to raise debt or equisipital to be used to repay other indebtedness vtlmtomes due. We may not
be able to consummate those dispositions or taroptaceeds in an amount sufficient to meet anyt detvice obligations
when due.

In addition, we conduct our operations throughsubysidiaries. Accordingly, repayment of our indelbiss will
depend on the generation of cash flow by our sigr$és, including our international subsidiariesdaheir ability to make
such cash available to us, by dividend, debt regayror otherwise. Our subsidiaries may not havedtigation to pay
amounts due on our indebtedness or to make furadihble for that purpose. Our subsidiaries mayh®oable to, or may not
permitted to, make distributions to enable us t&en@ayments in respect of our indebtedness. Edudidiary is a distinct leg
entity, and under certain circumstances, legalatakcontractual restrictions may limit our abilibyobtain cash from our
subsidiaries or may subject any transfer of casimfour subsidiaries to substantial tax liabilitiesthe event that we do not
receive distributions from our subsidiaries, we rhayunable to make required principal and intgagtnents on our
indebtedness.

Our inability to generate sufficient cash flowsstttisfy our debt obligations, or to refinance auwtebtedness on
commercially reasonable terms or at all, may malflgradversely affect our operating results, finahcondition and liquidity
and our ability to satisfy our obligations under mdebtedness or pay dividends on our common stock

Restrictions imposed by our outstanding indebtedséscluding the restrictions contained in our Créd-acilities, may limit
our ability to operate our business and to finanoer future operations or capital needs or to engaigeother business
activities.

The terms of the Credit Facilities contain cer@iwenants that limit our ability and that of oubsidiaries to create
liens, merge or consolidate, dispose of assetsr indebtedness and guarantees, repurchase ormrexdgstal stock and
indebtedness, make certain investments or acauisitenter into certain transactions with affillate change the nature of our
business. As a result of these covenants andatistis, we will be limited in how we conduct oursiness, and we may be
unable to raise additional debt or equity finandmgompete effectively or to take advantage of hexsiness opportunities.
The terms of any future indebtedness we may inguldcinclude more restrictive covenants. We mayh®able to maintain
compliance with the covenants in any of our debtrirments in the future and, if we fail to do se, mvay not be able to obtain
waivers from the lenders and/ or amend the covenant

We are subject to change of control provisions.

We are a party to certain contractual arrangenteatsare subject to change of control provisionghls context,
“change of control” is generally defined as inchalia) the reduction of the voting shareholdind/of Jack C. Bendheim and
his family and affiliates, the current holders ppeoximately 92.5% of the combined voting poweabfclasses of our
outstanding common stock, to below 50% in the agmfes and (b) a change in any twelve month periade majority of the
members of the Board whose appointment to, or rafrfoemn, the Board is not approved by Mr. Bendhaima/or his family
and affiliates or the majority of directors in @i at the start of such period.

Mr. Bendheim and his family and affiliates may chedo dispose of part or all of their stakes imund/or may cease
to exercise the current level of control they haver the appointment and removal of members oBmard. Any such chang
may trigger a “change of control” event that corgdult in us being forced to repay the Credit Faéed or lead to the
termination of a significant contract to which we a party. If any such event occurs, this may tieglg affect our financial
condition and operating results. In addition, weymat have sufficient funds to finance repaymeramy of such indebtedness
upon any suc“change in contrc”
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We depend on sophisticated information technologydanfrastructure.

We rely on various information systems to manageoperations, and we increasingly depend on thartigs and
applications on virtualized, or “cloud,” infrastituce to operate and support our information teobgykystems. These third
parties include large established vendors as wedhzall, privately owned companies. Failure by ¢l@®viders to adequately
service our operations or a change in control solirency of these providers could have an advdfset®n our business,
which in turn may materially adversely affect onddinancial condition and results of operations.

We may be required to write down goodwill or iddi@ble intangible assets.

Under GAAP, if we determine goodwill or identifigdintangible assets are impaired, we will be reglio write
down these assets and record a non-cash impaigharge. As of June 30, 2014, we had goodwill of.1gillion and
identifiable intangible assets, less accumulatedréimation, of $29.8 million. Identifiable intandéassets consist primarily of
developed technology rights and patents, custoretatonships, distribution agreements and tradeesaand trademarks.

Determining whether an impairment exists and thewrhof the potential impairment involves quanttatdata and
qualitative criteria that are based on estimatesessumptions requiring significant managementmuelg. Future events or
new information may change management’s valuatf@nantangible asset in a short amount of timee filming and amount
of impairment charges recorded in our consolidatatements of operations and write-downs recondedii consolidated
balance sheets could vary if management’s coneigsibange. Any impairment of goodwill or identifiatintangible assets
could have a material adverse effect on our firelr@ndition and results of operations.

We may be unable to adequately protect our custahprivacy or we may fail to comply with privacyvie.

The protection of customer, employee and compatgy idaritical and the regulatory environment sunding
information security, storage, use, processinglaissire and privacy is demanding, with the frequemptosition of new and
changing requirements. In addition, our customepeet that we will adequately protect their persam@rmation. Any actual
or perceived significant breakdown, intrusion, imigtion, cyber-attack or corruption of customenpdoyee or company data
or our failure to comply with federal, state, loeald foreign privacy laws could damage our repotaéind result in lost sales,
fines and lawsuits. Despite our considerable effartd technology to secure our computer netwodurgg could be
compromised, confidential information could be mis@priated or system disruptions could occur. Saibres could
materially adversely affect our financial conditiand results of operation.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Class A Common 8tk

Our multiple class structure and the concentratiarf our voting power with certain of our stockholdewmill limit your ability
to influence corporate matters, and conflicts ofterest between certain of our stockholders and usther investors could
arise in the future.

As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10BK] beneficially owns shares of our Class B comratmtk
representing approximately 92.5% of the combindthggpower of all classes of our outstanding comrstmck. As of the date
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, o ur other &toalders, including Mayflower, collectively own erests representing
approximately 7.5% of the combined voting powealbtlasses of our outstanding common stock. Bexafisur multiple
class structure and the concentration of votinggranith BFI, BFI will continue to be able to contall matters submitted to
our stockholders for approval for so long as BAHe@ommon stock representing greater than 50%eo€dmbined voting
power of all classes of our outstanding commonkstBE| will therefore have significant influence@vmanagement and
affairs and control the approval of all mattersuieigg stockholder approval, including the electifrdirectors and significant
corporate transactions, such as a merger or odfieo§the Company or its assets, for the forededature.

We are classified as a “controlled company” and, asesult, we qualify for, and intend to rely onxemptions from certain
corporate governance requirements. You will not lesthe same protections afforded to stockholdersafpanies that are
subject to such requirements.

BFI controls a majority of the combined voting paweé all classes of our outstanding common stockaAesult, we
are a“controlled compar” within the meaning of the NASDAQ corporz
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governance standards. Under NASDAQ rules, a compamhich more than 50% of the voting power is higydan individual,
group or another company is a “controlled compaaryd may elect not to comply with certain corpogeernance
requirements, including:

« the requirement that a majority of the Board casi$ independent directot

« the requirement that we have a nominating and catp@overnance committee and that it is compostbly
of independent director

« the requirement that we have a compensation coewrgthd that it is composed entirely of independent
directors; anc

e the requirement for an annual performance evalnatfdhe nominating and corporate governance and
compensation committee

We utilize and intend to continue to utilize thesemptions. As a result, while we currently havaaority of
independent directors:

e we may not have a majority of independent direcitotbe future;
« we will not have a nominating and corporate goveceacommittee
e our compensation committee will not consist enyiglindependent directors; a

« we will not be required to have an annual perforoeagvaluation of the compensatcommittee.

Accordingly, you will not have the same protectiaf®rded to stockholders of companies that argesuilo all of
the NASDAQ corporate governance requirements.

Our stock price may be volatile or may decline redjass of our operating performance, and you mayt e able to resell
your shares

The market price of our Class A common stock magttlate significantly in response to a number ofdies, many
of which we cannot control, including those desedilunder “—Risks Related to Our Business” and “—kRRelated to Our
Indebtedness” and the following:

e changes in financial estimates by any securitiedyats who follow our Class A common stock, ouhfag to
meet these estimates or failure of those analgststtate or maintaircoverage of our Class A common sto

« downgrades by any securities analysts who follow@lass A common stoc
» future sales of our Class A common stock by oucefs, directors and significastockholders

* market conditions or trends in our industry or geenomy as a whole and, in particular, in the ahfrealth
industry;

* investor’ perceptions of our prospec

e announcements by us or our competitors of significantracts, acquisitions, joint ventures or cpit
commitments; an

« changes in key personn

In addition, the stock markets have experienceckmé price and volume fluctuations that have aéfgéetnd contint
to affect the market prices of equity securitiesnafiny companies. In the past, stockholders havituites] securities class
action litigation following periods of market voliéy. If we were involved in securities litigatiomnve could incur substantial
costs, and our resources and the attention of neamegt could be diverted from our busine
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Our majority stockholder has the ability to contrsignificant corporate activities and our majoritstockholde’s interests
may not coincide with yours.

As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10akaproximately 92.5% of the combined voting powealb
classes of our outstanding common stock is helBFly As a result of its ownership, so long as ildsca majority of the
combined voting power of all classes of our outdtag common stock, BFI will have the ability to ¢mi the outcome of
matters submitted to a vote of stockholders amdutih our Board of Directors, the ability to comlecision-making with
respect to our business direction and policiestddabver which BFI, directly or indirectly, exeses control include:

« the election of our Board of Directors and the appoent and removal of our officet

« mergers and other business combination transaciiteiading proposed transactions that would reisuttur
stockholders receiving a premium price for thearsis;

» other acquisitions or dispositions of businessesssets
* incurrence of indebtedness and the issuance ofyesgturities
» repurchase of stock and payment of dividends;

« theissuance of shares to management under ouy éggentive plans

Even if BFI's ownership of our shares falls belomajority of the combined voting power of all clasof our
outstanding common stock, it may continue to be &binfluence or effectively control our decisions

The change of control rules under Section 382 o&tlode may limit our ability to use net operatingsk carryforwards to
reduce future taxable income.

We have net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards fiederal and state income tax purposes. Genehiy,
carryforwards can be used to reduce future taxabtame. Our use of our NOL carryforwards will beaiied, however, under
Section 382 of the Code, if we undergo a changeninership of more than 50% of our common stock eviérree-year period
as measured under Section 382 of the Code. Thesgleo change of ownership rules generally focuswnership changes
involving stockholders owning directly or indirec®% or more of our common stock, including cerfaiblic “groups” of
stockholders as set forth under Section 382 o€Citede, including those arising from new stock issearand other equity
transactions. In connection with public or privafterings we may make in the future, we may expegean ownership chan
within the meaning of Section 382 of the Code. ¢ @xperience an ownership change, the resultingadfimit on the use of
our NOL carryforwards (which would generally eqtled product of the applicable federal long-termeaempt rate,
multiplied by the value of our common stock immeéelia before the ownership change, and potentialtysased by certain
existing gains, if any, recognized within five yeafter the ownership change if we have a net-buggin in our assets at the
time of the ownership change) could result in ammegful increase in our federal and state incomdigdbility in future years.
Whether an ownership change occurs by reasondifigan our stock is not within our control and tetermination of
whether an ownership change has occurred is comieassurance can be given that we will not inftitere undergo an
ownership change that would have a significant estveffect on the use of our NOL carryforwardsadidition, the possibility
of causing an ownership change may reduce oumngiiéss to issue new common stock to raise capital.

Future sales of our Class A common stock, or theqaption in the public markets that these sales nueur, may depress
our stock price.

Sales of substantial amounts of our Class A comsback in the public market, or the perception thate sales
could occur, could adversely affect the price af Glass A common stock and could impair our abiiityaise capital through
the sale of additional shares. We have 17,442 B&fes of Class A common stock outstanding. Resttisecurities may not
sold in the public market unless the sale is regést under the Securities Act or an exemption fregistration is available
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We, each of our officers and directors, BFIl, Mawiy and our other security holders have agreedesuto certain
exceptions, with the underwriters not to disposerdiedge any of the shares of Class A common sipskcurities convertib
into or exchangeable for shares of Class A comntaeksluring the period from April 10, 2014 contingithrough October 7,
2014 (subject to extension in certain circumstap@ept, in our case, for the issuance (butmstbsequent disposition) of
Class A common stock upon exercise of options undeexisting management incentive plan. Merrilhti, Pierce, Fenner
& Smith Incorporated and Morgan Stanley & Co. LL@ynmin their sole discretion, release any of thesees from these
restrictions at any time without notice.

Following October 7, 2014, all of our outstanditgues of Class A common stock may be sold in thdipmarket
by existing stockholders, and, subject to certasirictions on converting Class B common stock @lss A common stock,
all of our outstanding shares of Class B commoaokstoay be converted into Class A common stock afdiia the public
market by existing stockholders.

Holders of approximately 2.8 million shares of @lass A common stock and approximately 21.5 milsbares of
our Class B common stock, which includes sharesiofClass B common stock issued pursuant to themaattc exercise of a
warrant on August 1, 2014, will have the rightéguire us to register the sales of their sharesuiné Securities Act, under
the terms of agreements between us and the halfldrese securities. In the future, we may alsoassur securities in
connection with investments or acquisitions. Theant of shares of our Class A common stock issnemnnection with an
investment or acquisition could constitute a matgyortion of our then-outstanding shares of o@s§IA common stock.

As an emerging growth company under the JOBS Actave eligible to take advantage of certain exempgdrom various
reporting requirements.

We are an emerging growth company, as defineddd@BS Act, and we are eligible to take advantdgeain
exemptions from various reporting requirements #natapplicable to other public companies thanateemerging growth
companies. These exemptions include, but are miteld to, (i) not being required to comply with theditor attestation
requirements of Section 404, (ii) reduced disclesabligations regarding executive compensatiorumperiodic reports and
proxy statements, and (iii) exemptions from theuregments of holding a nonbinding advisory voteegrcutive compensation
and stockholder approval of any golden parachugenpats not previously approved. We have, and maohtinue, taking
advantage of some or all of these exemptions. Iflaveontinue to take advantage of any of these pkiens, we do not know
if some investors will find our Class A common $tdess attractive as a result. The result may lessactive trading market
for our securities and our security prices may loeenvolatile. We could remain an emerging growttmpany for up to five
years, or until the earliest of (i) the last daytte# first fiscal year in which our annual grosgamues exceed $1 billion, (ii) the
date that we become a “large accelerated filededged in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act, whiclild occur if the
market value of our common stock held by nonatisaexceeds $700 million as of the last busineg®fiaur most recently
completed second fiscal quarter or (iii) the datemhnich we have issued more than $1 billion in rmonvertible debt during the
preceding three year period.

Pursuant to the JOBS Act, our independent registéqgublic accounting firm will not be required to st to the
effectiveness of our internal control over finandieeporting pursuant to Section 404 for so long a® are an “emerging
growth company’

Section 404 requires annual management assessof¢héseffectiveness of our internal control ovieahcial
reporting, starting with the annual report for slear ending June 30, 2015, that we file with th€ SBnd generally requires in
the same report a report by our independent registgublic accounting firm on the effectivenes®uwf internal control over
financial reporting. However, under the JOBS Act;, mdependent registered public accounting firrh mot be required to
attest to the effectiveness of our internal cortrar financial reporting pursuant to Section 4@4lwve are no longer an
“emerging growth company.” We could be an emergjrmvth company for up to five years.

As a public company, we are subject to financialdaather reporting and corporate governance requirents that did no
previously apply to us and that may be difficultrfos to satisfy and may divert managem'’s attention from our business.

As a public company, we are required to file anramnal quarterly reports and other information punst@ the
Exchange Act with the SEC. We are required to enthat we have the ability to prepi
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consolidated financial statements that comply \BiEC reporting requirements on a timely basis. Véeatso subject to other
reporting and corporate governance requiremerthjding the applicable stock exchange listing stéads and certain
provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the regra promulgated thereunder, which impose sigaificompliance
obligations upon us. Specifically, we are requiied

» prepare and distribute periodic reports and ottemkbolder communications in compliance with ouligdtions
under the federal securities laws and applicaldlekstxchange rule:

e maintain compliance and internal audit functioret #re more comprehensi

e evaluate and maintain our system of internal cdwiver financial reporting, and report on managetisen
assessment thereof, in compliance with the req@irgsnof Section 404 and the related rules and a¢éigok of
the SEC and the Public Company Accounting OversBoard;

» continue to enhance our investor relations fungt
e maintain internal policies, including those relatio disclosure controls and procedures;
» involve and retain outside legal counsel and actois in connection with the activitilisted above

As a public company, we are required to commitificamt resources and management time and attetuitme
above-listed requirements, which will cause ustwr significant costs and which may place a stoaiour systems and
resources. As a result, our management’s attemight be diverted from other business concerns. @iamce with these
requirements will place significant demands onlegal, accounting and finance staff and on our aeting, financial and
information systems and will increase our legal andounting compliance costs as well as our congtiemsexpense as we
may be required to hire additional accounting, femance and legal staff with the requisite techhimowledge, particularly
after we are no longer an “emerging growth compgany.

In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires thatmaintain effective disclosure controls and proces and
internal control over financial reporting. To maimt and improve the effectiveness of our disclosmmrols and procedures,
significant resources and management oversighteillequired. We will be implementing additionabgedures and processes
for the purpose of addressing the standards andresgents applicable to public companies. We exfmenicur certain
additional annual expenses related to these aetvdind, among other things, additional directarsl officers’ liability
insurance, reporting requirements, transfer agesd, fhiring additional personnel, increased awgldind legal fees and similar
expenses.

Our management and independent registered publicamting firm have determined that there are mat@riveaknesses in
our internal controls over financial reporting. Ifve fail to maintain an effective system of internabntrols over financial
reporting, we may not be able to accurately repour financial results.

Our management and independent registered puldauating firm have identified material weaknessesur
internal controls over financial reporting and audit committee has agreed with the assessmenireghanagement and
independent registered public accounting firm. Aemial weakness ia deficiency, or a combination of deficienciesiniernal
control over financial reporting such that thera igasonable possibility that a material misstatérof the annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or degon a timely basis. Our management and indepemelgistered public
accounting firm have identified the following matémweaknesses in our internal controls over finaneporting:

* We did not maintain effective internal controlsstisure processing and reporting of valid transastare
complete, accurate, and timely. Specifically, weehaot designed and implemented formal accountoligips
and procedures that define how transactions athessusiness cycles should be initiated, recondextessed
and reported and appropriatauthorized and approve

*  We did not maintain effective internal controls ptkee accounting for and disclosures of technicabanting
matters in the consolidated financial statementecBically, we did no
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maintain a sufficient complement of resources aittappropriate level of accounting knowledge, eepee an
training commensurate with our structure and firgneporting requirements. This material weaknessilted
in, among other things, our failure to properly lgpgertain income tax accounting principles witsgect to our
acquisition of OmniGen Research, LLC (“OGR”) .

«  We did not maintain effective internal controlstthestrict access to key financial systems androscto
appropriate users and ensure appropriate segragdtiuties is maintained. Certain personnel hags&to
financial application, programs and data beyondtleaded to perform their individual job resporigibs and
without independent monitoring. In addition, cemtéihancial personnel had incompatible duties dilmwed for
the creationreview and processing of certain financial datdwit independent review and authorizati

Each of these material weaknesses could resultriatarial misstatement of our annual or interinaficial
statements that possibly would not be preventetbtezcted on a timely basis. We are currently evialgahe controls and
procedures we will design and put in place to asklthese weaknesses and plan to implement appgeopréaasures as part of
this effort. The measures may include additioreffisty and other resources to strengthen interoatrols and financial
reporting. Failure to maintain an effective systfninternal controls over financial reporting cotldve a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and msults of operations. If we are unsuccessfuémadiating the material
weakness, or if we suffer other deficiencies orariat weaknesses in our internal controls in thary we may be unable to
report financial information in a timely and acderananner and it could result in a material missteent of our annual or
interim financial statements that would not be preed or detected on a timely basis, which couleanvestors to lose
confidence in our financial reporting, negativeffeat the trading price of our common stock, andlda@ause a default under
the agreements governing our indebtedness.

Failure to comply with requirements to design, ingohent and maintain effective internal controls calihave a material
adverse effect on our business and stock price.

As a public company, we have significant requiretedor enhanced financial reporting and internaitoals. The
process of designing and implementing effectiverimal controls is a continuous effort that requirego anticipate and react
changes in our business and the economic and teguknvironments and to expend significant resesito maintain a syste
of internal controls that is adequate to satisfyreporting obligations as a public company. Ifave unable to establish or
maintain appropriate internal financial reportirntrols and procedures, it could cause us todaih¢et our reporting
obligations on a timely basis, result in materigdstatements in our consolidated financial statésand harm our operating
results. In addition, we will be required, pursuemSection 404, to furnish a report by manageroanamong other things, the
effectiveness of our internal control over finaheeporting beginning with the annual report foe trear ending June 30, 2015
This assessment willeed to include disclosure of any material wealeegtentified by our management in our internaftic
over financial reporting and a statement that aulitars have issued an attestation report on teetdfeness of our internal
controls, provided that, as long as we are an “gingrgrowth company,” our independent registerealipiaccounting firm
will not be required to attest to the effectivenebeur internal control over financial reportingrpuant to Section 404. Testing
and maintaining internal controls may divert oum@gement’s attention from other matters that aittant to our business.
We may not be able to conclude on an ongoing liaatsve have effective internal control over finahceporting in
accordance with Section 404 or our independenstegid public accounting firm may not issue an atifjed opinion. If
either we are unable to conclude that we have @ffemternal control over financial reporting airandependent registered
public accounting firm is unable to provide us waih unqualified opinion, investors could lose cdefice in our reported
financial information, which could have a mateadverse effect on the trading price of our stock.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents an@lBware law might discourage or delay acquisitiotieanpts for us
that you might consider favorable.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contaiovisions that may make the acquisition of thenfany more
difficult without the approval of our Board of Ditrs. These provision
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« authorize the issuance of undesignated preferoatt sthe terms of which may be established andiages of
which may be issued without stockholder approvad] which may include super voting, special approval
dividend, or other rights or preferences supendhe right<of the holders of Class A common sto

. prohibit, at any time after BFI and its affiliatesase to hold at least 50% of the combined votowep of all
classes of our outstanding common stock, stockhald@&n by written consent, without the expresermr
consent of the Board of Directol

. provide that the Board of Directors is expresslhatized to make, alter or repeal our amended asiéted
bylaws;

. establish advance notice requirements for nominatfor elections to our Board of Directors or fooposing
matters that can be acted upon by stockholdetsekiolder meetings

. establish a classified Board of Directors, as altes which our Board of Directors will be dividedto three
classes, with each class serving for staggered-yrgar terms, which prevents stockholders fromtielg@an
entirely new Board of Directors at an annual megiand

. require, at any time after BFI and its affiliatesase to hold at least 50% of the combined votingepof all
classes of our outstanding common stock, the appaiholders of at least three quarters of thelaed voting
power of all classes of our outstanding commonkstocstockholders to amend the amended and restgtaws
or amended and restatcertificate of incorporatior

These anti-takeover provisions and other provisiomder Delaware law could discourage, delay or gmean
transaction involving a change in control of then@any, even if doing so would benefit our stockleodd These provisions
could also discourage proxy contests and make rierdifficult for you and other stockholders to eldectors of your
choosing and to cause us to take other corporéitnag/ou desire.

Our certificate of incorporation designates the Cawf Chancery of the State of Delaware as the satel exclusive forum
for certain types of actions and proceedings thaayrbe initiated by our stockholders, which couldii our stockholder’
ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for diputes with us or our directors, officers or empéss.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that, jaaih to limited exceptions, the Court of Chancefryhe State of
Delaware will be the sole and exclusive forum fpafy derivative action or proceeding brought on loehalf, (i) any action
asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty dweg any of our directors, officers or other emgey to us or our
stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a claimiagt us arising pursuant to any provision of tkedaivare General Corporation
Law, our certificate of incorporation or our by-layor (iv) any other action asserting a claim agfairs that is governed by the
internal affairs doctrine. Any person or entity gheising or otherwise acquiring any interest in ebaif our capital stock shall
be deemed to have notice of and to have consemtbeé fprovisions of our certificate of incorporatidescribed above. This
choice of forum provision may limit a stockholdeaBility to bring a claim in a judicial forum thatfinds favorable for
disputes with us or our directors, officers or otbeployees, which may discourage such lawsuitsagas and our directors,
officers and employees. Alternatively, if a couer® to find these provisions of our restated dedti€ of incorporation
inapplicable to, or unenforceable in respect o€ onmore of the specified types of actions or pedings, we may incur
additional costs associated with resolving sucherstn other jurisdictions, which could adversaffect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation codlhave the effect of preventing us from having thenefit of certain
business opportunities that we would otherwise béteed to pursue.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that Bffid its affiliates are not required to offer cogteropportunities of
which they become aware to us and could, theretdfer, such opportunities instead to other compimeluding affiliates of
BFI. In the event that BFI obtains business opputies
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from which we might otherwise benefit but choosestn present such opportunities to us, these giavs of our restated
certificate of incorporation could have the effeEpreventing us from pursuing transactions orti@feships that would
otherwise be in the best interests of our stocldrsld

We may not pay cash dividends in the future and aa®sult, you may not receive any return on inwasint unless you are
able to sell your Class A common stock for a prgreater than your initial investment.

Though we currently intend to pay an aggregateddivil of approximately $15.6 million per year on 6laiss A and
Class B common stock and our Board of Directorsdeatared a cash dividend of $0.10 per share oss@acommon stock
and Class B common stock which is payable on Sdpe@v, 2014, any determination to pay dividendhéfuture will be at
the discretion of our Board of Directors and wijpgbnd upon results of operations, financial coadjtcontractual restrictions,
and our ability to obtain funds from our subsidéario meet our obligations. Accordingly, realizataf a gain on your
investment will depend on the appreciation of theegpof our Class A common stock.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

The following table lists our material properties:

Approx. sq.

Business Segment(: Location Owned/Leasec Footage Purpose(s)

Animal Health Beit Shemesh, Israel Land lease 31,000 Manufacturing and
Researcl

Animal Health Braganca Paulista, Brazil Owned 44,000 Manufacturing and
Administrative

Animal Health Corvallis, Oregor Owned 5,000 Researcl

Animal Health Guarulhos, Brazil Owned 1,294,000 Manufacturing, Sales,
Premixing, Research and
Administrative

Animal Health Hannibal, Missour Land lease 44,275 Manufacturing

Animal Health Manhattan, Kanse Leasec 1,355 Researcl

Animal Health Naot Hovav, Israe Land lease 140,000 Manufacturing and
Researcl

Mineral Nutrition Omaha, Nebrask Owned 84,000 Manufacturing

Animal Health Petach Tikva, Isras Owned 60,000 Manufacturing

Animal Health and Quincy, lllinois Owned 260,000 Manufacturing, Sales,

Mineral Nutrition Research and
Administrative

Performance Santa Fe Springs, Californi  Owned 108,000 Manufacturing

Products

Animal Health St. Paul, Minnesot Leasec 4,200 Researcl

Corporate Teaneck, New Jersey Leased 44,800 Corporate and

Administrative

In addition to the above facilities, we maintaitesaoffices throughout the world in countries irdihg the United
States, Canada, Mexico, Brazil, Argentina, Chihe, tynited Kingdom, Belgium, Turkey, Israel, Southiiéa, China, Malaysia
and Australia.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are from time to time subject to claims andydition arising in the ordinary course of busing$ese claims and
litigation may include, among other things, allégas of violation of United States and foreign catitpon law, labor laws,
consumer protection laws, and Environmental Lawgs
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regulations, as well as claims or litigation reigtto product liability, intellectual property, sgtties, breach of contract and
tort. We operate in multiple jurisdictions and,aasult, a claim in one jurisdiction may lead f@iras or regulatory penalties
other jurisdictions.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, we recedriaz$5.4 million loss in our consolidated stateneéoperation:
on the insurance claim previously recorded as aetak 2010, certain customers claimed damag#eiopoultry resulting
from the use of one of our animal health produdis.believed we were entitled to coverage for tiadnoéd damages under our
insurance policies, above any applicable sadfired retention or deductible. Our insuranceiearefused to cover the damay
claimed and denied coverage. We instituted a lagtidn to enforce our rights under the policiesibutune 2014 the trial cot
ruled against us. We have appealed the trial codsctision. In July of 2014, we reached settlemeittsand made payments
to our customers for their claims in amounts apjpnaxely equal to the liability previously accrued.

We are currently a defendant in a mass tort lavesaritmenced in 2007 by a class of approximatelycifdens who
live in the area of the Naot Hovav (formerly Raatvav) Industrial Local Council in Israel, agaitis¢ Industrial Council an
the State of Israel, and including as addition&déants 18 manufacturers in the Industrial Counciuding our Koffolk
subsidiary, based on alleged injury (including luligeases, symptoms of cancer and miscarriages,tfre Industrial
Council’s plants and the sewage treatment fadglitien by the Industrial Council). In January 20th®, Be'er Sheva District
Court rejected the plaintiffs’ claims. The plaifgihave appealed the judgment and the hearindhedsibed for
September 2014. The plaintiffs initially requestieanages against all defendants totaling NIS 18domi{or approximately
US $54 million based on currency conversion ratesfaune 30, 2014) when the lawsuit was commeimc2a07.

We, our subsidiary C.P. Chemicals, Inc. (“CP”) atider defendants reached a phased settlement Wittr@n
U.S.A. Inc. (“Chevron”), and a Settlement Agreemamd Consent Order (the “Consent Order”) was fded entered by the
United States District Court for the District of Wdersey (the “Court”), resolving a 1997 compldiled by Chevron. The
complaint alleged that the operations of CP aséwaren, New Jersey plant affected adjoining ptgperned by Chevron ar
we were also responsible to Chevron. Pursuanet€tinsent Order, CP, the Company and co-defendsyady Vulcan Corp.
(“Vulcan™), through an entity known as North Fidigttension, LLC (“NFE"), acquired a portion of th&&vron property. NFE
will proceed with any required investigation anchegliation of the acquired property and also assuesgbnsibility for
certain types of environmental conditions (if thexyst) on the portion of the property retained the@on. We (together with
CP) and Vulcan will each be responsible for 50%hefinvestigation and remediation costs, whichtatge paid by us directly
or through NFE. We believe that insurance recosesiél be available to offset some of those coatmther defendant also
made a $0.2 million contribution toward the remédiacosts to be incurred by NFE. Chevron retairesgonsibility for
further investigation and remediation of certaiaritfied environmental conditions on the portiortted property retained by
as well as in one area of the property acquireNBE.

We do not believe that the ultimate resolutionhefse actions will have a material adverse effeawrfinancial
position, results of operations, liquidity or capitesources. However, one or more unfavorableoous in any claim or
litigation against us could have a material adveftect for the period in which they are resolviedaddition, regardless of
their merits or their ultimate outcomes, such matége costly, divert management’s attention any materially adversely
affect our reputation, even if resolved in our favo

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
None.
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PART II

Iltem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases oEquity
Securities

Market Information for Common Stock

Our registration statement on Form S-1, as ame(fiENo. 333-194467), was declared effective Apfl| 2014 .
On April 16, 2014, we completed the initial puldifering (“IPO”) of 14,657,200 shares of Class Araoon stock (including
the exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotmentiap at a price to the public of $15.00 per sh&reonnection with the IPO,
we issued and sold 8,333,333 shares of Class A constock and the proceeds to us were approximéiely,429, after
deducting underwriting discounts of approximateBy4B88 and net offering expenses payable by usmapnately $2,133.
There has been no material change in the use oéeds from the IPO as described in our final prosisefiled with the SEC
on April 14, 2014 pursuant to Rule 424(b)(4). Imcection with the IPO, Mayflower sold 6,323,867 reflseof Class A commi
stock including 1,911,808 shares of Class A comstook pursuant to the exercise of the underwritevsr-allotment option.
We did not receive any proceed s from shares soMdyflower.

Immediately following the consummation of the IP@lafter giving effect to the 0.442-for-1 stockisahd
reclassification of our common stock which tookgelammediately prior to the completion of the IRkEere were 38,791,553
total shares outstanding, consisting of 17,442@88tanding shares of Class A common stock and81680 outstanding
shares of Class B common stock. Shares of ClasglACtass B common stock entitle the holders tovarte and ten votes per
share, respectively, on all matters to be votetiyostockholders generally. Shares of Class A ard<CB common stock have
identical economic rights.

Our Class A common stock is listed on NASDAQ untthertrading symbol “PAHC.” Our Class B common stk
not listed or traded on any stock exchange. THeviahg table sets forth the high and low salesgper share of our Class A
common stock on NASDAQ.

Fourth Quarter 2014
(Beginning April 11,

2014)
High $ 23.7¢
Low $ 15.1(

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, wendicsell any unregistered securities nor did welpase any of our
equity securities. On August 1, 2014, a commonkspaechase warrant for the purchase of 386,750shafrClass B common
stock, held by BFI, was automatically exercised| g&id the exercise price of $11.83 per share ocashless basis, resulting in
a net issuance of 163,675 shares of Class B constochk to BFI.

Holders of Record

As of September 9, 2014, there were 17,442,953 sharour Class A common stock outstanding, whiehevheld
by 2 stockholders of record , not including beriafiowners of shares registered in nominee or strame. As of September
2014, there were 21,512,275 shares of our ClagsBron stock outstanding, which were held by onekstolder of record.
Information about 5% beneficial owners of our conmstock is incorporated by reference from the dismn under the
headingSecurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners Ma&hagemenin our 2014 Proxy Statement.

Dividend Policy

We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends tadleo$ of our Class A and Class B common stock oatséts
legally available for this purpose. On July 28, 2@Lir Board of Directors declared a $0.10 per shaeaterly dividend to
holders of record as of September 3, 2014 of oas€A and Class B common stock, payable Septerdh@024. Any future
determination to pay dividends will depend uj
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our results of operations, financial condition, it@lrequirements, our ability to obtain funds framr subsidiaries and other
factors that our Board of Directors deems relevadditionally, the terms of our current and anyufiet agreements governing
our indebtedness could limit our ability to payidends or make other distributions.

Stock Performance Graph

This performance graph is not “soliciting materials not deemed “filed”with the SEC and is not to be incorpora
by reference in any filing of the Company underSeeurities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exahavog.

The following graph shows a comparison from Apti| 2014 (the date our Class A common stock comntence
trading on NASDAQ) through June 30, 2014 , of thenalative stockholder return of our Class A comrstatk, the S&P 500
Index, the Russell 2000 Index and S&P 500 Pharnigedsi Index. The graph assumes that $100 was tewes the market
close on April 11, 2014 , in our Class A commorcktdhe S&P 500 Index, the Russell 2000 Index a&g 500
Pharmaceuticals Index. The stock price performahoevn on the graph is not necessarily indicativiifre stock price
performance, and we do not make any projectioristafe stockholder returns.

Comparison of Cumulative Stockholder Return
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Date

The following table presents our selected const#difinancial data and certain other financial d@tee balance
sheet data as of June 30, 2014, 2013, 2012, 2@lL2G4D and the results of operations data andft@sk data for the years
then ended were derived from our audited cons@dlfihancial statements. The consolidated finardash and other financial
data presented below should be read in conjunetiimour consolidated financial statements andré&ted notes thereto,
under the sections entitled “Financial Statements@upplementary Data” and “Management’s Discusai@hAnalysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, except per share amount:

Results of operations datz

Net sales $691,91: $653,15. $654,10. $618,330 $594,20¢
Cost of goods sol 484,13¢ 474,18 489,96. 471,66¢ 439,47t
Gross profit 207,77! 178,96 164,13¢ 146,66! 154,73:
Selling, general and administrative exper 143,98: 122,23! 114,81« 105,42¢ 101,92!
Operating incom: 63,79 56,73: 49,32¢ 41,23¢ 52,80¢
Interest expense, n 32,96: 35,62¢ 35,41¢ 34,28¢ 34,377
Foreign currency (gains) losses, 1,75: 3,10: 1,197 (5,759 (1,27%)
Loss on extinguishment of de 22,77: — — 20,00z —
Other (income) expense, r — 151 (400) 592 10¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme

taxes 6,30¢ 17,84¢ 13,11« (7,889 19,59¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax 9,43t (7,049 6,13¢ 5,03: 3,792
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (3,129 24.,89: 6,97¢ (12,92) 15,80¢
(Loss) from discontinued operations, net of incdmes — — — — (3,359
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of

income taxe: — — — — 29,60:
Net income (loss $ (3,127) $ 24,89 $ 6,97¢ $ (12,92) $ 42,05
Income (loss) per share from continuing operatibasie

and dilutec $ (010 $ 08 $ 028 $ (042 $ 0.5z
Income (loss) per share from discontinued operation

basic and dilute: — — — — 0.8¢€
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute $ (010 $ 08 $ 020 $ (042 $  1.3¢
Weighted average common shares outstandiagic an

diluted 32,19: 30,45¢ 30,45¢ 30,45¢ 30,45¢
Dividends per shar $ 08 $ 01C $ — $ 164 $ —
Other financial data
EBITDA $ 60,72: $ 7250( $ 66,06 $ 43,008 $ 9544
Adjusted EBITDA 90,591 75,75¢ 66,85: 57,93: 68,31:
Cash provided (used) by operating activiti®s (712) 1,437 31,98¢ (4,359 29,75¢
Capital expenditure 19,84¢ 19,947 14,82 21,63t 15,97:

54




TABLE OF CONTENTS

As of June 3C 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Balance sheet da

Cash and cash equivalel $ 11,82 $ 27,36¢ $ 53,90 $ 4859¢ $ 62,70¢
Working capital 177,99¢ 153,67 127,47, 13638 121,30
Total asset 472,32: 474,14 440,90¢ 435,69: 425,28°
Total debt ) 289,39. 365,60 350,12: 357,99t 289,25¢
Long-term debt and other liabilitie 344,73t 427,67t 403,27 389,31° 319,45:
Total shareholde’ equity (deficit) 15,14¢ (68,939 (88,229 (69,06¢) (10,209

1)

)

®3)

(4)

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firdi@ondition and Results of Operations— Generaktdption of
nor-GAAP financial measur?” for descriptions of EBITDA and Adjust¢EBITDA.

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Net income (loss $(3,127) $24,89: $ 6,97¢ $(12,92) $ 42,05:
Plus:
Interest expense, n 32,96: 35,62¢ 35,41¢ 34,28¢ 34,377
Provision (benefit) for income tax 9,43¢ (7,047) 6,13¢ 5,03: 3,792
Depreciation and amortizatic 21,45¢ 19,02 17,52 16,69¢ 15,22:
EBITDA 60,72: 72,50( 66,06( 43,09t 95,44:
Loss on insurance clai 5,35( — — — —
Plant consolidation cos — — — — 28¢
Foreign currency (gains) losses, 1,75: 3,10: 1,192 (5,759 (1,27%)
Loss on extinguishment of de 22,77 — — 20,00: —
Other (income) expense, r — 151 (400) 598 10¢
Loss from discontinued operations,
net of income taxe — — — — 3,35¢
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations,
of income taxe! — — — — (29,609)
Adjusted EBITDA $90,597 $75,75¢ $66,85:. $ 57,93¢ $ 68,31
Cash provided (used) by operating activit
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Adjusted EBITDA $ 90597 $ 75,75« $ 66,85 $ 57,93 $ 68,31
Interest paic (45,370 (33,829 (34,059 (30,079 (31,385
Income taxes pai (12,207 (7,06)) (7,217 (3,799 (297)
Payment of premiums and costs on extinguis
debt (17,20¢) — — (15,579 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities a1
other items (16,527 (33,439 6,417 (12,839 (6,879
Net cash provided (used) by operating activi $ (712 $ 1437 §$ 31,98 § (4359 § 29,75¢

We define working capital as total current assetsl(ding cash & cash equivalents) less total cudiabilities

(excluding current portion of loi-term debt)

Total debt includes revolving credit facility, cent and long-term portions of long-term debt arpitedized lease

obligations.
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Iltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

Introduction

Our management’s discussion and analysis of fideoindition and results of operations (“MD&A”) isovided to
assist readers in understanding our performanaeflasted in the results of our operations, onaficial condition and our
cash flows. The following discussion summarizessigaificant factors affecting our consolidated igtimg results, financial
condition, liquidity and cash flows as of and foe tperiods presented below. This MD&A should bel ieéaconjunction with
the “Selected Financial Data” and our consoliddieahcial statements and related notes theretaded under the section
entitled “Financial Statements and SupplementaaD®ur future results could differ materially fnoour historical
performance as a result of various factors sudha@se discussed in “Risk Factors” and “Forward-lingkStatements.”

Overview of our business

Phibro Animal Health Corporation is a global diviesl animal health and mineral nutrition compaWje develop,
manufacture and market products for a broad rafémod animals including poultry, swine, beef arard cattle and
aquaculture. Our products help prevent, controltegat diseases, enhance nutrition to help imphaadth and performance
and contribute to balanced mineral nutrition. ldiéidn to animal health and mineral nutrition prothy we manufacture and
market specific ingredients for use in the perscaa¢, automotive, industrial chemical and chengegdlyst industries. We
sell more than 1,200 product presentations in 6Berountries to approximately 2,900 customers.

Factors affecting our performance

Industry growth

According to Vetnosis, a research and consulting fipecializing in global animal health and vetarjinmedicine,
the global livestock animal health sector represemajpproximately $ 13.3 billion of sales in 201BeTmarket grew at a
compound annual growth rate of 6% between 2006284@& and, excluding the impact of foreign exchartige market is
projected to grow at a compound annual growth adsgpproximately 6% per year between 2012 and 28%discussed
below, we believe several trends have supportedséhdontinue to support this growth.

Regulatory Developmeni

The issue of the potential transfer of antibactegsaistance from bacteria from food-producing aalsrto human
bacterial pathogens, and the causality and imgabia transfer, are the subject of global sciémahd regulatory discussion.
Antibacterials refer to molecules that can be usetdeat or prevent bacterial infections and aselacategorization of the
products that make up our medicinal feed additpasfolios. In some countries, this issue has tegdvernment restrictions
the use of specific antibacterials in some fooddpoing animals, regardless of the route of adnratisin (in feed, water,
intramammary, topical, injectable or other routedministration). These restrictions are more gestan countries where
animal protein is plentiful and governments ardimglto take action even when there is scientificertainty. In
December 2013, the FDA announced a plan to phaseveua three-year period the use of medicallydrtamt antibacterials
administered in animal feed or water for growthrpation in food producing animals. Medically impartantibacterials
include classes that are prescribed in animal anciin health and are listed in the Appendix of tB&fCVM Guidance for
Industry (GFI) #152. The FDA plan objectives arealbed in GFI #209 and provide for the continued af medically
important antibacterials in food-producing aninfalstreatment, control and prevention of diseasegfapeutic’use) under th
supervision of a veterinarian. The FDA indicateat fih took this action to help preserve the efficaEmedically important
antibacterials to treat infections in humans.

In the United States, the antibacterial productbiwiour poultry business, our largest busineghigregion, as well
as our cattle business, have both approved thetiegad non-therapeutic indications. We believesdobon current producer
usage patterns, that the large majority of usauofpooducts in these segments is for therapeutiggzes. We currently
generate a portion of our revenues from antibaateri
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products sold for use in turkey and swine in théé¢hStates where we do not currently have thet&pelaims that match our
customers’ usage patterns. We intend to ensurethatntibacterial product offerings are in fulgaiment with the FDA'’s
guidance documents within the FDA's three-year engntation period, and will pursue both new andtiatél therapeutic
claims for these products with the FDA. Howeveeréhcan be no assurance that we will be succaasbbtaining such claim
While it is difficult to predict exactly what impathe removal of non-therapeutic claims for ourdarcts that are medically
important antibacterials will ultimately have onr@ales, we estimate that, based on our customsagie patterns, had we
voluntarily decided to withdraw all of our non-thpeutic claims for these products in the UnitedeStaand did not add any
new therapeutic claims for these products, our MF@ther net sales would have been reduced by appaizly $15 to $20
million for our fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

Competition

The animal health industry is highly competitivee\believe many of our competitors are conductindR&tivities
in areas served by our products and in areas iohaae are developing products. Our competitoraikelithe animal health
businesses of large pharmaceutical companies auibffy animal health businesses. In addition tmpetition from
established participants, there could be new etsttarthe animal health medicines and vaccinessingin the future. Princip
methods of competition vary depending on the regspecies, product category or individual productsiuding reliability,
reputation, quality, price, service and promotioweéterinary professionals, pet owners and livdsfmoducers.

Foreign exchange

We conduct operations in many areas of the wanlhliving transactions denominated in a varietywfencies. In
fiscal year 2014, we generated approximately 37%uofrevenues from operations outside the U.S.oAlgih a portion of our
revenues are denominated in various currencieseliag prices of the majority of our sales ougsitle United States are
referenced in U.S. dollars and as result our reggrwe not significantly directly affected by cuecg movements. We are
subject to currency risk to the extent that outsase denominated in currencies other than thosdiich we earn revenues.
We manufacture some of our major products in Brazd Israel and production costs are largely denatad in local
currencies, while the selling prices of the produe largely setin U.S. dollars. As such, weeagmsed to changes in cost of
goods sold resulting from currency movements ang ma& be able to adjust our selling prices to dffseh movements. In
addition, we incur selling and administrative exgeEnin various currencies and are exposed to chamgeich expenses
resulting from currency movements. Because ounfired statements are reported in U.S. dollars, ghain currency
exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and othiegraties have had, and will continue to have, guaichon our results of
operations.

Climate

The animal health industry and demand for manyuofamimal health products in a particular region @ifected by
changing disease pressures and by weather corgliisrusage of our products follows varying weaplaterns and weather-
related pressures from diseases. As a result, weerperience regional and seasonal fluctuatiomaiirresults of operations.

In addition, livestock producers depend on thelakdity of natural resources, including abundaibfall to sustain
large supplies of drinking water, grasslands amdhgoroduction. Their animals’ health and theidiabto operate could be
adversely affected if they experience a shortageesh water due to human population growth ordialroughts or other
weather conditions. In the event of adverse weatbeditions or a shortage of fresh water, livestpducers may purchase
less of our products.

Product development initiative

Our future success depends on both our existinduyetgoortfolio, including our ability to obtain @s-clearances
enabling the use of our medicated products in cartjon with other products, approval for use of products with new
species, approval for new claims for our produapgroval of ou
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products in new markets, and our pipeline of neadpcts, including new products that we may devéopugh joint ventures
and products that we are able to obtain througinie or acquisition. The majority of our R&D pragsafocus on product
lifecycle development, which is defined as R&D pangs that leverage existing animal health prodigtadding new species
or claims, achieving approvals in new markets eating new combinations and reformulations. We cdraobstantial effort,
funds and other resources to expanding our pragpmtovals and R&D, both through our own dedicatsurces and through
collaborations with third parties.

Initial Public Offering and Refinancing
See “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeritstial Public Offering and Refinancing ” for dels of thelPO
and refinancing.

Sources and Uses of Procee

The following table summarizes the sources and abpsoceeds in connection with the April 2014 sai€lass A
common stock in the IPO, entry into the Revolvingdit Facility and Term B Loan and retirement of ptevious

indebtedness:
Amount
(in

Sources millions)
Term B Loan $290.(
Class A common stoc 125.(
Total Sources $415.(
Uses
Repay 9.25% senior notes due July 1, 2 $300.(
Repay term loan payable to Mayflower due DecemlePB16 24.C
Repay term loan payable to BFI due August 1, 2 10.C
Repay previous outstanding domestic senior creditity 36.C
Pay call premium and make whole on senior n 17.2
Pay fees and expens 15.¢
Cash added to the Balance St 12.C
Total Uses $415.(

Our pro forma interest cost on our new debt stmectas if the transactions had occurred at thenpéwy of fiscal
year 2014, would have been $13.9 million, a savafggl9.2 million compared to the actual interdst@3.1 million. Our pro
forma interest is based on a 4.0% interest ratxfe as of June 30, 2014.

Recent acquisitions and licensing activities

Acquisition of AquaVet

In January 2014, we completed the acquisition efafjuaculture assets of AquaVet, a leading aquaeuleterinary
consulting and contract research firm based irelsfar aggregate consideration of $0.9 milliongpéucontingent incentive
payment based on the future results of our aquareutiusiness. Through this transaction, we arebby a well-respected
team of aquaculture professionals with strong egpee in product development providing technicapsut to leading
aquaculture producers throughout the world. Our aguaculture team will initially be focused on itBnng, testing and
obtaining regulatory approvals for our current faio of animal health products for use in aquaadt as well as the
identification, development and commercializatidmew products.

Acquisition of OmniGer

In December 2012, we acquired OGR , includingights to OmniGen -AF patents and related intellecpuoperty
and certain property, plant and equipment. Omni@Eris a proprietary nutritional specialty producat helps maintain a da
cow’s healthy immune system. Prior to the transactive had been the exclusive manufacturer andetarkf OmniGen-AF
for 9 years, under a licensing arrangement with C
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The purchase price was $22.8 million, with an @itash payment of $18.5 million and deferred paysief $4.3
million. We paid $1.0 million in December 2013. Aral deferred payments of $1.0 million are due ohefore December 20,
2014 and 2015. A final deferred payment of $1.3iamilis due on or before December 20, 2016. Intésesccrued and payal
solely on the final installment at the rate of 5@fiaally from December 20, 2012 to the date of payme

Adjusted EBITDA would have increased by $2.0 milliand $4.0 million for the years ended June 303201d
2012, respectively, on a pro forma basis as itrtfwesaction occurred at the beginning of fiscaryg€l2. The improvement
results from the elimination of royalties previguphid to OGR, net of operating expenses relatedtpired R&D activities.

License agreemer

In June 2012, we entered into a long-term liceggeament with a major global animal health comp@arshare in
the use of our proprietary vaccine delivery techggl Under the arrangement, use of the technolejynited to the licensee
for animal uses worldwide, and to us and our rethgeaffiliates. Financial terms of the agreemewniuded a $5 million non-
refundable payment to us which we received at sigand contingent future payments totaling $8 onillibased on the earlier
of achievement of technical and regulatory mileetoand specified dates corresponding to such milest In addition, we w
receive royalties on future sales by the licendg@aducts that utilize the technology, with reg@aiminimum annual royalties
for the years 2016 to 2026, subject to the lice'ssight to terminate the license agreement for @ason upon payment of a
termination paymen
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Analysis of the consolidated statements of operatis

Summary Results of Operatior

Change
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2014/ 201¢ 2013 /201Z
(in thousands, except per share

Net sales $691,91: $653,15: $654,10: $ 38,76 6% $ (950 (0)%
Gross profit 207,77" 178,96- 164,13¢ 28,81 16% 14,82t 9%
Selling, general and administrative

expense: 143,98: 122,23 114,81- 21,74¢ 18% 7,41¢ 6 %
Operating incom: 63,79 56,73: 49,32 7,06% 12% 7,40¢€ 15%
Interest expense, n 32,96: 35,62¢ 35,41¢ (2,667 (7)% 21C 1%
Foreign currency (gains) losses,

net 1,75¢ 3,10¢ 1,19: (1,350 (44)% 1,911  160%
Loss on extinguishment of de 22,77: — — 22,77 * — *
Other (income) expense, r — 151 (400 (157) * 551 *
Income (loss) before provision

(benefit) for income taxe 6,30¢ 17,84¢ 13,11« (11,540 (65)% 4,73¢ 36%
Provision (benefit) for income

taxes 9,43¢ (7,049 6,13¢ 16,47¢ * (13,18) *
Net income(loss) $ (3.12) $ 24,89: $ 6,97¢ $(28,01¢) & $17,91¢ 257%
Net income(loss) per share—basic al

diluted $ (0.10 $ 0.82 $ 0.2¢
Weighted average common shares

outstandin—-basic and dilute: 32,19! 30,45¢ 30,45¢
Ratio to net sale

Gross profil 30.0% 27.4% 25.1%

Selling, general and administrativ

expense: 20.8% 18.7% 17.6%
Operating incom: 9.2% 8.7% 7.5%
Income (loss) before provision
(benefit) for income taxe 0.9% 2.7% 2.0%

Net income(loss) (0.5)% 3.8% 1.1%

Effective tax rate 149.6% (39.5)% 46.8%

Certain amounts and percentages may reflect rogratijustments
* Calculation not meaningft

Changes in net sales from period to period primaeisult from changes in volumes and average gefiiices.
Although a portion of our net sales is denominatedarious currencies, the selling prices of thgamty of our sales outside
the United States are referenced in U.S. dollarsl,as a result , our revenues are not signifigalittctly affected by currency
movements.

Our effective income tax rate varies significarittym period to period and from the federal statyt@ate, primarily
due to the mix of income tax provisions on profieaforeign jurisdictions and no income tax benbkéing recorded on
domestic pre-tax losses. We have approximately.$ ddlion of federal NOLs and the provision doex recognize income
tax benefits or the related deferred tax assetbitist more likely than not that such assets w#l realized. Our fiscal year 2014
effective tax rate was affected by $3.2 millionnthholding taxes on the repatriation of certairefgn earnings. Our fiscal
year 2013 effective rate was affected by a $9.lianibenefit that resulted from the accountingtfte OGR acquisition. At the
point when our domestic tax provision is no longfected by valuation allowances, we expect oumatized effective tax
rate in the future periods to approximate 30%. 8e axpect we will continue to not record U.S. im&taxes on most
undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiar
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Net sales, Adjusted EBITDA and reconciliation of @ net income to Adjusted EBITD,

We report Net Sales and Adjusted EBITDA by segmeninderstand the operating performance of eacmeeg
This enables us to monitor changes in net saless emd other actionable operating metrics ategenent level. See “—
General description of non-GAAP financial measufes’descriptions of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA.

Segment net sales and Adjusted EBITDA:

Net Sales Change
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2014 / 201% 2013 /2012
(in thousands)

MFAs and othe $326,56¢ $303,74: $290,53! $22,82¢ 8%  $13,20¢ 5%

Nutritional Specialtie: 63,06¢ 52,337 47,68¢ 10,73: 21% 4,651 10%

Vaccines 41,417 28,86 36,94¢ 12,55¢ 44% (8,085 (22)%
Animal Health $431,05! $384,94. $375,16 46,11 12% 9,774 3%
Mineral Nutrition 201,59¢ 203,16 210,09: 1,570 (1)% (6,929 (3)%
Performance Produc 59,26: 65,04 68,84 5,779  (9)% (3,802) (6)%
Total $691,91« $653,15. $654,10. $38,76: 6% $ (950 (0)%

Adjusted EBITDA Change
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2014/ 201¢ 2013/201%
(in thousands)

Animal Health $100,28( $ 82,99° $ 70,45¢ $17,28: 21%  $12,54: 18%
Mineral Nutrition 11,63¢ 12,06¢ 13,00} (433 (4)% (93¢) (7)%
Performance Produc 4,62¢ 2,927 5,132 1,69¢ 58% (2,205 (43)%
Corporate (25,94%) (22,239 (21,747) (3,70¢) * (49¢) *
Total $ 90,59: $ 75,75« $ 66,85 $14,84: 20% $ 8,90: 13%
Adjusted EBITDA ratio to segment net sa

Animal Health 23.3% 21.6% 18.8%

Mineral Nutrition 5.8% 5.9% 6.2%

Performance Produc 7.8% 4.5% 7.5%

Corporate”) B.7)% (3.4)% (3.3)%

Total ) 13.1% 11.6% 10.2%

(1) reflects ratio to total net sal
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A reconciliation of net income, as reported und&A®, to Adjusted EBITDA:

Change
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2014 / 201 2013/ 201:
(in thousands)

Net income (loss $ (3,127 $24,89. $ 6,97¢ $(28,01%) * $17,91F 257%
Interest expense, n 32,96: 35,62¢ 35,41¢ (2,667) (7)% 21C 1%
Provision (benefit) for income tax 9,43t (7,049 6,13¢ 16,47¢ * (23,187 *
Depreciation and amortizatic 21,45:¢ 19,02: 17,52 2,43( 13% 1,49¢ 9%

EBITDA 60,72! 72,50( 66,06( Q1,777 (16)% 6,44( 10%
Loss on insurance clai 5,35( — — 5,35( * — *
Foreign currency (gains) losses, 1,75: 3,10: 1,192 (1,350 (44)% 1,911 160%
Loss on extinguishment of de 22,77 — — 22,77 * — *
Other (income) expense, r — 151 (400) (157) * 551 *

Adjusted EBITDA $90,597 $7575¢ $66,85 $14,84: 20% $ 8,90z 13%

Adjusted net income

We report Adjusted Net Income to portray the resaftour operations prior to considering certagoime statement
elements. See “—General description of non-GAARial measures” for more information.

A reconciliation of net income (loss), as reporteder GAAP, to adjusted net income:

As Reported Adjustments Adjusted
For the Years Ended
June 30 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
(in thousands, except per share amount:
Selling, general an
administrative
EXPENS9§1) $143,98: $122,23¢ $114,81- $(10,320 $(4,32)) $(3,249) $133,66: $117,91. $111,57:
Operating income (los: 63,79« 56,73 49,32¢ 10,32( 4,321 3,24: 74,11« 61,05: 52,56¢
Foreign currency (gain:
losses, ne 1,758 3,108 1,192 (1,759 (3,109 (1,199 — — —
Loss on extinguishment
debt 22,77: — — (22,777) — — — — —
Other (income) expens
net — 151 (400) — (157) 40C — — —
Income (loss) befor
provision (benefit) for
income taxe: 6,30¢ 17,84¢ 13,11« 34,84¢ 7,57t 4,03t 41,15: 25,42! 17,14¢
Provision (benefit) for
income taxes? 9,43¢ (7,04%) 6,13¢ 2,772 14,10« 1,07¢ 12,20 7,061 7,210
Net income $ (3,127) $ 24,89. $ 6,97¢ $32,07: $(6,529) $ 2,95¢ $ 28,94t $ 18,360 $ 9,932
Net income per sha
basic $ (0.10 $ 0.8z $ 0.2¢ $ 10 $(021) $ 01C $ 0.9C $ 0.6C $ 03¢
diluted $ (0.10 $ 082 $ 0.2t $ 09 $ (021 $ 01C $ 0.8¢ $ 0.6C $ 03¢
Weighted average
common shares
outstanding
basic 32,19¢ 30,45¢ 30,45¢ 32,19t 30,45¢ 30,45¢ 32,19: 30,45¢ 30,45¢
diluted 32,19t 30,45¢ 30,45¢ 32,49( 30,45¢ 30,45¢ 32,49( 30,45¢ 30,45¢
Ratio to net sale
Selling, general an
administrative
expense 20.8% 18.7% 17.6% 19.3% 18.1% 17.1%
Operating income
(loss) 9.2% 8.7% 7.5% 10.7% 9.3% 8.0%
Income (loss) before
provision (benefit)
for income taxe 0.9% 2.7% 2.0% 5.9% 3.9% 2.6%
Net income (0.5)% 3.8% 1.1% 4.2% 2.8% 1.5%
Effective tax rate 149.6% (39.5)% 46.8% 29.7% 27.8% 42.1%

1)

Selling, general and administrative expense adjasteninclude the loss on insurance claim of $5j85014 and

acquisition intangible amortization of $4,897, #6land $3,048 and stock-based compensation expéf38, $215 and
$195 for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 ah?| respectively

(2) We adjust the provision (benefit) for income tateseflect cash income taxes paid in the per
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Comparison of fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 20d.3

Net sales

Net sales of $691.9 million increased $38.8 million6%, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2GEslcompared to
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, due to $48libmof growth in Animal Health, partially offsedy declines in Mineral
Nutrition and Performance Produc

Animal Health

Net sales of $431.1 million grew $46.1 million,13%, primarily due to volume growth across all predgroups.
MFAs and other grew $22.8 million, or 8%, primarilye to volume growth in the United States, Brdzlkin America,and the
Asia Pacific region s. Nutritional specialty protkigrew $10.7 million, or 21%, primarily due to Us®lume growth of our
products for the dairy industry and their introdaistin select European countries. Vaccines grew6sigllion, or 44%,
principally from the introduction of new productsseveral markets and volume growth in most markets

Mineral Nutrition

Net sales of $201.6 million decreased $1.6 millimn1%. Our decision to deemphasize
low - margin, volatile lysine sales accounted féri$million of the reduction. Increased volumesrate mineral products
partially offset the reduction.

Performance Product

Net sales of $59.3 million decreased $5.8 mill@n9%, due to lower average selling prices for evggmsed
products for the catalyst industry and reduced melsi of a low margin industrial chemical. Volumewtio in other industrial
chemicals partially offset the decline.

Gross profit

Gross profit of $207.8 million increased $28.8 rill, or 16%, to 30.0% of net sales, with all of improvement
coming from Animal Health. Animal Health gross praficreased $30.1 million, with approximately $ 2illion due to
volume growth and favorable product mix, $ 0.6 imilldue to lower unit costs, $ 4.5 million due tgher average selling
prices and other items and a $2.3 million beneditf the OGR acquisition. Lower unit costs primarilgre due to improved
operating efficiencies from capital expenditured eeduced production costs from favorable currenoyements related to t
Brazilian Real. MFAs and other contributed $12.Tion of the increase due to volume growth, favéegtroduct mix and
lower unit costs. Nutritional specialty productstdbuted $8.2 million of the increase primarilyedto volume growth, higher
average selling prices and a $2.3 million beneditf the OGR acquisition, which was a result oféhmination of royalty
expense previously included in cost of goods Séétcines gross profit increased $9.3 million priradly due to volume
growth. Mineral Nutrition gross profit decreasedI$fillion due to reduced margins from competitbemditions which were
partially offset by increased volumes of low - margroducts. Performance Products gross profitefesad $1.2 million due to
lower average selling prices and lower volumestigdr offset by lower product costs.

Selling, general and administrative expens

SG&A expenses of $144.0 million increased $21.7iomi) or 18%. Included in the increase is a $5.4ioni loss on
an insurance claim as described in the next pgpagr&xcluding the loss attributable to the insaealaim, SG&A expenses
increased $16.4 million, or 13%. Animal Health aoued for $14.4 million of the increase, drivendajes and marketing and
development spending. Selling headcount and retate#teting support increased in Brazil, Mexico &fdna to support MF/
and vaccine initiatives and in the U.S. and Eurtmpsupport the expansion of our products to theydadustry. Development
spending focused on product lifecycle extensiomstdased amortization of intangible assets and dyereciation added
$1.9 million. The OGR acquisition added $0.6 miiliof costs which primarily consisted of researcti davelopment
expenditures. Performance Prodiexpenses decreased $2.7 mill
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primarily due to lower environmental remediatiorstso Corporate expenses, excluding the loss oimslieance claim,
increased $4.2 million due to increases in salad/wage related costs, business development costsylting fees and
professional fees , in part related to the costsenfg a public company .

During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, we recedriaz$5.4 million loss in our consolidated statenaéoperation:
on the insurance claim previously recorded as aetak 2010, certain customers claimed damag#eiopoultry resulting
from the use of one of our animal health produdis.believed we were entitled to coverage for tiadnoéd damages under our
insurance policies, above any applicable sadfired retention or deductible. Our insuranceiearefused to cover the damay
claimed and denied coverage. We instituted a lagtidn to enforce our rights under the policiesibutune 2014 the trial cot
ruled against us. We have appealed the trial codsctision. In July of 2014, we reached settlemeittsand made payments
to our customers for their claims in amounts apjpnaxely equal to the liability previously accrued.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA of $90.6 million increased $14.8llioh, or 20%. Animal Health adjusted EBITDA incszal
$17.3 million, or 21%, due to sales growth andeased gross profit, partially offset by increas&&8 expenses. Mineral
Nutrition decreased $0.4 millic, or 4%, due to slightly lower operating marginerfBrmance Products increased $1.7 million
or 58% , primarily due to reduced environmentalediation costs. Corporate expense increased $3i@mdue to increases
in salary and wage related costs, business developrosts, consulting fees and professional feepart related to the costs
of being a public company . Adjusted EBITDA excladke loss on the insurance claim.

Interest expense, ne

Interest expense, net of $33.0 million decreased B&llion due to the net result of issuing the MeB Loan and
Revolving Credit Facility in April 2014, retirindné Mayflower T erm L oan, the BFI T erm L oan ahd D omestic S enior C
redit F acility in April 2014 and redeeming the 32 Senior Notes in May 2014.

Foreign currency (gains) losses, net

Foreign currency (gains) losses, net amountedtttoases of $1.8 million and $3.1 million in 2014da2013,
respectively. Foreign currency losses in the campeniod were primarily due to the movement of Hraurkey and Argentina
currencies relative to the U.S. dollar. Foreigrrency gains and losses primarily arise from interpany balances.

Loss on extinguishment of del

Our consolidated statements of operations for g gnded June 30, 2014 , included a $22.8 miltiss on
extinguishment of debt consisting of redemptiomgten paid and the write-off of original issue disav and deferred
financing costs related to retired debt. In Apfill2, we retired a $24.0 million term loan payabl&tayflower, a$10.0 million
term loan payable to BFI and outstanding borrowimgger our domestic senior credit facility. In M2§14 , we retired $300.0
million of 9.25% senior notes due 2018.

Provision (benefit) for income taxe

We recorded a $9.4 million provision for incomedaxn consolidated pre-tax income of $ 6.3 milli@presenting
149.6% effective tax rate. The tax provision is poised primarily of income taxes relating to cartprofitable foreign
jurisdictions and foreign withholding taxes, pdijiaffset by a benefit from the recognition of tan previously unrecognize
tax benefits. We generated a taxable loss frondoarestic operations and established a valuatiowalice to offset the
income tax benefit. The provision included $3.2lioml of foreign withholding taxes resulting frometipayment of a dividend
by our Israel operationto Phibro.
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Comparison of fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 @0d2

Net sales

Fiscal year 2013 net sales of $653.2 million desedab1.0 million, or less than 1%, for the fisoahyended June 30,
2013, as compared to the fiscal year ended Jun203@, as $9.8 million of growth in Animal Healtlasvoffset by declines in
Mineral Nutrition and Performance Products. Neeésarowth was $4.0 million, or 1%, excluding thieef of the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012 revenue of $5.0 million froenlitensing of vaccine delivery technology.

Animal Health

Net sales of $384.9 million grew $9.8 million, &%3due to volume growth of MFAs and other and tioimal
specialty products, partially offset by lower volesnof vaccines. Net sales growth was $14.8 millilw®%, excluding the
effect of the fiscal year 2012 revenue of $5.0ionillfrom the licensing of vaccine delivery techrjloMFAs and other net
sales grew $13.2 million, or 5%, principally frormlume growth and included $6.4 million of growthLiatin America and
South America, principally Mexico and Brazil, anél.$ million of growth in China on increased demand timing of
customer deliveries. Growth was in the poultry anihe sectors and expansion into the cattle sett@sazil and Mexico.
Nutritional specialty products grew $4.7 milliom, 0%, primarily due to U.S. volume growth of Omeit-AF and Animate
and the introduction of OmniGen-AF in certain Ewap countries. Vaccines net sales decreased $Bidnmexcluding the
effect of the fiscal year 2012 licensing revenu@qgipally from timing of deliveries due to a tratisn of distribution in China
and lower sales in Israel, partially offset by $million of growth in Turkey as we changed to aedirsales approach. Vaccine
sales decreased $5.0 million due to the fiscal 28&e licensing revenue of vaccine delivery tecbggl

Mineral Nutrition

Net sales of $203.2 million decreased $6.9 millimn3%, reflecting a $9.0 million sales reductiaredo our decisio
to deemphasize lysine sales. Trace mineral volunees approximately level to the prior year, exchgdthe lysine volumes.

Performance Product

Net sales of $65.0 million decreased $3.8 million6%, primarily due to a $7.9 million decreasenirtower unit
volumes in the personal care and automotive inisstpartially offset by $4.3 million of higher aage selling prices in the
industrial sector.

Gross profit

Gross profit of $179.0 million increased $14.8 riil, or 9%, to 27.4% of net sales for the fiscalryended June 30,
2013, as compared to the fiscal year ended Jun203@, with all the improvement coming from Aninkégalth. Gross profit
growth was $19.8 million, or 12%, excluding theeeffof the fiscal year 2012 gross profit of $5.0lioni from the licensing of
vaccine delivery technology. Animal Health grossfjpincreased $20.2 million, excluding last yeagt®ss profit from the
licensing of vaccine delivery technology, with apgmately $10.0 million due to volume growth angdeable product mix,
$7.7 million due to lower unit costs and other iteamd a $2.5 million benefit from the OGR acquisitiLower unit costs
primarily were due to reduced production costs ffaxorable currency movements related to the BeaziReal and improved
operating efficiencies from capital expenditures:Ad and other contributed $16.6 million of the &#&se on volume growth,
favorable product mix and lower unit costs. Nutritl specialty products contributed $4.6 milliortle increase on volume
growth and a $2.5 million benefit from the OGR asdion, due to the elimination of royalty expenseviously included in
cost of goods sold. Excluding the fiscal year 20ddss profit from the licensing of vaccine delivéeghnology, vaccines gross
profit decreased $1.0 million due to volume dedingartially offset by favorable product mix. MiaéNutrition gross profit
decreased $1.0 million due to reduced margins frompetitive conditions on approximately level voksnPerformance
Products gross profit increased $0.6 million a®fable product mix and improved average sellinggwioffset volume
declines.
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Selling, general and administrative expens

Selling, general and administrative expenses o2®lLillion increased $7.4 million, or 6%, for tfiecal year ende
June 30, 2013, as compared to the fiscal year ehase 30, 2012. Animal Health accounted for $3.amiof the increase,
driven by sales and marketing spending. Sellinglbeant and related marketing support increasedapiiynin: (i) Turkey for
the completion of our direct sales organizatioij,Biazil and Mexico to support MFA initiatives, éuiii) the U.S. and Europe
to support the expansion of OmniGen-AF and Aninatihe dairy industry. Depreciation and amortizatiecreased $1.7
million, primarily in Animal Health due to amortitian of OGR acquired intangibles. The OGR acquisithlso added $0.5
million of R&D costs. Our R&D expenses were $6.8lion for the year, focused primarily on produdetiycle management
and development of our nutritional specialty pradwand vaccines technologies. R&D expense decresédnillion on
timing of project spending. Mineral Nutrition exes were equal to the prior fiscal year. Perforra@oducts expense
increased by $3.0 million, primarily due to incred€nvironmental remediation costs. SG&A includegpBrate expense of
$24.8 million, an increase over the prior year @®#million, including $0.4 million of increasedgfeciation expense.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA of $75.8 million increased $8.9 lioih, or 13%, for the fiscal year ended June 30, @&s
compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 201@rdafipg income growth was $12.4 million, or 28%clerling the effect of
the fiscal year 2012 income of $5.0 million frone ficensing of vaccine delivery technology. Anirhtalth’s operating
income increased by $16.6 million, excluding thieefof the licensing of vaccine delivery technglpdue to increased gross
profit partially offset by increased SG&A expensineral Nutrition operating income decreased $tillion, or 9%, due to
reduced unit margins as volumes were approximdehi with last year. Performance Products opegaticome decreased
$2.4 million, or 47%, primarily due to increased/ieonmental remediation costs. Corporate expensesuated for the
remaining increase.

Interest expense, ne

Interest expense, net of $35.6 million increase@ #dlllion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2HS8compared to
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, as higheageeamounts outstanding under the domestic ser@dit ¢acility were
partially offset by reduced interest charges dugaigment of a note payable.

Foreign currency (gains) losses, net

Foreign currency (gains) losses, net were $3.Janitind $1.2 million in the fiscal year s endedel@0, 2013 and
2012, respectively. Foreign currency losses irctiveent period primarily were due to the movemédnimgentine, Brazilian
and Asia Pacific currencies relative to the U.Slado

Provision (benefit) for income taxe

Income tax provision (benefit) of ($7.0) million sveecorded on consolidated pre-tax income of $awli®n. The
current year provision included a tax benefit ofi$@illion resulting from a reversal of a portiohaur previously established
deferred tax valuation allowance. The reversal regsired to offset deferred tax liabilities estabéd as part of the OGR
acquisition. Our effective tax rate also reflectsame tax provisions primarily from profitable faye jurisdictions. No
provision for U.S. federal income taxes was recdra® our domestic operations generated a pre-$axWe have recorded
valuation allowances related to substantially etlseferred tax assets in certain significant tevsglictions. We will continue
to evaluate the likelihood of recoverability of seedeferred tax assets based upon actual and edpgarating performanc
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Analysis of financial condition, liquidity and capital resources

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalest

Change
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2014 /201 20137201
(in thousands)

Cash provided by/(used ir

Operating activitie! $ (712 $ 1,437 $31,98 $ (2,149 $(30,55)

Investing activities (19,419 (38,35  (17,74) 18,94¢ (20,619

Financing activitie: 4,77¢ 10,87¢ (8,21¢) (6,096 19,09:
Effect of exchanc-rate changes on cash and cash equiva (203) (48E) (72E) 282 24C
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis. $(15,549) $(26,53) $ 530: $10,98: $(31,83)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities e@mprised of:
Change
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012 2014 /201 2013/201
(in thousands)

Adjusted EBITDA $90,59°7 $75,75¢ $66,85: $14,84: $ 8,90z
Interest paic (45,37() (33,829 (34,059 (11,546 23t
Income taxes pai (12,20)) (7,06)) (7,217) (5,146 15€
Payment of premium and costs on extinguished (17,209 — — (17,20 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities anerdtms (16,527 (33,43) 6,412 16,90¢ (39,849
Net cash provided (used) by operat )

activities $ (712 $ 1437 $3198 $ (2,149 $(30,55)

Certain amounts may reflect rounding adjustments.

Operating activities

For the year ended June 30, 2014, net cash usepdgiting activities was $0. 7 million. Cash usedided a $17.2
million payment of premiums relating to the extifhment of debt. Interest payments of $45.4 milliere unusually high
due to the timing of an additional interest paymamthe Senior Notes as part of the refinancing.odlats receivable used
$14.7 million of cash, primarily resulting from salgrowth and an overall increase in accountsvabki days sales
outstanding (“DSO”) by 2 days due to growth in megional markets.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, cash providegérating activities was $ 1.4 million. Operatirsgets and
liabilities used $3 3 .8 million of cash, includig5.1 million of cash used for inventory. The int@y increase was the result
of producing for expected future volume demandsraalling certain opportunistic purchases at faverabicing.

Investing activitie:

For the year ended June 30, 2014, net cash usedesting activities was $19. 4 million. Capitalpexditures were
$19.8 million as we continued to invest in our &Rrig asset base and for capacity expansion andedsttions.

We expect our capital expenditures will total apjmmaately $25 million in fiscal year 2015, primarifgr the Animal
Health segment, including investments for the cargd expansion of production capacity and costatashs.
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For the year ended June 30, 2013, cash used istingeactivities was $ 38.4 million. The OGR anHest
acquisitions used $18.7 million. Our capital expanés totaled $19.9 million and included investisefor the expansion of
production capacity for the Animal Health segm&hnir capital expenditures also included investmenteduce manufacturil
costs and improve production efficiencies for dartf our animal health products.

Financing activities

For the year ended June 30, 2014, net cash probiglidancing activities was $4.8 million. The IR®@ovided
$114.4 million of net cash from the issuance of mewmon shares. The refinancing used $78.8 mitiiomet cash, including
proceeds from long term debt of $289.3 million aeplayments of our domestic senior credit facilitg éong term debt of
$368.1 million. In March 2014, prior to the IPO, waid a $25.0 million dividend to our stockholders.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, cash providdicdnycing activities was $10.9 million. In 2013, Wwerroweda ne
$20.0 million from our domestic senior credit fityil In addition, we made a $3.0 million dividendyment and the final $5.0
million payment on the Teva term loan.

Liquidity and capital resource

W e believe our cash on hand, our operating castsfand our financing arrangements, including treglability of
borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility dockign credit lines , will be sufficient to suppaur future cash need®Our
operating plan projects adequate liquidity throughbe year. However, we can provide no assurdrateour liquidity and
capital resources will be adequate for future fagdiequirements. We believe we will be able to clympth the terms of the
covenants under the Revolving Credit Facility ameign credit lines based on our operating plarthénevent of adverse
operating results and/or violation of covenantsaurtte facilities , there can be no assurance wddame able to obtain
waivers or amendments . Other risks to our medtige funding requirements include global econoouinditions and
macroeconomic, business and financial disruptibas¢ould arise. There can be no assurance thah#ienging economic
environment or an economic downturn would not intac liquidity or our ability to obtain future fancing.

Certain relevant measures of our liquidity and dpesources follow:

Change
As of June 3C 2014 2013 2012 2014 /201 2013/ 201;
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalel $ 11,82: $ 27,36¢ $ 53,90( $(15,54f) $(26,53)
Working capital 177,99¢ 153,67 127,47 24,32: 26,20t
Ratio of current assets to current liabilit 2.63:1 2.33:] 2.06:1

We define working capital as total current assexsl(iding cash and cash equivalents) less totaéouliabilities
(excluding current portion of long-term debt). Wadaullate the ratio of current assets to currenilliees based on this
definition.

At June 30, 2014, we had no outstanding borrowimgter the Revolving Credit Facility. We had outsliag letters
of credit and other commitments of $17.1 milliogaving $82.9 million available for borrowings aettérs of credit. In
addition, we had availability totaling $15.0 milliander our Israeli loan agreements.

We currently intend to pay quarterly dividends,resgnting $15.6 million annually on our Class A &lidss B
common stock, subject to approval from the BoarBioéctors. Our Board of Directors has declaredshalividend of $0.10
per share on Class A common stock and Class B constock which is payable on September 24, 2014.

At June 30, 2014, our cash and cash equivalenlisded $9.8 million held by our international subiaites. There a
no restrictions on cash distributions to PAHC frour international subsidiaries. We consider theaiemmg funds to be
indefinitely reinvested in our international opésas, based on our operating plan. Should our ptaasge and we decide to
repatriate some or all of the remaining cash
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by our international subsidiaries, the amountstréegiad would be subject to federal and state iretemes at statutory rates,
with the potential for partial offsetting creditr ftaxes paid to international jurisdictions. Wereatly have U.S. federal and
state NOLs that would be available to offset incdroen the repatriation of such cash and cash etgiits to the extent not
used to offset other income. As such, no significamrent income taxes would be payable to fedmratate authorities from
the repatriation of such cash and cash equivaleritssuch NOLs have been fully used. For finanoggdorting purposes, the
use of the NOLs would result in the release oflaation allowance currently recorded to offset th&ie of the NOLs. The
provision for income taxes would not be signifidgrffected by the repatriation, to the extentta telease of the existing
valuation allowance.

Analysis of the consolidated balance sheets

Change
2014/
As of June 3C 2014 2013 2012 2013 2013/ 201
(in thousands)
Accounts receivab—trade $113,85¢ $99,137 $99,14( $14,72: $(3)
DSO 56 54 53

Certain amounts and percentages may reflect rogratljustments.

DSO average was 50 to 60 days across all our ms#seand geographies. Payment terms outside thard.S
typically longer than in the U.S. For the periodsgented, we have maintained our overall averageuats receivables DSO
between 53 and 56 days. We regularly monitor oooats receivable for collectability, particulaiycountries where
economic conditions remain uncertain. We beliewa ¢lur allowance for doubtful accounts is apprdpri®ur assessment is
based on such factors as past due history, hiat@iw expected collection patterns, the finaremaldition of our customers,
the robust nature of our credit and collection picas and the economic environment. We calculat® B&sed on a 360 - day
year and compare accounts receivable with salagbéoguarter ending at the balance sheet date.

Change
2013/
As of June 3C 2014 2013 2012 2014 / 201% 2012
(in thousands)
Inventories $143,18: $140,03: $ 120,12 $ 3,152 $ 19,90¢

Inventory increased by $3.2 million in 2014, priihadue to increases in the Animal Health segment.

Contractual obligations

Payments due under contractual obligations asraf 30, 2014 , were:

Years
Over 1to Over 3to
Within 1 3 5 Qver 5 Total
(in thousands)
Long-term debt (including current portio $ 296¢ $ 582 $ 580C $275500 $290,09:
Revolving credit facility — — — — —
Interest payment 12,46¢ 24,57¢ 23,92¢ 19,58: 80,55:
Lease commitment 4,48¢ 7,72¢ 5,70( 4,66¢ 22,58
Deferred consideration on acquisitic 1,45¢ 2,50¢ 107 234 4,29¢
Total contractual obligatior $2137¢ $40,63¢ $3553: $299,98! § 397,52

Excluded from the contractual obligations tabléhis liability for unrecognized tax benefits totai$7.4 million. Thi
liability for unrecognized tax benefits has beenleded because we cannot make a reliable estini#te periods in which th
liability will be realized.

Our Board of Directors declared a cash dividen§i®ol0 per share on Class A common stock and ClassrBnon
stock, representing $3.9 million payable on Sepem24, 2014.
Off-balance sheet arrangements

We do not currently use off-balance sheet arrangésrfer the purpose of credit enhancement, hedgargactions,
investment or other financial purpos
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In the ordinary course of business, we may indeyrmmifr counterparties against certain liabilitieattmay arise.
These indemnifications typically pertain to envimental matters. If the indemnified party were tdkma successful claim
pursuant to the terms of the indemnification, weuldde required to reimburse the loss. These indferations generally are
subject to certain restrictions and limitations.

General description of non-GAAP financial measures

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is an alternative view of perforntanused by management as our primary operatinguresaasnd
we believe that investors’ understanding of oufgremance is enhanced by disclosing this performameasure. We report
Adjusted EBITDA to portray the results of our ogéas prior to considering certain income statengaments. We have
defined EBITDA as net income plus (i) interest enges net, (ii) provision for income taxes or leegdfit for income taxes,
and (iii) depreciation and amortization. We havérdsl Adjusted EBITDA as EBITDA plus (a) (incomesk from, and
disposal of, discontinued operations, (b) othere@se or less other income, as separately repontedroconsolidated
statements of operations, including foreign curyegains and losses and loss on extinguishmentldf dad (c) certain items
that we consider to be unusual or non-recurring Atjusted EBITDA measure is not, and should notibwed as, a
substitute for GAAP reported net income.

The Adjusted EBITDA measure is an important intemeaasurement for us. We measure our overall pedace or
this basis in conjunction with other performancenus. The following are examples of how our AdegsEBITDA measure is
utilized:

e senior management receives a monthly analysisodperating results that is prepared on an Adjus@IDA
basis;

e our annual budgets are prepared on an Adjusted BRBIGasis; anc
e other goal setting and performance measuremenfzepared on an Adjusted EBITCbasis.

Despite the importance of this measure to manageimgoal setting and performance measurement, sieil
EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure that hastemdardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and, therehas limits in
its usefulness to investors. Because of its stamdardized definition, Adjusted EBITDA, unlike @R net income, may not
comparable to the calculation of similar measufestteer companies. Adjusted EBITDA is presentedeamit investors to
more fully understand how management assessegiperice.

We also recognize that, as an internal measurerfdgmance, the Adjusted EBITDA measure has linutet, and w
do not restrict our performance management prasasdy to this metric. A limitation of the Adjust&BITDA measure is that
it provides a view of our operations without indlugl all events during a period, such as the degtieci of property, plant and
equipment or amortization of purchased intangitdes, does not provide a comparable view of ourgoerénce to other
companies.

Certain significant items

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted net income are caltadaprior to considering certain items. We evaligieh items
on an individual basis. Such evaluation consideth the quantitative and the qualitative aspe¢hefr unusual or non-
operational nature. Unusual, in this context, meyresent items that are not part of our ongoingness; items that, either as a
result of their nature or size, we would not exgedatccur as part of our normal business on a aeddsis. An example of an
unusual item is the loss on extinguishment of dshirred in fiscal years 2014 and 2011. We condialeign currency gains
and losses to be non-operational because theymisgpally from intercompany transactions and largely non-cash in
nature.

Adjusted Net Income

Adjusted net income is an alternative view of perfance and we believe investors’ understandingiof o
performance is enhanced by disclosing this perfaneaneasure. We report Adjus!
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Net Income to portray the results of our operatiprigr to considering certain income statement elets1 We have define
adjusted net income as net income plus (i) othpeese or less other income, as separately repontedr consolidated
statements of operations, including foreign curyegeins and losses and loss on extinguishmentluf (i§ amortization of
acquired intangibles, (iii) stock- based compensatiiv) certain items that we consider to be umilisn non-recurring and (v)
income taxes on a cash basis. The Adjusted Netrlaqoeasure is not, and should not be viewed agystitite for GAAP
reported net income.

Adjusted Net Income is a non-GAAP financial meaghet has no standardized meaning prescribed by R5aud,
therefore, has limits in its usefulness to investBecause of its non-standardized definition, Atjd Net Income, unlike
GAAP net income, may not be comparable to the taticun of similar measures of other companies. Adjd Net Income is
presented to permit investors to more fully underdthow management assesses performance.

New accounting standards

For discussion of new accounting standards, seée8\o@ Consolidated Financial Statements— Sumnfary o
Significant Accounting Policies and New Accounti®@gndards .”

Significant accounting policies and application otritical accounting estimates

In presenting our financial statements in confoymiith GAAP, we are required to make estimatesasglimptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, ltaslinet sales, costs and expenses and relatddstises.

We believe that the following accounting policigs aritical to an understanding of our consoliddtedncial
statements as they require the application of tbstmifficult, subjective and complex judgments aheérefore, could have the
greatest impact on our financial statements.

Acquisitions, Intangible Assets and Goodw

Our consolidated financial statements reflect therations of an acquired business starting fronttmepletion of
the transaction. Assets acquired and liabilitiesiareed are recorded at the date of acquisitioneat thir values, with any
excess of the purchase price over the fair valfiiseonet assets acquired recorded as goodwill.

Significant judgment is required to determine thie ¥alue of certain acquired assets and in assigthieir respective
useful lives. Accordingly, we typically obtain thssistance of third-party valuation specialistssfgnificant tangible and
intangible assets. The fair values are based aiteblahistorical information and on future expéittas and assumptions
deemed reasonable by management, but are inhetertidytain. We typically use an income method tasnee the fair value
of intangible assets, which is based on forecdstseoexpected future cash flows attributable ®réspective assets.
Significant estimates and assumptions inherertenvaluations reflect a consideration of other regplace participants, and
include the amount and timing of future cash fl¢imsluding expected growth rates and profitability)e underlying product
or technology life cycles, economic barriers tagmind the discount rate applied to the cash fldwsnticipated market or
macroeconomic events and circumstances could dffecccuracy or validity of the estimates and mggions. Determining
the useful life of an intangible asset also requjuelgment. Our estimates of the useful lives t#ngible assets are based on
factors including competitive environment, undertyiproduct life cycles, operating plans and thense@onomic environment
of the countries in which the products are sold.ofbur acquired intangible assets are expectdthte determinable useful
lives. The costs of intangible assets are amortiaekpense over their estimated lives.

Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill

We periodically review our long-lived and amortilEmintangible assets for impairment and assessetheh
significant events or changes in business circumstgindicate that the carrying value of the assetg not be recoverable.
Such circumstances may include a significant deseréathe market price of an asset, a significdaeese change in the
manner in which the asset is being used or inhysical
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condition or a history of operating or cash flowdes associated with the use of an asset. An imeairloss may be
recognized when the carrying amount of an asseteslsthe anticipated future undiscounted cash feoypected to result fro
the use of the asset and its eventual disposifiba.amount of the impairment loss to be recordeghy, is calculated by the
excess of the asset’s carrying value over itsvi@ine. In addition, we periodically reassess themeged remaining useful lives
of our longlived assets. Changes to estimated useful liveddnaftect the amount of depreciation and amortizatiecorded il
the consolidated statements of operations. We hawexperienced significant changes in the carryeige or estimated
remaining useful lives of our long-lived or amoatite intangible assets in the periods includetiénconsolidated financial
statements.

We evaluate goodwill for impairment annually by quaring the book value to the fair value of the réipg unit to
which the goodwill relates. If circumstances chasigmificantly, we would also test a reporting tsigoodwill for impairment
during interim periods between its annual tests.détermine the fair value of the reporting unitsigs discounted cash flow
analysis method. Considerable management judgmectt, as assumptions of forecasted growth ratedliandunt rate, is
necessary in arriving at the fair value. Applicataf alternative assumptions, such as change®iagtimate of future cash
flows, could produce significantly different resulBecause of the significance of the judgmentseatichation processes, it is
likely that different amounts could be recordedé used different assumptions or if the underlydgmgumstances were to
change. During the quarter ended June 30, 2014erfermed the annual goodwill impairment test aateétmined that none
the goodwill was impaired.

We evaluate our investments in equity method ireessfor impairment if circumstances indictitet the fair value ¢
the investment may be impaired . The assets uridgréy$5.1 million equitynvestment are currently idled; we have conclu
the investment is not currently impaired, base@xpected future operating cash flows and/or didpadae.

Environmental Liabilities

Our operations and properties are subject to extefsderal, state, local and foreign environmeritablth and safe
laws and regulations, including those governindupioin; protection of the environment; the use, agement and release of
hazardous materials, substances and wastes; @isiens; greenhouse gas emissions; water use, sapplgischarge; the
investigation and remediation of contamination; ienufacture, distribution, and sale of regulatedemials, including
pesticides; the importing, exporting and transgmneof products; and the health and safety ofeuployees and the public.
As such, the nature of our current and former dBra and those of our subsidiaries expose us andubsidiaries to the risk
of claims with respect to such matters, includimg$, penalties and remediation obligations that beaimposed by regulatory
authorities. We record accruals for contingencibemit is probable that a liability has been inedrand the amount can be
reasonably estimated. These accruals are adjustestijzally as assessments change or additionairivdtion becomes
available.

Pension Liabilities

The measurement of our pension and postretiremesreflh obligations are dependent on a variety stiagptions
determined by management and used by our actudtiese assumptions affect the amount and timirigtafe contributions
and expenses. The Company reassesses its beaafagdumptions on a regular basis. The discountsavaluated on
measurement dates and modified to reflect the gieganarket rate of a portfolio of high-qualityxid-income debt
instruments that would provide the future cash foweded to pay the benefits included in the beokligation as they come
due. At June 30, 2014 , the discount rate for thm@any’s U.S. pension plan was 4.5% compared & &0June 30, 2013.
The expected rate of return on plan assets of Tefffesents the average rate of return expectee ¢atmed on plan assets ¢
the period the benefit obligations are expectduktpaid. In developing the expected rate of retilme Company considers
long-term compound annualized returns of histoncatket data as well as actual returns on the Cogipalan assets.

For discussion of pension liabilities, <*Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem— EmployeeBenefit Plans.”
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Revenue Recognitio

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of title andmwiisk of loss passes to the customer. Certaiuiobusinesses
have terms of FOB shipping point where title arstt Bf loss transfer on shipment. Certain of oulifesses have terms of F(
destination where title and risk of loss transfedelivery. In the case of FOB destination, reveisugt recognized until
products are received by the customer. Additionab@ions for recognition of revenue are that passee evidence of an
arrangement exists, the selling price is fixed etedminable, collections of sales proceeds ar@neddy assured and we have
no further performance obligations. We record estéd reductions to revenue for customer progrardsrarentive offerings,
including pricing arrangements and other volumeelascentives, at the time the sale is recordega®pand licensing
income from licensing agreements are recognizezhased under the terms of the related agreemedtararincluded in net
sales in the consolidated statements of operatideisSales also include shipping and handling fééed to customers.
Delivery costs to our customers are included irt obgoods sold on the statements of operations.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes includes U.S. feljetate, and foreign income taxes, as well asdareithholding
taxes. Our annual tax rate is determined basedipimocome, statutory tax rates and tax planningoojipities available in the
various jurisdictions in which we operate and #reitmpacts of items treated differently for taxpases than for financial
reporting purposes. Tax law requires certain itemicluded in the tax return at different timeartlihe items are reflected in
the financial statements. Some of these differeacepermanent, such as expenses that are nottitdelirc our tax return, ar
some differences are temporary, reversing over,timeh as depreciation expense. These tempordeyeatites create deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assetergdly represent the tax effect of items that camged as a tax deduction or
credit in future years for which we have alreadyoreed the tax benefit in our income statementebedl tax liabilities
generally represent tax expense recognized inioanéial statements for which payment has beerr@efethe tax effect of
expenditures for which a deduction has already leleen in our tax return but has not yet been naizegl in our financial
statements or assets recorded at fair value imbessicombinations for which there was no correspgrtdx basis adjustment.

Significant judgment is required in determining ¢&x provision and in evaluating our tax positiofise recognition
and measurement of a tax position is based on reamagt’s best judgment given the facts, circumstaoe information
available at the reporting date. Inherent in deiimg our annual tax rate are judgments regardimirtess plans, planning
opportunities and expectations about future outcorRealization of certain deferred tax assets, gmiljnnet operating loss
carryforwards, is dependent upon generating sefiiciaxable income in the appropriate jurisdictiior to the expiration of
the carryforward periods. We establish valuatidovednces for deferred tax assets when the amoustpEcted future taxable
income is not likely to support the use of the ddign or credit.

We operate in multiple jurisdictions with complextpolicy and regulatory environments. In certdithese
jurisdictions, we may take tax positions that mamagnt believes are supportable, but are potensaliject to successf
challenge by the applicable taxing authority. Welesate our tax positions and establish liabilitreaccordance with the
applicable accounting guidance on uncertainty @omme taxes. We review these tax uncertaintieght bf changing facts and
circumstances, such as the progress of tax aagitsadjust them accordingly.

Because there are a number of estimates and assomjstherent in calculating the various componefitsur tax
provision, certain changes or future events suathaages in tax legislation, geographic mix of e&ys, completion of tax
audits or earnings repatriation plans could havergract on those estimates and our effective tix ra

Historically, the Company has asserted its intentmindefinitely reinvest foreign earnings outsafehe United
States. During the quarter ended December 31, 268X ompany reviewed the ongoing cash needs fifriéggn subsidiaries
and determined that $25.0 million was not neededdimvestment in our Israel subsidiaries and cteldemitted to the Unite
States. Based on this review, the indefinite restment assertion was changed solely with respdbete earnings. No
provision has been made for U.S. or additionalifpréaxes on the undistributed earnings of foreigbsidiaries, which
continue to be permanently reinvest
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For more information regarding our significant ameting policies, estimates and assumptions, se¢$\to
Consolidated Financial Statements— Summary of Sagmit Accounting Policies and New Accounting Stamts$ .”

Contingencies

Legal matters

We are subject to numerous contingencies arisitigarordinary course of business, such as proéatity and
other product-related litigation, commercial litigen, environmental claims and proceedings and gowent investigations.
See “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements-m@itments and Contingencies .”

Certain of these contingencies could result indssscluding damages, fines and/or civil penaléesi/or criminal
charges, which could be substantial. We believeweshave strong defenses in these types of maltetditigation is
inherently unpredictable and excessive verdicteadmr. We do not believe that any of these mattédi$ave a material
adverse effect on our financial position. Howeweg,could incur judgments, enter into settlement®wise our expectations
regarding the outcome of certain matters, and degkelopments could have a material adverse effeouo results of
operations or cash flows in the period in whichdhgounts are paid and/or accrued.

We have accrued for losses that are both proballeeasonably estimable. Substantially all of tteesgingencies
are subject to significant uncertainties and, tfeees determining the likelihood of a loss andfoe tneasurement of any loss
can be complex. Consequently, we are unable tmattithe range of reasonably possible loss in exafesmounts accrued.
Our assessments are based on estimates and asswntpét have been deemed reasonable by managduithte assessment
process relies heavily on estimates and assumptiabsnay prove to be incomplete or inaccurate, arahticipated events a
circumstances may occur that might cause us togehtiose estimates and assumptions.

Environmental

Our operations and properties are subject to Enmemntal Laws and regulations. As such, the natfioeiocurrent
and former operations exposes us to the risk ahelavith respect to such matters, including fiqEnalties, and remediation
obligations that may be imposed by regulatory atities. Under certain circumstances, we might logired to curtail
operations until a particular problem is remedkdown costs and expenses under Environmental Lagidental to ongoing
operations, including the cost of litigation prodems relating to environmental matters, are gelyeirecluded within
operating results. Potential costs and expensesatsaybe incurred in connection with the repainpgrade of facilities to me
existing or new requirements under Environmentavd ar to investigate or remediate potential or alctontamination and
from time to time we establish reserves for suait@mplated investigation and remediation costsaamy instances, the
ultimate costs under Environmental Laws and the ariod during which such costs are likely tor®irred are difficult to
predict.

While we believe that our operations are curreintlynaterial compliance with Environmental Laws, gve, from
time to time, received notices of violation fromvgonmental authorities, and have been involvedvith @r criminal action for
such violations. Additionally, at various sitesy subsidiaries are engaged in continuing investgatemediation and/or
monitoring efforts to address contamination as$ediavith historic operations of the sites. We dewatnsiderable resources
complying with Environmental Laws and managing emwinental liabilities. We have developed programisléntify
requirements under, and maintain compliance withilenmental Laws; however, we cannot predict wightainty the impact
of increased and more stringent regulation on erations, future capital expenditure requirememtshe cost of complianc

The nature of our current and former operationep us to the risk of claims with respect to emitental matter
and we cannot assure we will not incur materiatcasad liabilities in connection with such clairBased upon our experience
to date, we believe that the future cost of conmuéawith existing Environmental Laws, and liabdgifor known
environmental claims pursuant to such Environmeraals, will not have a material adverse effect anfiancial position,
results of operations, cash flows or liquid

74




TABLE OF CONTENTS

For additional details, see “Business—Environmeitiakalth and Safety.”

Tax matters

We account for income tax contingencies using &fierecognition model. See “Notes to Consolidatatancial
Statements— Summary of Significant Accounting Reiand New Accounting Standards .” If our inibasessment fails to
result in the recognition of a tax benefit, we fdagly monitor our position and subsequently recagrthe tax benefit if: (i)
there are changes in tax law or there is new inéion that sufficiently raise the likelihood of pedling on the technical mer
of the position to more likely than not; (ii) thiaute of limitations expires; or (iii) there icampletion of an audit resulting in
a favorable settlement of that tax year with therapriate agency. We regularly re-evaluate oumpiasitions based on the
results of audits of federal, state and foreigrime tax filings, statute of limitations expiratipmasid changes in tax law or
receipt of new information that would either incsear decrease the technical merits of a posiétative to the “more-likely-
than-not” standard.

Our assessments concerning uncertain tax posgi@based on estimates and assumptions that hamelbemed
reasonable by management, but our estimates ofegmé&zed tax benefits and potential tax benefitg ma be representative
of actual outcomes, and variation from such estimabuld materially affect our financial statementthe period of settleme
or when the statutes of limitations expire, as wattthese events as discrete items in the peficabolution. Finalizing audits
with the relevant taxing authorities can includerfal administrative and legal proceedings, and esult, it is difficult to
estimate the timing and range of possible changlated to our uncertain tax positions, and sucimgés could be significant.
For additional details, see “Notes to Consolid&athncial Statements— Income Taxes.”

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

Foreign exchange risk

Portions of our net sales and costs are exposehiuges in foreign exchange rates. Our productsaden more
than 65 countries and, as a result, our revengemfinenced by changes in foreign exchange rédtesve operate in multiple
foreign currencies, including the Brazilian reak tisraeli shekel and other currencies, changt®Bse currencies relative to
the U.S. dollar will impact our revenue and expshaad consequently, net income. Exchange ratifitions may also have
an impact beyond our reported financial resultsdirectly impact operations. These fluctuations rafigct the ability to buy
and sell our goods and services between marke&cieg by significant exchange rate variances.

Our primary foreign currency exposures are the iBaazand Israeli currencies. From time to time, wanage
foreign exchange risk through the use of foreigmency derivative contracts. These contracts agee s offset the potential
earnings effects from exposure to foreign currencie

Our financial instrument holdings at June 30, 20d4re analyzed to determine their sensitivityax@ign exchange
rate changes. The fair values of these instrumeets determined using Level 2 inputs. For additialegails, see “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements— Derivativess’ofAJune 30, 2014 and 2013, the sensitivity amatfschanges in the fair
value of all foreign currency derivative contraictdicates that if the U.S. dollar were to appreciat depreciate by 10%, the
fair value of these contracts would, decrease by 80llion or increase by $2.0 million and decrebge$1.2 million or
increase by $1.8 million, respectively.

Interest rate risk

Substantially all of our outstanding debt is floatrate debt. Our Revolving Credit Facility and MeB Loan carry
floating interest rates that are tied to LIBOR &mel Prime Rate; therefore, our profitability andltlows are exposed to
interest rate fluctuations. At June 30, 2014, autstanding floating rate debt was limited to ther® L oan. Under the terms
of that facility, a 100 basis poiiricrease in LIBOR would increase our annual inteegpense and cash flows by less than
million. At June 30, 2013, our borrowings undes rior domestic senior credit facility were $3milion. Assuming this
balance was outstanding at June 30, 2014, a 109 f@iat increase in LIBOR would increase our anhimnigrest expense and
cash flows by less than $0.4 million. For additiothetails, se¢Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staten— Debt.”
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Rhitinimal Health Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemeogpe@tions,
comprehensive income (loss) , changes in stockrslldquity (deficit) and cash flows present faiily all material respects,
the financial position of Phibro Animal Health Corgtion and its subsidiaries at June 30, 2014 &i8@ 2nd the results of
their operations and their cash flows for eachefthree years in the period ended June 30, 2@l<onformity with
accounting principles generalccepted in the United States of America. Thesmnfifal statements are the responsibility o
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpan opinion on these financial statements basedr audits. We
conducted our audits of these statements in accoedaith the standards of the Public Company ActingrOversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that e ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatgmAn audit includes examining, on a test basiglence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemastessing the accounting principles used andisatt estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financekgtent presentation. We believe that our auddsgige a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Florham Park, New Jersey
Septembel8, 2014
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PHIBRO ANIMAL HEALTH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012

(in thousands, except per share amount:
Net sales $691,91: $ 653,15: $ 654,10:
Cost of goods sol 484,13¢ 474,18 489,96
Gross profil 207,77" 178,96 164,13¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 143,98: 122,23 114,81-
Operating incom: 63,79 56,73: 49,32¢
Interest expens 29,88¢ 31,38 31,43¢
Interest expense, stockhold 3,197 4,38¢ 4,26¢
Interest (income (119 (142) (281)
Foreign currency (gains) losses, 1,75:% 3,10: 1,192
Loss on extinguishment of de 22,77 — —
Other (income) expense, r — 151 (400)
Income before income tax 6,30¢ 17,84¢ 13,11«
Provision (benefit) for income tax 9,43t (7,049 6,13¢
Net income (loss $ (3,127) $ 24,89: $ 6,97¢
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute: $ (010 $ 0.8z $ 0.2t
Weighted average common shares outstarbasic and dilute: 32,19: 30,45¢ 30,45¢
Dividends per shar $ 082 $ 0.icC $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial stateme
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PHIBRO ANIMAL HEALTH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Net income (loss $(3,127) $ 24,89 $ 6,97¢
Fair value of derivative instrumer 1,02¢ (222) (84))
Foreign currency translation adjustm 1,11(C (5,96%) (15,07
Unrecognized net pension gains (los¢ (4,427) 5,39( (10,419
(Provision) benefit for income tax — (2,016 —

Other comprehensive income (lo (2,28¢) (2,816) (26,33))

Comprehensive income (los $(5,415)  $22,07¢ $(19,35%)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial stateme
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PHIBRO ANIMAL HEALTH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of June 3C 2014 2013
(in thousands, except share and per sha
amounts)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 11,82: $ 27,36¢
Accounts receivable, n 113,85¢ 99,137
Inventories, ne 143,18« 140,03:
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 30,42¢ 29,84¢
Total current asse 299,28¢ 296,38¢
Property, plant and equipment, | 109,15¢ 104,42
Intangibles, ne 29,80: 35,15¢
Other asset 34,07z 38,17¢
Total asset $ 472,32; $ 474,14.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current portion of lon-term deb $  2,96¢ $ 64
Accounts payabl 59,60¢ 57,90:
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 49,86! 57,43¢
Total current liabilities 112,43t 115,40:
Revolving credit facility — 34,00(
Long-term debt 286,42: 297,66t
Long-term debt, stockholde — 33,87
Other liabilities 58,31« 62,13¢
Total liabilities 457,17- 543,08(

Commitments and contingencies (Note
Common stock, par value $0.0001; 300,000,000 QGlasisares authorized,

17,442,953 shares issued and outstanding; 30,00C@3s B shares

authorized, 21,348,600 shares issued and outsta 4 7
Preferred stock, par value $0.0001; 16,000,000estaunthorized, no shares

issued and outstandit — —

Paic-in capital 132,45: 42,94¢
Accumulated defici (97,249 (94,12)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I (20,060 (17,777
Total stockholder equity (deficit) 15,14¢ (68,939
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity (deficit) $ 472,32 $474,14.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial stateme
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PHIBRO ANIMAL HEALTH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income (loss $ (3,127 $ 24,89 $ 6,97¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to resthcprovided (used) by
operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic 21,45: 19,02 17,527
Amortization of deferred financing cos 1,021 1,36¢ 1,41¢
Amortization of imputed interest and debt discc 427 56C 327
Deferred income taxe 1,28¢ (12,039 (2,399
Foreign currency (gains) losses, 1,42¢ 2,881 3,41«
Other (53¢) (1,43¢) (482)
Loss on extinguishment of de 22,77 — —
Payment of premiums and costs on extinguished (17,20 — —

Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Accounts receivable, n (14,687 (729 (3,779
Inventories, ne (3,186 (25,106 (745)
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (32) (6,52¢6) (3,302
Other asset 5,10: (369) (5,797)
Accounts payabl 1,682 (6,607) 6,41(
Accrued interes (13,819 33 (104)
Accrued expenses and other liabilit (3,309 5,47¢ 12,50
Net cash provided (used) by operating activi (712) 1,43 31,98¢
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure (19,846 (19,94°) (14,829
Business acquisitior — (18,69:) (3,389
Other 434 281 46E
Net cash provided (used) by investing activi (19,417) (38,35¢) (17,749

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings under the domestic senior and revolireglit

facility 175,50( 75,00( 1,00(C
Repayments of the domestic serand revolvinccredit facility (209,501) (55,000 (4,500
Proceeds from lor-term debt 289,27! — —
Payments of lor-term debt, capital leases and ot (335,379 (5,209 (4,719
Debt issuance cos (4,55)) (9249 —
Proceeds from common stock isst 114,42¢ — —
Dividends paic (25,000 (3,000 —

Net cash provided (used) by financing activi 4,77¢ 10,87¢ (8,21%)
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (209) (485) (725)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (15,549 (26,537) 5,30z
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 27,36¢ 53,90( 48,59¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 11,82 $ 27,36¢ $ 53,90(

Supplemental cash flow informati
Interest paic $ 45,37( $ 33,82« $ 34,05¢



Income taxes paid, n 12,201
Non-cash investing and financing activiti

Capital / leasehold improvemet 1,31¢

Business acquisitior —

Capital lease additior 29

7,061

4,55(
10z

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial stateme
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PHIBRO ANIMAL HEALTH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Accumulated

Other
Shares of Common Preferred Accumulatec Comprehensive
Common Paid-in
Stock Stock Stock Capital Deficit Income (Loss)  Total
(in thousands, except share amount:

As of June 30, 201: 30,45822 $ 7 $ — $ 42,53t $ (122,98) $ 11,37¢ $(69,06¢)
Comprehensive income (los — — — — 6,97¢ (26,33) (19,359
Stock-based compensation expel — — — 195 — — 19t
As of June 30, 201: 30,458,223 7 $ — $ 42,73. $ (116,01) $  (14,95¢) $(88,22%)
Comprehensive income (los — — — — 24,89: (2,816 22,07t
Dividends paic — — — — (3,000 — (3,000
Stocl-based compensation expel — — — 21F — — 21F
As of June 30, 201! 30,45822 $ 7 $ — $ 42948 $ (94,12) $  (17,77) $(68,939
Comprehensive income (los — — — — (3,127 (2,28¢) (5,41
Issuance of common stock, net of issuance « 8,333,33. 1 —  114,42¢ — —  114,42¢
Conversion of common stock certificate and effdc

stock split — 4) — 4 — — _
Dividends paic — — — (25,000 — — (25,000
Stocl-based compensation expel — — — 73 — — 73
As of June 30, 201« 38,79155 % 4 % — $132,45. $ (97,249 $ (20,06() $ 15,14¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial stateme
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

1. Description of Business

Phibro Animal Health Corporation (“Phibro” or “PAHYand its subsidiaries (together, the “Compang i
diversified global developer, manufacturer and retgkof a broad range of animal health and minautition products to the
poultry, swine, cattle, dairy, aquaculture and ethanarkets. The Company is also a manufacturemnzertteter of
performance products for use in the personal @a®motive, industrial chemical and chemical catailydustries. Unless
otherwise indicated or the context requires othegwieferences in this report to “we,” “our,” “uéthe Company” and similar
expressions refer to Phibro and its subsidiaries.

2. Initial Public Offering and Refinancing

Initial Public Offering

On April 16, 2014, we completed the initial pubdiffering (“IPO”) of 14,657,200 shares of Class Araaon stock
(including the exercise of the underwriters’ ovoiaent option) at a price to the public of $15@) share. In connection
with the IPO, we issued and sold 8,333,333 shdr€ass A common stock. The proceeds to us fromRi@ewere $114,429,
after deducting underwriting discounts of $8,438 art offering expenses payable by us of $2,133.

In connection with the IPO, Mayflower Limited Pagtship (“Mayflower”), a limited partnership thatrisanaged by
3i Investments plc and advised by 3i Corporatiom, whose sole limited partner is 3i Group plc, tltenate parent company
of both 3i Investments plc and 3i Corporation, 823,867 shares of Class A common stock includifd1,808 shares of
Class A common stock pursuant to the exerciseetittderwriters’ over-allotment option. We did neteive any proceeds
from shares sold by Mayflower.

In connection with the IPO, we effected a 0.442%wtock split. All amounts have been adjustedsgtectively to
give effect to the stock split.

Issuance of Credit Facilitie

On April 16, 2014, Phibro, together with certaintsfsubsidiaries acting as guarantors, enteredar@redit
Agreement with Bank of America, N.A. (“Bank of Anie”), as Administrative Agent, Collateral Agentel/C Issuer, and
each lender from time to time party thereto (therftlers”). The Lenders extended credit to the Compathe form of (i) a
$290,000 Term B loan and (ii) a $100,000 revolinedit facility. The revolving credit facility wasndrawn at closing and at
June 30, 2014, and contains a letter of creditifacBee “—Debt.”

Retirement of 9.25% Senior Notes, Mayflower Teraml.8FI Term Loan and Domestic Senior Credit Fac

On April 16, 2014, we retired a $24,000 term loaggble to Mayflower due December 31, 2016, a $1D{6fm
loan payable to BFI Co., LLC (“BFI”), a Bendheinmfdy investment vehicle, due August 1, 2014 and,$36 of outstanding
borrowings under our domestic senior credit fagilit

On May 16, 2014, we retired $300,000 of 9.25% semites due July 1, 2018 (t“ Senior Note").
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Effect of the Refinancir

Our consolidated statement of operations for thee gaded June 30, 2014 , included a loss on exshment of debt
as follows:

Redemption premium on Senior No $17,18¢

Write-off of original issue discount related to Seniotéoand BFI term loa 2,12:
Write-off of capitalized debt issuance costs reldteSenior Notes, Mayflower

term loan, BFI term loan and cancelled domesticosamedit facility and othet

items 3,464
Loss on extinguishment of de $22,77:

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and NevAccounting Standards

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presermta

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Phibro and all majority-owned subsidisriAll
significant intercompany accounts and transactimwe been eliminated in the consolidated finarstetements. The decision
whether or not to consolidate an entity requiress@eration of majority voting interests, as walledfective control over the
entity.

We present our financial statements on the basisiofiscal year ending June 30. All referencegdars in these
consolidated financial statements refer to theafigear ending or ended on June 30 of that year.

Certain reclassifications have been made to pear smounts to conform to the current year pretenta

During the year ended June 30, 2014, we identdidi corrected an error in prior period cash floglated to an
equity method investment . We corrected the emdriacreased cash flows from operating activities decreased cash flows
from investing activities by $1,022 and $106 fof.3Gnd 2012, respectively. The error had no impmatie consolidated
statements of operations, consolidated comprehemsbome or the consolidated balance sheet. We dssassed the effects
the correction and have concluded the items wetrenaderial to our prior period consolidated finaatatements. According
we have revised the prior year statements of cateted cash flows.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2013, weiftezhand corrected errors that originated in pperiods. The
error corrections increased income before incomestdy $358 in the current year. We have assebsegffects of the
corrections and have concluded the items were adenial, either individually or in aggregate, ta aurrent year results of
operations or any other prior period consolidatedrfcial statements.

Risks, Uncertainties and Liquidi

An expansion of the regulatory restrictions onuke of antibiotics or antibacterials in food-proidigcanimals could
result in a decrease in our sales. The issue gidtential for increased bacterial resistance ttageantibiotics used in certain
food-producing animals is the subject of discussion a worldwide basis and, in certain instancas,léd to government
restrictions on or banning of the use of antibmiit food-producing animals. The sale of antibefad antibacterials is a
material portion of our business. Should regulatorgther developments result in restrictions anghle of such products, it
could have a material adverse effect on our fir@nmisition, results of operations and cash flows.

The testing, manufacturing, and marketing of certdiour products are subject to extensive reguiaby numerous
government authorities in the United States andratbuntries
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We have significant assets in Israel, Brazil aritbotocations outside of the United States andrifsgant portion o
our sales and earnings are attributable to opeationducted abroad. Our assets, results of opesatind future prospects are
subject to currency exchange fluctuations andioistns, energy shortages, other economic develapsngolitical or social
instability in some countries, and uncertaintyasfd governmental control over, commercial rightisiclv could result in a
material adverse effect on our financial positi@sults of operations and cash flows.

We are subject to environmental laws and regulatgoverning the use, storage, handling, generatieatment,
emission, release, discharge and disposal of nartaterials and wastes, the remediation of contai®éhsoil and groundwat:
the manufacture, sale and use of regulated mateimaluding pesticides, and the health and safegmployees. As such, the
nature of our current and former operations andehas our subsidiaries expose Phibro and our sialigd to the risk of clain
with respect to such matters.

Use of Estimates

Preparation of the consolidated financial stateséntonformity with accounting principles geneyaltcepted in tf
United States of America requires management tcencaktain estimates and assumptions that affeceffmted amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and retigetbsures. Actual results could differ from thestimates. Significant
estimates include depreciation and amortizatiorogsrof long-lived and intangible assets, recovilitalof long-lived and
intangible assets and goodwill, realizability ofeteed income tax and value-added tax assets, &&ghénvironmental matters
and actuarial assumptions related to our pensimspMWe regularly evaluate our estimates and assamspising historical
experience and other factors. Our estimates aedb@s complex judgments, probabilities and asswngtihat we believe to
be reasonable.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue upon transfer of title andnwirek of loss passes to the customer. Certaiunbasinesses
have terms of FOB shipping point where title arstt Bf loss transfer on shipment. Certain of oulifesses have terms of F(
destination where title and risk of loss transfedelivery. In the case of FOB destination, reveisu®t recognized until
products are received by the customer. Additionabitions for recognition of revenue are that passee evidence of an
arrangement exists, the selling price is fixed etedninable, collections of sales proceeds areneddy assured and we have
no further performance obligations. We record estéd reductions to revenue for customer progrardsrarentive offerings,
including pricing arrangements and other volumeelascentives, at the time the sale is recordegta®pand licensing
income from licensing agreements are recognizechvelaened under the terms of the related agreeraadtare included in
Net Sales in the consolidated statements of opasmtNet Sales also include shipping and handieg billed to customer
Delivery costs to our customers are included irt obgoods sold in the consolidated statementpefations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include highly liquid investmeumith maturities of three months or less when puselda Cash and
cash equivalents held at financial institutions raifimes exceed federally insured amounts. Webehve mitigate such risk
by investing in or through major financial institrts.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Aots

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedad@mount and do not bear interest. We granttaerdis in the
normal course of business and do not normally recqeollateral or other security to support credles. Our ten largest
customers represented, in the aggregate, appralyn2it% and 24% of accounts receivable at Jun@@D4 and 2013,
respectively.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is our bestregt of the probable credit losses in existingoaots receivable.
We monitor the financial performance and creditiioréss of our customers so that we can properlysasand respond to
changes in their credit profile. We also monitondstic anc
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international economic conditions for the potengifiect on our customers. Past due balances aiewed individually for
collectability. Bad debts have been minimal. Acddualances are charged against the allowance wkeatetermine it is
probable the receivable will not be recovered.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or rear€ost is determined principally under weightedrage and
standard cost methods, which approximate firstiist-out (FIFO) cost. Obsolete and unsalable inventpifiesy, are reflecte
at estimated net realizable value. Inventory costiside materials, direct labor and manufacturimgrbead.

Property, Plant and Equipme

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costc&litalize interest expense as part of the dasirestruction of
facilities and equipment. No interest expense vegstalized in 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Depreciation is charged to results of operatiomsguthe straight-line method based upon the asestshated useful
lives ranging from 8 to 25 years for buildings amgprovements and 3 to 16 years for machinery andpetent.

We capitalize costs that extend the useful lifpr@mductive capacity of an asset. Repair and maamies costs are
expensed as incurred. In the case of disposalsstets and related accumulated depreciation mu@vesl from the accounts,
and the net amounts, less proceeds from dispasaheuded in the consolidated statements of djpers

Capitalized Software Costs

We capitalize costs to obtain, develop and impldrseftware for internal use in accordance with FAS&ounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 350-4hternal Use SoftwareAmounts paid to third parties and costs of ineéemployees
who are directly associated with the software mtogee also capitalized, depending on the stagiewélopment. We expense
software costs that do not meet the capitalizatiiteria. Capitalized software costs are includegroperty, plant and
equipment on the consolidated balance sheets ammhaortized on a straight-line basis over seversyea

Deferred Financing Cosl

Costs and original issue discounts or premiumgeelt issuance or modification of our debt areedefd on the
consolidated balance sheet and amortized oveiviee df the respective debt instruments. Amortoratf deferred financing
costs is included in interest expense in the cadsigld statements of operations.

Acquisitions, Intangible Assets and Good'

Our consolidated financial statements reflect therations of an acquired business beginning dseoflate of
acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities asstiar@ recorded at their fair values at the dasecqtiisition, with any excess
the purchase price over the fair values of theasseéts acquired recorded as goodwill.

Significant judgment is required to determine thie ¥alue of certain tangible and intangible asaet$in assigning
their respective useful lives. Accordingly, we waly obtain the assistance of third-party valuatpecialists for significant
tangible and intangible assets. The fair valuedased on available historical information and wtaife expectations and
assumptions deemed reasonable by managementghinharently uncertain. We typically use an incamethod to measure
the fair value of intangible assets, which is basedorecasts of the expected future cash flowgatable to the respective
assets. Significant estimates and assumptionsanhar the valuations reflect a consideration dieotmarketplace participan
and include the amount and timing of future caetvél (including expected growth rates and profitahilthe underlying
product or technology life cycles, economic bagiter entry and the discount rate applied to tha 8asvs. Unanticipated
market or macroeconomic events i
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circumstances could affect the accuracy or validftthe estimates and assumptions. Determiningisieéul life of an

intangible asset also requires judgment. Our estisnaf the useful lives of intangible assets aimarily based on a number of
factors including competitive environment, undertyproduct life cycles, operating plans and thensee@onomic environment
of the countries in which the products are soltangible assets are amortized over their estimates. Amortization expense

is included in selling, general and administrax@enses in the consolidated statements of opasatio

Lonc-Lived Assets and Goodwill

We periodically review our lonfived and amortizable intangible assets for impaintrand assess whether signific
events or changes in business circumstances ieditat the carrying value of the assets may notbeverable. Such
circumstances may include a significant decreasiednmarket price of an asset, a significant agvelsnge in the manner in
which the asset is being used or in its physicatlt@n or a history of operating or cash flow lessssociated with the use of
an asset. An impairment loss would be recognizegivthe carrying amount of an asset exceeds themated future
undiscounted cash flows expected to result fronutieeof the asset and its eventual disposition.afheunt of the impairment
loss to be recorded is calculated by the excetisecdisset’s carrying value over its fair valueadidition, we periodically
reassess the estimated remaining useful livesdbog-ived assets. Changes to estimated useful liveddnaftect the amoui
of depreciation and amortization recorded in thesctidated statements of operations. We have m#reenced significant
changes in the carrying value or estimated remgingeful lives of our long-lived or amortizableangible assets in the
periods included in the consolidated financialestants.

We annually evaluate goodwill for impairment by guaring the book value to the fair value of the réipg unit to
which the goodwill relates. If circumstances chasigaificantly, we would also test a reporting tsgoodwill for impairment
during interim periods between its annual tests.d&termine the fair value of the reporting unitsigsa discounted cash flow
analysis method. Considerable management judgrsectt, as assumptions of forecasted growth rategliandunt rate, is
necessary in arriving at the fair value. Applicatif alternative assumptions, such as change®iagtimate of future cash
flows, could produce significantly different resulBecause of the significance of the judgmentseatichation processes, it is
likely that different amounts could be recordedé used different assumptions or if the underlhdilgumstances were to
change. During the quarter ended June 30, 2014ewWermed the annual goodwill impairment test aatetmined that none
the goodwill was impaired.

Foreign Currency Translatio

We generally use local currency as the functiooalency to measure the financial position and tesafloperations
of each of our international subsidiaries. We tl@esassets and liabilities of these operatiorieeatxchange rates in effect at
the balance sheet date. We translate income statemeounts at the average rates of exchange pregvduring the period.
Translation adjustments that arise from the usdiftéfring exchange rates from period to periodiactuded in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholdegsity (deficit).

Certain of our Israeli operations have designétedt.S. dollar as their functional currency. Gaind losses arising
from remeasurement of local currency accountslih& dollars are included in determining net incaméoss.

Foreign currency gains and losses primarily anigmfintercompany balances.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net incass) and the changes in: (i) the fair value ofvddive
instruments; (i) foreign currency translation a&ljaent; (i) unrecognized net pension gains (Iessend (iv) the related
(provision) benefit for income taxes.

Derivative Financial Instrument

We record all derivative financial instruments be tonsolidated balance sheets at fair value. Gzainghe fair
value of derivatives are recorded in results ofrapens or accumulated oth
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comprehensive income (loss), depending on whetkerigative is designated and effective as pagt bédge transaction and,
if so, the type of hedge transaction. Gains ansee®n derivative instruments reported in accuredlather comprehensive
income (loss) are included in the results of openatin the periods in which operations are affeédtye the hedged item.

From time to time, we use forward contracts andoogtto mitigate exposure to changes in foreigmenay
exchange rates and as a means of hedging foreagsteating costs. To qualify a derivative as a leedge document the
nature and relationships between hedging instrusreemd hedged items, as well as its risk-manageaigectives, strategies
for undertaking the various hedge transactionsmaetihod of assessing hedge effectiveness. We hedgeatted transactions
for periods not exceeding the next twenty-four rheniWe do not engage in trading or other spec@atses of financial
instruments.

Fair Value Measuremen

ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurekefines fair value as the exit price that wouddréceived to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability. Railue is a market-based measurement that shouddteemined using
assumptions that market participants would useiging an asset or liability. ASC 820 uses a tHesel hierarchy to prioritize
the inputs used in measuring fair value. Levelduis include quoted prices in active markets fentétal assets or liabilities.
Level 2 inputs include observable inputs other tleael 1 prices, such as quoted prices for sinataets or liabilities or other
inputs that are observable or can be corroboratesbbervable market data for substantially thet&rin of the assets or
liabilities. Level 3 inputs include unobservableuts that are supported by little or no marketvitgtiand that are financial
instruments whose values are determined usingngritiodels, discounted cash flow methodologiesimitar techniques, as
well as instruments for which the determinatioriaif value requires significant judgment or estiimat

Environmental Liabilities

Expenditures for ongoing compliance with environtaéregulations are expensed or capitalized asoppiate. We
capitalize expenditures made to extend the usiééubt productive capacity of an asset, includirgenditures that prevent
future environmental contamination. Other expendilare expensed as incurred and are recordetling sgeneral and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statewd operations. We record the expense and celateility in the period
an environmental assessment indicates remediatetice probable and the costs can be reasonabthaésd. Estimates of the
liability are based upon currently available faetsisting technology and presently enacted lawsragdlations taking into
consideration the likely effects of inflation anther societal and economic factors. All availabllence is considered,
including prior experience in remediation of contaated sites, other companies’ experiences andrekgased by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency or other organaati The estimated liabilities are not discount¥d.record anticipated
recoveries under existing insurance contractsobable.

Income Taxe

The provision for income taxes includes U.S. feljestate, and foreign income taxes. Our annuatdéxis
determined based on our income, statutory tax,rtttegax effects of items treated differently fax purposes than for
financial reporting purposes and tax planning opputies available in the various jurisdictionswhich we operate. Tax law
requires certain items be included in the tax reairdifferent times than the items are reflectethe consolidated financial
statements. Some of these differences are permaumht as expenses that are not deductible iraaweturn, and some
differences are temporary, reversing over timehsasdepreciation expense. These temporary diffesecreate deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets gdpemiresent the tax effect of items that can el a tax deduction or credit
in future years for which we have already recortiedtax benefit in our consolidated statementspefations. Deferred tax
liabilities generally represent tax expense recogphin our consolidated financial statements foictvipayment has been
deferred, the tax effect of expenditures for whaatleduction has already been taken in our taxrétur has not yet been
recognized in our consolidated financial statemantsassets recorded at fair value in business ioatidns for which there
was no corresponding tax basis adjustm
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Significant judgment is required in determining ¢ax provision and in evaluating our tax positiofise recognition
and measurement of a tax position is based on reamagt’s best judgment given the facts, circumstace information
available at the reporting date. Inherent in deieimg our annual tax rate are judgments regardigiress plans, planning
opportunities and expectations about future outsoiRealization of certain deferred tax assets, miljnnet operating loss
carryforwards, is dependent upon generating sefiiciaxable income in the appropriate jurisdictiior to the expiration of
the carryforward periods. We establish valuatidovednces for deferred tax assets when the amoustpEcted future taxable
income is not likely to support the use of the ddidun or credit.

We operate in multiple jurisdictions with complextpolicy and regulatory environments. In certdithese
jurisdictions, we may take tax positions that mamagnt believes are supportable, but are potensaliject to successf
challenge by the applicable taxing authority. Weleate our tax positions and establish liabilitreaccordance with the
applicable accounting guidance on uncertainty @omme taxes. We review these tax uncertaintieght bf changing facts and
circumstances, such as the progress of tax aagitsadjust them accordingly.

Because there are a number of estimates and assomiptherent in calculating the various componehisur tax
provision, future events such as changes in tasl&@n, the geographic mix of earnings, compleidd tax audits or earnings
repatriation plans could have an effect on thosenases and our effective tax rate.

Research and Development Expenditt

Research and development expenditures are expaasedurred and are recorded in selling, geneml an
administrative expenses in the consolidated statesrod operations. Most of our manufacturing féiei have chemists and
technicians on staff involved in product developtmeoality assurance, quality control and also fating technical services to
customers. Research, development and technicateegfforts are conducted at various facilities. ¥perate animal health
research and development facilities in Guarulhoaz® Beit Shemesh, Israel; Naot Hovav, Israelim@y, lllinois; St. Paul,
Minnesota; Corvallis, Oregon; and Manhattan, Kanhese facilities provide research and developreentices relating to:
fermentation development and micro-biological stiaiprovement; vaccine development; chemical sysithend formulation
development; nutritional supplement development; ethanol-related products.

Stock-Based Compensation

All stock-based compensation to employees, inclydirants of stock options, is expensed over theiséq service
period based on the grant date fair value of therdsv We determine the fair value of stock-baseardsvusing the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model which uses both histdrand current market data to estimate the falue. This method
incorporates various assumptions such as the mskifiterest rate, expected volatility, expecteddéind yield and expected
life of the options.

Net Income per Share and Weighted Average Sl

Basic net income per share is calculated by digidiet income by the weighted average number of comshares
outstanding during the reporting period.

Diluted net income per share is calculated by digchet income by the weighted average number wingon shares
outstanding during the reporting period after giveffect to potential dilutive common shares rasglfrom the exercise of
stock options and warrants. For the year ended 30n2014, there was a net loss ; and we exclu86dl@2 nethares of stoc
options and warrants from the calculation of didutet income (loss) per share because of the duative effect from the
assumed exercise of these options and warrantsth&gears ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the gpiicas and warrants
had an exercise price greater than the estimateketnzalue and were excluded from the calculatibdiloted net income per
share because the effect from the assumed exefdisese options and warrants was-dilutive.
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New Accounting Standar

We have elected to adopt new accounting standattswhe specified effective date establisheddoblic
companies, where applicable.

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standards Update (“ASU”) 2013-Hresentation of a
Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Gassyforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credar@/forward EXxists,
clarifies when it is appropriate for an unrecogditax benefit, or portion of an unrecognized tardjfg, to be presented in the
financial statements as a reduction to a defeae@s$set. ASU 2013-11 was effective for interim andual periods beginning
after December 15, 2013. Early adoption is perchitidhe guidance should be applied prospectiveblitonrecognized tax
benefits that exist at the effective date; howekarpspective application is also permitted. Weztd to early adopt the
provisions of this pronouncement, and it did notéha material effect on our consolidated finanstatements.

ASU 2014-08Presentation of Financials (Topic 205) and PropeRjant, and Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting
Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of DispssdlComponents of an Entichanges the criteria for reporting a
discontinued operation while enhancing disclosudesler the new guidance, a disposal of a compaufeam entity or group ¢
components of an entity that represents a straghgficthat has, or will have, a major effect oremgtions and financial results
is a discontinued operation when any of the follgyvccurs: (i) it meets the criteria to be classifas held for sale, (ii) it is
disposed of by sale, or (iii) it is disposed ofatthan by sale. Also, a business that, on acépnsiineets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale is reported in discurgd operations. Additionally, the new guidancaines expanded disclosures
about discontinued operations, as well as disctoetithe pre-tax profit or loss attributable toigpdsal of an individually
significant component of an entity that does natlifyi for discontinued operations presentation. §oalance is effective
prospectively for all disposals (or classificati@ssheld for sale) of components of an entity dhdusinesses that, on
acquisition, are classified as held for sale, twaur within annual periods beginning on or aftecBmber 15, 2014 and inter
periods within those years. We do not expect adogif this guidance will have a material effectaun consolidated financial
statements.

ASU 2014-09Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic G&8ablishes principles for the recognition of
revenue from contracts with customers. The undgglyirinciple is to identify the performance obligat of a contract,
allocate the revenue to each performance obligatimhthen to recognize revenue when the compaisfisata specific
performance obligation of the contract. ASU 2014i6ffective for interim and annual periods begigrafter December 15,
2016. Early adoption is not permitted. The guidasteeuld be applied retrospectively to each priporéng period presented.
We are currently evaluating the impact that adaptinis guidance will have on our consolidated firiahstatements.

ASU 2014-15Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Afyilio Continue as a Going Concereguires
management to assess an entity’s ability to coatasia going concern, and to provide related faetdisclosures in certain
circumstances. Management will need to assessri¢ ls substantial doubt about an entity’s abttitgontinue as a going
concern within one year after the issuance dateagament will need to consider relevant condititias are known and
reasonably knowable at the issuance date. Sulmtdntibt exists if it is probable that the entitijl e unable to meet its
obligations within one year after the issuance .ddteler the new standard, the definition of sultshdoubt incorporates a
likelihood threshold of “probable” similar to thercent use of that term in U.S. GAAP for loss cogéncies. ASU 2014-15
will be effective for annual periods ending aftesd@mber 15, 2016. Earlier adoption is permitted.d&@ot expect adoption
of this guidance will hava material effecon ourconsolidated financial statemer
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4. Statements of Operation—Additional Information

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012
Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of property, plant and equipm $16,43¢ $14,91° $14,42¢
Amortization of intangible asse 4,897 4,10¢ 3,04¢
Amortization of other asse 117 — 54
Depreciation and amortizatic $21,45! $19,02: $17,52]

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment idelsiamortization of capitalized software costs26%7, $2,159

and $2,362 during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively

Amortization of intangible assets is expected t&6210, $3,699, $2,864, $2,691, $2,656 and $1F@82015,

2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019 and thereafter, respbgcti

Research and development expendit $8,21- $6,63¢ $7,18¢
5. Balance Sheet—Additional Information

As of June 3C 2014 2013

Accounts receivable, ne

Trade accounts receivak $ 115,09: $99,79:

Allowance for doubtful accoun (1,23%) (65€)
$ 113,85¢ $99,13°

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Balance at beginning of peric $ 65€ $ 1,041

Provision for bad debt 22€ (129

Effect of changes in exchange ra 351 (265)

Bad debt writ-offs (recovery, — 6

Balance at end of peric $§ 123 $ 65€

(1) For the year ended June 30, 2012, the beginnirapbalfor allowance for doubtful accounts was $1, @29 provision for
bad debts was ($115) and the effect of changescina@ge rates was $127, resulting in an endingibalfor allowance

for doubtful accounts of $1,04

As of June 3C 2014 2013
Inventories, net
Raw materials $ 44,30¢ $ 36,58¢
Work-in-process 7,51¢ 7,541
Finished good 91,36( 95,90:
$ 143,18 $ 140,03.
Property, plant and equipment, net
Land $ 9,77: $ 9,74¢
Buildings and improvemen 51,36¢ 46,96(
Machinery and equipme 172,53( 156,24
233,66° 212,95:
Accumulated depreciatic (124,509) (108,53))
$ 109,15¢ $ 104,42.
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Certain facilities in Israel are on land leasedgarominal amount from the Israel Land AuthoritheTlease expires
July 9, 2027. Certain facilities in Israel are eaded land. The lease expires November 30, 2035.

Net equipment under capital leases was $142 an@ &15une 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, incudin
accumulated depreciation of $79 and $39, respégtive

Property, plant and equipment, net includes infensa software costs, net of accumulated depreciatf $9,019
and $9,154 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Machinery and equipment includes construction-iogpess of $4,782 and $5,543 at June 30, 2014 at®l 20

respectively.

Weighted-
Average
Useful Life
As of June 3C (Years) 2014 2013
Intangibles, net
Cost
Medicated feed additive product registrati 10 $11,79: $ 12,11¢
Rights to sell in international marke 10 4,29; 4,29:
Customer relationshig 13 10,70z 10,69:
Technology 11 28,25¢ 28,25¢
Distribution agreement 4 3,447 3,49¢
Trade names, trademarks and of 5 2,74( 2,74(
61,23 61,59(
Accumulated amortization
Medicated feed additive product registratir (11,039 (20,779
Rights to sell in international marke (4,297) (3,86))
Customer relationshig (4,26%) (3,209
Technology (6,510 (3,729
Distribution agreement (3,309 (3,179
Trade names, trademarks and of (2,019 (1,685
(31,429 (26,43
$ 29,80{ § 35,15t
As of June 3C 2014 2013
Other assets
Goodwill $12,61: $12,61:
Advances to andnvestments in equity method invess 5,61¢ 3,51t
Insurance investmen 4,62¢ 4,45¢
Deferred financing fee 5,19¢ 5,212
Deferred income taxe 3,48¢ 4,75¢
Insurance claim receivab — 5,35(
Other 2,52¢ 2,27¢
$34,07. $38,17¢

We evaluate our investments in equity method ireessfor impairment if circumstances indictitet the fair value ¢
the investment may be impaired . The assets uridgréy$5,140 equity investment are currently idled;have concluded the
investment is nccurrentlyimpaired, based on expected futoperating cash flows and/or disposal va
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As of June 3C 2014 2013
Goodwill roll -forward
Balance at beginning of peric $12,61: $ 1,717
OGR acquisitior = 10,89¢
Balance at end of peric $12,61: $12,61:
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Employee related accruz $20,81:¢ $17,82¢
Interest — 13,87¢
Commissions and rebat 2,97¢ 3,19¢
Insurance relate 1,39¢ 1,28¢
Professional fee 4,22¢ 4,064
Deferred consideration on acquisitic 1,42( 1,25(
Product liability claims 5,28¢ —
Other accrued liabilitie 13,74¢ 15,94«
$49,86: $57,43¢
Other liabilities
Pension and other retirement bene $31,02¢ $26,02:
Long term and deferred income ta: 14,28: 17,58(
Deferred consideration on acquisitic 2,87¢ 5,00¢
Product liability claims — 5,60(
Other long term liabilitie: 10,12¢ 7,92¢
$58,31¢ $62,13¢
As of June 3C 2014 2013
Accumulated other comprehensive income (los:
Derivative instrument $ 38€ $ (639
Foreign currency translation adjustm (1,409 (2,519
Unrecognized net pension gains (los¢ (16,667) (12,240
Income tax (provision) benefit on derivative instrents 63 63
Income tax (provision) benefit on pension gainsgs (2,437 (2,437

$ (20,06() $ (17,779

6. Acquisition

On December 20, 2012, Prince Agri Products, Irri(ice Agri”), a subsidiary of Phibro, acquired ¥00f the
membership interests of OmniGen Research, LLC (“OQGRe acquired all rights to OmniGen-AF patentsl aelated
intellectual property and certain property, plamt @quipment. OmniGen-AF is a proprietary nutriibspecialty product that
helps maintain a dairy cow’s healthy immune systeror to the transaction, Prince Agri had beenek@usive manufacturer
and marketer of OmniGen-AF for 9 years, under enlsing arrangement with OGR.

The purchase price was $22,750, with an initiahqzeyment of $18,500 and deferred payments of $4 &% paid
$1,000 in December 2013. Annual deferred paymer$d,000 are due on or before December 20, 2012848. A final
deferred payment of $1,250 is due on or before Bdee 20, 2016. Interest is accrued and payabléysofethe final
installment at the rate of 5% annually from Decenfti 2012 to the date of payme
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The results of the business have been includdtkicdnsolidated statements of operations sincdatesof
acquisition. Acquired identifiable intangibles amortized over the remaining 12-year life of thimgipal patents acquired.
The allocation of the purchase price was:

Assets

Property, plant and equipme $ 1,207

Intangibles 23,78:

Goodwill 10,89¢
Total asset $35,87¢

Liabilities

Other current and loi-term liabilities $13,12¢

Total liabilities 13,12¢

Net assets acquire $22,75(

In accordance with ASC 805, the excess of the @selprice over the fair values of the net assefsiast was
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is not dedudifdr U.S. federal or state income taxes.

OGR’s only revenues were the royalties paid byderiagri. As a result, our operating results beedffrom the
elimination of the royalties previously paid to OGtet of operating expenses related to acquirezhrek and development
activities. The unaudited pro forma consolidateslilts of operations, as if such acquisition haduoed at the beginning of tl
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are as follows:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2013 2012

Net sales $ 653,15: $ 654,10:

Net income (loss 25,98¢ 9,17(

Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute: 0.8t 0.3(

Adjusted EBITDA 77,73 70,80¢
7. Debt

Revolving Credit Facility and Term B Lo.

On April 16, 2014, Phibro, together with certaintsfsubsidiaries acting as guarantors, enteredar@redit
Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with Bank of Arioa, N.A. (“Bank of America”), as Administrativegient, Collateral
Agent and L/C Issuer, and each lender from timine party thereto (the “Lenders”). Under the Ctédjreement, the
Lenders agreed to extend credit to the Companlyaridrm of (i) a Term B loan in an aggregate ppatamount equal to
$290,000 (the “Term B Loan”) and (ii) a revolvingedit facility in an aggregate principal amountdf0,000 (the “Revolving
Credit Facility,” and together with the Term B Lodhe “Credit Facilities”). The Revolving Credit kty was undrawn at
closing and contains a letter of credit facility.

Borrowings under the Credit Facilities bear intetesed on a fluctuating rate equal to the summafpplicable
margin and, at the Compaisy&lection from time to time, either (1) a Euroemay rate determined by reference to LIBOR
a term as selected by the Company, of one daya@rtam, three or six months (or twelve months or stmorter amount of tinr
if consented to by all of the lenders under thdiegble loan), or (2) a base rate determined bgresfce to the highest of (a)
rate as publicly announced from time to time by IBahAmerica as its “prime rate,” (b) the federahéls effective rate plus
0.50% and (c) one-month LIBOR plus 1.00%. The Raugl Credit Facility has applicable margins equal50% or 1.75%,
in the case of base rate loans, and 2.50% or 2.ifbfe case of LIBOR loans; the margins are basethe First Lien Net
Leverage Ratio. The Term B Loan has applicable marggual to 2.00%, in the case of base rate l@ants3.00%, in the case
of LIBOR loans. Interest on the Term B Loan is sabjo a floor of 1.00% in the case of LIBOR loans.

Indebtedness under the Credit Facilities is caltditeed by a first priority lien on substantiallif assets of Phibro ar
certain of our domestic subsidiaries. The Term BriLoequires, among other thin
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mandatory quarterly principal payments of $725 beigig September 2014. The maturity dates of theoRéng Credit Facility
and the Term B Loan are April 15, 2019 and April 2621, respectively.

We issued the Term B Loan at 99.75% of par valuth proceeds of $284,740, after deducting $5,266rigfinal
issue discount and costs related to the issuanitesé facilities.

As of June 30, 2014, we had no outstanding borrgsvimder the Revolving Credit Facility and had tutding
letters of credit and other commitments of $17,1d@ying $82,860 available for borrowings and Istief credit under the
Revolving Credit Facility.

We obtain letters of credit in connection with e@mtregulatory and insurance obligations, invenfnychases and
other contractual obligations. The terms of theseis of credit are all less than one year.

The Credit Facilities contains various covenantgtyhamong other things and subject to the perthigteceptions
described therein, restrict us and our subsidiavidsrespect to: (i) incurring additional debf) fnaking certain restricted
payments or making optional redemptions of othdebtedness; (iii) making investments or acquirissess; (iv) disposing of
assets (other than in the ordinary course of bas)név) creating any liens on our assets; (vigeng into transactions with
affiliates; (vii) entering into merger or consoltidm transactions; and (viii) creating guarantekgaitions; provided, however,
that we are permitted to pay distributions to stadélers out of available cash subject to certamuahlimitations and so long
as no default or event of default under the Creddilities shall have occurred and be continuinthattime such distribution is
declared.

The Revolving Credit Facility requires, among ottiengs, the maintenance of a maximum consolidétstlien net
debt to consolidated EBITDA leverage ratio, caltedeon a trailing four quarter basis, and contamsicceleration clause
should an event of default (as defined in the ages#) occur. The permitted maximum ratio is 4.5@0%or measurement
periods beginning September 30, 2014 through Jan2®L5 and 4.25:1.00 for measurements periodsdfter. As of June 3
2014, we were in compliance with the covenanthiefGredit Facilities.

Lonc-Term Debt

As of June 3C 2014 2013
Term B loan due April 15, 202 $ 290,00( $ —
Senior notes due July 1, 20 — 300,00(
Term loan payable to Mayflower due December 3162 — 24,00(
Term loan payable to BFI due August 1, 2( — 10,00¢
Capitalized lease obligatiol 94 132
290,09: 334,13:
Unamortized debt discou (709) (2,52¢)
289,39: 331,60
Less: current maturitie (2,969) (64)
$ 286,42. $ 331,54(

Foreign Bank Loan

Our Israel subsidiaries have aggregate creditifi@silavailable of approximately $15 million (thisfael Credit
Facility”). As of June 30, 2014, we had no outstagdorrowings or other commitments outstandingaurtte Israel Credit
Facility. Interest rate elections under the Isaeddit Facility are LIBOR plus 2.25% or Prime Rptas 1.00%. The Israel

Credit Facility matures on December 31, 2C
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Aggregate Maturities of Lo-Term Debt

For the Years Ended June 3(

2015 $2,969
2016 2,918
2017 2,907
2018 2,900
2019 2,900
Thereaftel 275,500

Total _$290,094

8. Preferred Stock, Common Stock, Warrant and Dividend

Preferred stock and common stock at June 30, 20d2@13 , after giving effect to the 0.442-for-&c¥t split, were:

2014 2013 2014 2013
As of June 3C Authorized shares Par value Issued and outstanding share
Preferred stoc 16,000,00 — $ 0.000: — —
Common stoc-Class A 300,000,00 — $ 0.000: 17,442,95 —
Common stoc-Class B 30,000,00 — $ 0.000: 21,348,60 —
Preferred stoc — 1,000,001 $ 1.000( — —
Common stocl — 200,000,00 $ 0.000: — 30,458,22

Common Stock and Common Stock Warrant

Class A Common Stock

Holders of our Class A common stock are entitledrte vote for each share held of record on allemaubmitted t
a vote of stockholders. Except as otherwise pral/tdeour amended and restated certificate of irmajon or applicable law,
the holders of our Class A common stock and ClassrBmon stock shall vote together as a single cldssre are no
cumulative voting rights.

Holders of our Class A common stock are entitletetteive dividends when and if declared by our Badr
Directors out of funds legally available therefared pro rata with holders of our Class B commoglstsubject to any
statutory or contractual restrictions on the paynoémlividends and to any restrictions on the payneé dividends imposed by
the terms of any outstanding preferred stock.

Upon our dissolution or liquidation or the saleatifor substantially all of our assets, after pawtrie full of all
amounts required to be paid to creditors and tdtiders of preferred stock having liquidation prehces, if any, the holders
of our Class A common stock will be entitled toeie pro rata with holders olur Class B common stock our remaining a:
available for distribution.

Holders of our Class A common stock do not havepigive, subscription or conversion rights. OursSla
common stock is not convertible and there are demgtion or sinking fund provisions applicable to €lass A common
stock. Unless our Board of Directors determinegtise, we will issue all of our capital stock incertificated form.

Holders of approximately 2.8 million shares of @lass A common stock will have the right to requiseto register
the sales of their shares under the Securitiesuhcter the terms of agreements between us andttierh of these securities.
Class B Common Stock

All of our outstanding Class B common stock is heydBFI. Holders of our Class B common stock artitled to 10
votes for each share held of record on all mattebsnitted to a vote of stockholders. Except asratise provided by our
amended and restated certificate of incorporaticapplicable law, the holders of our Class A comratatk and Class B
common stock shall vote together as a single cldsse are no cumulative voting righ

96




TABLE OF CONTENTS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

Holders of our Class B common stock are entitlectteive dividends when and if declared by our Blad D
irectors out of funds legally available therefonel gro rata with holders of our Class A commonstsabject to any statutory
or contractual restrictions on the payment of divids and to any restrictions on the payment ofléivils imposed by the ter
of any outstanding preferred stock.

Upon our dissolution or liquidation or the saleatifor substantially all of our assets, after pawtrie full of all
amounts required to be paid to creditors and tdtiders of preferred stock having liquidation prehces, if any, the holders
of our Class B common stock will be entitled toeie pro rata with holders of our Class A commartktour remaining asst
available for distribution.

Holders of our Class B common stock do not havermgive or subscription rights. There are no redengr
sinking fund provisions applicable to our ClassdBncnon stock.

Each share of Class B common stock is convertitadmatime at the option of the holder into onershaf Class A
common stock. In addition, each share of ClassBmon stock will convert automatically into one shaf Class A common
stock upon any transfer, whether or not for vaéxeept for certain transfers by and among BFgffiiates and certain
Bendheim family members, as described in the antbadd restated certificate of incorporation. Oneedferred and
converted into Class A common stock, the ClassBraon stock will not be reissued. In addition, alhses of Class B
common stock will automatically convert to sharé€tass A common stock when the outstanding shafr€ass B common
stock and Class A common stock held by BFI, itfiafés and certain Bendheim family members, togetis less than 15% of
the total outstanding shares of Class A commorksaad Class B common stock, taken as a single.class

Holders of approximately 21.5 million shares of @lass B common stock, which includes shares of3ass B
common stock issued pursuant to the automatic eseeof a warrant on August 1, 2014, will have tightrto require us to
register the sales of their shares under the SexuAct, under the terms of agreements betweemdshe holders of these
securities.

Class B Common Stock Warrant

On August 1, 2014, a common stock purchase wafoatiie purchase of 386,750 shares of Class B camstazk,
held by BFI, was automatically exercised. BFI phiel exercise price of $11.83 per share on a cashkess, resulting in a net
issuance of 163,675 shares of Class B common stoBKI.

Preferred Stock

We do not have any preferred stock outstanding.Baard of Directors has the authority to issue abaf preferred
stock from time to time on terms it may determitoedivide shares of preferred stock into one orersaries and to fix the
designations, preferences, privileges, and reftnistof preferred stock, including dividend rightenversion rights, voting
rights, terms of redemption, liquidation prefereraiaking fund terms, and the number of sharestitating any series or the
designation of any series to the fullest extentrpiéed by the General Corporation Law of the StdtBelaware. The issuance
of our preferred stock could have the effect ofrdasing the trading price of our Class A commoglsteestricting dividends
on our capital stock, diluting the voting poweroefr Class A common stock, impairing the liquidatiaghts of our capital
stock, or delaying or preventing a change in comtféthe Company.

Dividends

We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends tadleo$ of our Class A and Class B common stock oatséts
legally available for this purpose. In July 2014 declared a $0.10 per share dividend to holdersoaird as of September 3,
2014 of our Class A and Class B common stock, gayabptember 24, 2014. Our future ability to payd&nds will depend
upon our results of operations, financial conditicapital requirements, our ability to obtain furfidsn our subsidiaries and
other factors that our Board of Directors deemavaht. Additionally, the terms of our current amy &uture agreements
governing our indebtedness could limit our abitdypay dividends or make other distributio
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9. Stock Option Plan

On March 12, 2008, our Board of Directors and shottters adopted the 2008 Incentive Plan (the “IticerPlan”).
The Incentive Plan provides directors, officersptoyiees and consultants to the Company with oppii#s to purchase
common stock pursuant to options that may be gdamated receive grants of restricted stock and atteak-based awards
granted, from time to time by the Board of Direstor a committee approved by the Board. The IneerRian provides for
grants of stock options, stock awards and othesritices for up to 6,630,000 shares. There werel5%628 Class A shares
available for grant pursuant to the Incentive Rlaof June 30, 2014.

On February 26, 2009 and April 29, 2013, PAHC's @ensation Committee awarded stock options withxanctse
price of $11.83 per share, pursuant to the IncerRian. In connection with the grants, we obtaihéd party valuation repor
and determined that the exercise price per shasenatless than the fair value of the common stidke grant date. The
weighted-average grant-date fair value of stockoogtwas $0.99. The awards granted were non-gedlifiock options that
vested at various dates through March 1, 2014.cptiens expire February 28, 2019. All stock optians exercisable for
Class A common stock.

The Company recognizes compensation expense faptiens over the vesting period in selling, geharal
administrative expenses. As of June 30, 2014 etheis no unrecognized compensation expense.

Weighteo-
Average
Exercise Price

Options Shares Per Share
Outstanding, June 30, 20 1,498,38! $ 11.8:
Grantec — —
Exercisec — —
Forfeited or expire: — —
Outstanding, June 30, 20 1,498,38! $ 11.8:¢
Exercisable, June 30, 20 1,498,38I $ 11.8¢

All options were fully vested and exercisable aieJ80, 2014, including 374,595 shares that vesteidgifiscal year
2014. Outstanding and exercisable options at Jan2®.4 , had a $15,164 aggregate intrinsic vdlased on the market price
of Phibro stock as of that date, less the exemise.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricingehfor determining the fair value of option gmarthe Black-
Scholes model required several assumptions inaydin

2013
Risk-free rate of retur 2.70%
Expected life 3.0to 7.5 year
Expected volatility 35%-50%
Expected dividend yiel 0.00%

The risk-free rate of return is based on U.S. treamtes as of the grant date. The expecteddifmsed on historical
turnover rates by employee classification. Expegtddtility is estimated based on implied volayiland a comparison to
similar publicly traded companies in similar indiess. At the dates of the grants, the expectedldid yield assumed the
Company would not pay dividends for the expectfeddf the options.

10. Related Party Transactions
The Mayflower term loan and the BFI term loan weslated party transactions.

Certain relatives of Mr. Bendheim provided servitess as employees or consultants and receiveegajg
compensation and benefits of approximately $1,$8458 and $1,655 for 2014, 2013 and 2012, resfyt
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11. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains a noncontributory defineceliepension plan for all domestic nonunion empkeye
employed on or prior to December 31, 2013 , whotroegain requirements of age, length of serviag faours worked per
year. Plan benefits are based upon years of seamid@verage compensation, as defined. The measnrelaes for the

pension plan were as of June 30, 2014, 2013 an@. 201
Changes in the projected benefit obligation, plssets and funded status were:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013
Change in projected benefit obligatior

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $46,56¢ $46,81:
Service cos 2,457 2,72¢
Interest cos 2,33 2,05¢
Benefits paic (1,097) (79€)
Actuarial (gain) los: 7,33 (4,237)
Projected benefit obligation at end of y $57,59¢ $46,56¢
For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013
Change in plan asset

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $ 31,50: $ 27,85¢
Actual return on plan asse 4,33¢ 1,88¢
Employer contribution 4,832 2,55¢
Benefits paic (1,097) (79€)
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 39,58: $ 31,50:
Funded status at end of year $ (18,019 $ (15,069

The funded status is included in other liabilitieshe consolidated balance sheets. At June 33 a6d 2013, the

accumulated benefit obligation was $51,980 and8B8L,, respectively.

The Company expects to contribute approximatel@ 6o the pension plan during 2015. We seek totaa an
asset balance that meets the long-term fundingrezgents identified by actuarial projections wtaleo satisfying ERISA

fiduciary responsibilities.
Accumulated other comprehensive (income) lossedl&t the pension plan was:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013

Balance at beginning of peri $12,24( $17,63(
Amortization of net actuarial loss (gain) and pservice cost (909) (1,40%)
Current period net actuarial loss (ge 5,32¢ (3,989
Net change 4,42: (5,390
Balance at end of peric $16,66¢ $12,24(

Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial (gagd and prior service costs will be approximatdly228 during

2015.
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Net periodic pension expense was:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012
Service co—benefits earned during the ye $ 2,457 $ 2,72¢ $ 2,09¢
Interest cost on benefit obligatit 2,33¢ 2,05¢ 1,957
Expected return on plan ass (2,339 (2,136 (2,040
Amortization of net actuarial loss and prior seevi

costs 904 1,40¢ 251
Net periodic pension expen $ 3,36( $ 4,05¢ $ 2,261

Significant actuarial assumptions for the plan were

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012

Discount rate for service and inter 5.0% 4.4% 5.5%
Expected rate of return on plan as: 7.0% 7.5% 7.5%
Rate of compensation incree 3.0%—4.5% 3.0%-4.5% 3.0%4.5%
Discount rate for ye-end benefit obligatio 4.5% 5.0% 4.4%

The plan used the Aon Hewitt AA Bond Universe &®achmark for its discount rate as of June 30, 22043 and
2012. The discount rate is determined by matchiegoension plan’s timing and the amount of expecéssth outflows to a
bond yield curve constructed from a population é-#ated corporate bond issues which are generalfiyaallable and have at
least $250 million par value outstanding. From,ttfie discount rate that results in the same ptesgue is calculated.

Estimated future benefit payments, including besefitributable to future service, are:

For the Years Ended June 3(

2015 $ 1,42:
2016 1,65¢
2017 1,891
2018 2,11¢
2019 2,36z
202(-2024 15,97

The plan’s target asset allocations for 2015 aeditkighted-average asset allocation of plan aaset$ June 30,
2014 and 2013 are:

Target
Allocation Percentage of Plan Asset
For the years ended June 3 2015 2014 2013
Debt securitie: 10%—35% 20% 25%
Equity securities 20%-50% 35% 70%
Global asset allocation/risk pari@i) 20%—40% 35% _
Other 0%—-25% 10% 5%

(1) The global asset allocation/risk parity categorysists of a variety of asset classes includingnbtitimited to, global
bonds, global equities, real estate, commoditielsadpha only strategie

The expected long-term rate of return for the datal assets is generally based on the plan&t ass. In
determining the rate to use, we consider the eggdong-term real returns on asset categories ctpens for inflation,
estimates of the effect of active management ahdbhistorical returns.

The investment policy and strategy is to earn g kemm investment return sufficient to meet thagailons of the
plans, while assuming a moderate amount of riskder to maximize investment return. In order tbieee this goal, assets
are invested in a diversified portfolio consistfgequity securities, debt securities, and otheestments in a manner
consistent with ERIS’s fiduciary requirement:
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The fair values of the Company’s plan assets bgtasgegory were:

Fair Value Measurements Usinc

As of June 30, 201« Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalel $ 136 S — 3 — $ 13t
Commor-collective funds
Global large cap equitie — 9,90¢ — 9,90¢
Fixed income securitie — 3,93¢ — 3,93t
Global asset allocations/risk par — 5,80¢ — 5,80¢
Mutual funds
Global Equities 3,92¢ — — 3,92¢
Fixed income securitie 1,91: — — 1,91:
Global asset allocations/risk par 3,927 — — 3,927
Other
Fixed income securitie — — 2,007 2,007
Global asset allocations/risk par — — 3,95¢ 3,95¢
Other — — 4,07( 4,07(

$ 9,908 $19,647 $10,03: $ 39,58:

Fair Value Measurements Usinc

As of June 30, 201: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalel $ 581 $ 404 $ — $ 98t
Commoit-collective funds
Global large cap equitie 6,55¢ 4,747 — 11,29¢
Fixed income securitie — 6,73( — 6,73(

Mutual funds

Global small and m-cap equitie: 10,88" — — 10,88
Real estat 1,32( — — 1,32(
Other — — 28C 28(
$19,34! $11,87% $28C $ 31,50(

The table below provides a summary of the chanyései fair value of Level 3 assets:

Change in Fair Value Level 3 asset 2014 2013

Balance at beginning of peric $ 28C $ 45C
Redemption: 22 —
Purchase 9,77: 51
Change in fair valu (49 _(22))
Balance at end of peric $10,03: $ 28C

The following outlines the valuation methodologis®d to estimate the fair value of our pension pksets:

e Cash and cash equivalents are valued at $1 pel

»  Commor-collective funds are determined based on curremkeb@alues of the underlyirassets of the funt
« Mutual funds and foreign currency deposits are e@lusing quoted market prices in acimarkets; anc

*  For Level 3 managed assets, business appraiseassaggsbination of valuations and appraisal methagiek, as
well as a number of assumptions to create a prigelnbrokers evaluate. For Level 3 non-managedssse
pricing is provided by various sources, suclissuer or investment manag
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Our consolidated balance sheets include othelitiabiof $13,007 and $10,953 as of June 30, 2042913,
respectively, for other retirement benefits, inchgdsupplemental executive retirement benefitgrimdtional retirement plans
and other employee benefit plans. Contributionthése plans are generally deposited under fidutigry arrangements.
Expense under these plans was $3,832, $2,817 ah€i35®r 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

We provide a 401(k) retirement savings plan, undach United States employees may make a pre-tattibation
of up to the lesser of 60% of compensation or th&imum amount permitted under the U.S. InternaléRere Code. We make
a matching contribution equal to 100% of the fir% of an employee’s contribution and make a matchantribution equal to
50% of the next 5% of an employee’s contributiomdoyees hired on or after January 1, 2014, recziven-elective
Company contribution of 3% and are eligible to reeen additional discretionary payment betweenatb 4%, depending on
age and years of service, provided that such patgmemply with mandatory non-discrimination testiRgrticipants are fully
vested in employer contributions after two yearseafice. Our contribution expense was $1,281,&lahd $1,010 in 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

12. Income Taxes
Income (loss) before income taxes was:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012

Domestic $ (26,22¢) $ (6,587) $ (10,00%)
Foreign 32,53¢ 24,42¢ 23,11¢
Income (loss) before income ta» $ 6,30¢ $17,84¢ $ 13,11/

Components of the provision for income taxes were:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012
Current provision (benefit
Federa $ (679 $ — $ 66
State and loce (26¢) 391 21¢
Foreign 9,087 4,487 7,55¢
Total current provisiol 8,14¢ 4,87¢ 7,84(
Deferred provision (benefit
Federa (1,637 (12,160 (6,282)
State and loce (1,879 (61€) (1,279
Foreign 96€ (1,209 (290)
Change in valuation allowar—domestic 3,50¢ 1,70¢ 7,557
Change in valuation allowar—foreign 32¢ 35E (1,4172)
Total deferred provisio 1,28¢ (11,92 (1,702)
Provision (benefit) for income tax $ 9,43t $ (7,049 $ 6,13¢
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Reconciliations of the Federal statutory rate ®n@ompany’s effective tax rate were:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012
Federal income tax ra 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State and local taxes, net of federal income téect (0.9 14 11
Foreign tax rate differential, and change in foneig

valuation allowanc (91.0 (319 (33.0
Foreign withholding ta: 36.5 1.4 2.C
Change in federal valuation allowar 43.€ 7.8 47.¢
OGR acquisition adjustme — (50.7) —
Change in unrecognized tax bene (34.9 54 8.2
Taxable income not recorded on boi — 0.€ 2.4
Repatriation of foreign earning 138.7 — —
Permanent item 26.1 (7.9) (16.7)
Other _ B9 (1.1 (0.9
Effective tax rate 149.6% (39.5% 46.£%

We have not provided for United States or additiéoeign taxes on approximately $93,622 of undistted
earnings of foreign subsidiaries, which earninggehaeen or are intended to be reinvested. It iprauticable at this time to
determine the amount of income tax liability thatul result should such earnings be repatriatede3 are not provided for
foreign currency translation adjustments relatmghvestments in international subsidiaries thditlvd held indefinitely.

We assert our intention to indefinitely reinvegteign earnings outside of the United States. Du20g4, we
reviewed the ongoing cash needs of our foreignidiasies and determined $25,000 was not needeckfiovestment in our
Israel subsidiary. Based on this review, we chargedndefinite reinvestment assertion solely wébpect to those earnings,
and recorded $3,160 of foreign withholding taxethim provision for income taxes. Our Israel sulasidpaid a $25,000
dividend to Phibro in 2014.

The tax effects of significant temporary differes¢lat comprise deferred tax assets and liabiktie®:

As of June 3C 2014 2013
Deferred tax asset
Employee related accruz $ 12,417 $ 10,70¢
Environmental remediatio 2,30¢ 2,34¢
Net operating loss carry forwa—domestic 19,18 18,79(
Net operating loss carry forwa—foreign 8,72¢ 9,86(
Other 9,54( 8,41:
52,17t 50,12(
Valuation allowanct (32,897 (27,759
19,28: 22,367
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible a: (13,42 (14,645
Unrealized foreign exchange ga (4,680 (4,827)
Other (132) (579)
(18,239 (20,04%)
Net deferred tax asset (liabilit $ 1,04 $ 2,32
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Deferred taxes are included in the consolidatedrtza sheets as follows:

As of June 3C 2014 2013

Prepaid expenses and other current a: $ 3,24: $ 2,29¢
Accrued expenses and other current liabili (1,626 (1,739
Other asset 3,48¢ 4,75k
Other liabilities (4,05¢) (2,995

$ 1,04¢ $ 2,32

The authoritative guidance for accounting for ineotaxes requires that a valuation allowance békstt@d when it
is “more likely than not” that all or a portion tife deferred tax assets will not be realized. dlible positive and negative
evidence are required to be considered, includiognapany’s performance, the market environmenthickwthe company
operates, the utilization of past tax credits, Emgith of carryback and carryforward periods. Tatharitative guidance further
states that where there is negative evidence sicbraulative losses in recent years, concludingahaluation allowance is
not required is problematic. Therefore, cumulatosses weigh heavily in the overall assessment.

Management has determined that it is not moreylikgn not that the Company would be able to @titiertain
deferred tax assets. This conclusion was reachedodeumulative losses recognized by the Compadycartain subsidiaries

in preceding years. Management intends to maimtaialuatiorallowance until sufficient positive evidence exigisupport it
reversal.

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was

As of June 3C 2014 2013 2012

Balance at beginning of peric $27,75: $36,76: $30,61¢
Change in valuation allowan: 5,13¢ 2,05¢ 6,14¢
Permanent adjustment for Other Comprehensive Inc — (2,01¢) —
OGR acquisition adjustmen — (9,059 —
Balance at end of peric $32,89: $27,75! $36,76¢

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assetsf dsine 30, 2014 , includes $ 27,355 related toedbim
jurisdictions and $5,537 related to foreign jurcsidins.

The change in valuation allowance for the year drlime 30, 2013 , included a reversal of $9,05&hfation
allowance previously established against the Coryipateferred tax assets in the United States. &hersal was required to
offset deferred tax liabilities established as pathe OGR acquisition related to acquired amaltie intangible assets.

The Company has domestic federal net operatingciisy forwards of approximately $ 43,872 that exj 2027
through 2034, state net operating loss carry fodwaf approximately $73,939 that expire over vaipariods beginning in
2014 and foreign net operating loss carry forwarfdspproximately $26,456 that expire over varioagqds beginning in
2014.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofniinrecognized tax benefits (‘UTB”) is as follows

As of June 3C 2014 2013 2012
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of

period $12,26: $ 6,56 $6,18(
Additions based on tax positions related to prieniqus 1,27¢ 4,99¢ 21€
Additions based on tax positions related to theesur

period 1,03¢ 404 64¢€
Reductions related to settlements with tax auties (2,215 — —
Reductions due to lapse of statute of limitati (5,157) — —
Exchange effec 21¢ 29¢€ (477
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of pel $ 7.4 $12,26: $ 6,56¢

The entire liability for UTB relates to unrecognilzeax positions that, if recognized, would afféet annual effective
tax rate. The entire amount of the liability for BTs classified as a long-term liability, except 1,218 that is classified as a
current liability at June 30, 2014. We believesitéasonably possible that a portion of the UTB tmayecognized during 2015
as a result of the lapse of the statute of linotzsi

We recognize interest and penalties associatedumitkrtain tax positions as a component of theigiav for
income taxes. We recognized interest and penatfiitee consolidated statements of operations o6 H)&5441 and $307 for
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Accrued inteaedtpenalties included in the consolidated balaheets were $1,344 and
$1,952 at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013, resplycti

Our Israel subsidiaries have been under examiné&tiofiscal years 2009 through 2012. In April 20tértain of
these subsidiaries reached a settlement to pati@uiincome taxes totaling $ 2,614 . As a resfithe settlement, we
recorded a reduction to our income tax provisiofs 672 and a reduction in previously unrecognizedbenefits of $2,215.
We expect the remaining open examinations to caieclithin the next twelve months, the effect of ebhis not expected to
be significant to our consolidated financial stages. We have no open examinations that we beli®igd result in a materi
change to our liability for uncertain tax positions

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federal &adous U.S. state and international jurisdictiddar U.S. federal
and material U.S. state income tax returns hava blesed for periods through June 30, 2006. Inctaxeeturns for our
significant foreign subsidiaries are closed throtlghfollowing periods:

. In Brazil, through December 31, 20

. In Israel, through June 30, 2009 or June 30, &
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13. Commitments and Contingencie:

Leases

We lease land and office, warehouse and manufagtequipment and facilities for minimum annual edsitplus
certain cost escalations. We record rent expensesbraight line basis over the term of the leAsdune 30, 2014 , we had the
following future minimum lease commitments:

Non-
cancellable
Capital operating
For the Years Ended June 3( leases leases
2015 $ 81 $ 4,48¢
2016 21 4,03:
2017 8 3,69¢
2018 — 3,05¢
2019 — 2,641
Thereaftel — 4,66¢
Total minimum lease paymer $11C $ 22,58
Amounts representing intere (16)
Present value of minimum lease payme $ 9

Rent expense under operating leases was $6,95B45&nd $6,085 for 2014, 2013 and 2012, respéytive

Environmenta

Our operations and properties are subject to extemsderal, state, local and foreign laws and le&tipns, including
those governing pollution; protection of the enmiment; the use, management, and release of hazamtterials, substances
and wastes; air emissions; greenhouse gas emisaiates use, supply and discharges; the investigatnd remediation of
contamination; the manufacture, distribution, aalé ®f regulated materials, including pesticidas;itmporting, exporting and
transportation of products; and the health andigafeour employees (collectively, “Environmentaws”). As such, the natu
of our current and former operations exposes tisetoisk of claims with respect to such mattersluding fines, penalties, and
remediation obligations that may be imposed by lagty authorities. Under certain circumstancesnvight be required to
curtail operations until a particular problem ismeglied. Known costs and expenses under Environirestss incidental to
ongoing operations, including the cost of litigatjproceedings relating to environmental matters ganerally included within
operating results. Potential costs and expensesatsaybe incurred in connection with the repainpgrade of facilities to me
existing or new requirements under Environmentavd.ar to investigate or remediate potential or alotentamination and
from time to time we establish reserves for suatit@mplated investigation and remediation costsnémy instances, the
ultimate costs under Environmental Laws and the ariod during which such costs are likely tor®irred are difficult to
predict.

While we believe that our operations are curreimtlsnaterial compliance with Environmental Laws, nave, from
time to time, received notices of violation fromvgonmental authorities, and have been involvedvihar criminal action for
such violations. Additionally, at various sitesy asubsidiaries are engaged in continuing investgatemediation and/or
monitoring efforts to address contamination as$ediaith historic operations of the sites. We dewatnsiderable resources
complying with Environmental Laws and managing emwinental liabilities. We have developed programisléntify
requirements under, and maintain compliance withirenmental Laws; however, we cannot predict wightainty the effect ¢
increased and more stringent regulation on ouratjwers, future capital expenditure requirementshercost of compliance.

The nature of our current and former operation®egp us to the risk of claims with respect to emritental matter
and we cannot assure we will not incur materiatxaad liabilities in connection with such clairBssed upon our experience
to date, we believe that the future cost of conmakawith
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existing Environmental Laws, and liabilities ford#wn environmental claims pursuant to such Enviramald_aws, will not
have a material adverse effect on our financiaitjpos results of operations, cash flows or liqtydi

We, our subsidiary C.P. Chemicals, Inc. (“CP”) atider defendants reached a phased settlement Wwétr@n
U.S.A. Inc. (“Chevron”), and a Settlement Agreemamdl Consent Order (the “Consent Order”) was filed entered by the
United States District Court for the District of Wdersey (the “Court”), resolving a 1997 compldiled by Chevron. The
complaint alleged that the operations of CP aséwaren, New Jersey plant affected adjoining ptgperned by Chevron ar
we were also responsible to Chevron. Pursuanet€tinsent Order, CP, the Company and co-defendsyady Vulcan Corp.
(“Vulcan™), through an entity known as North Fididtension, LLC (“NFE”), acquired a portion of théa&/ron property. NFE
will proceed with any required investigation anchegliation of the acquired property and also assuesabnsibility for
certain types of environmental conditions (if trexyst) on the portion of the property retained he@on. We (together with
CP) and Vulcan will each be responsible for 50%hefinvestigation and remediation costs, whichtatge paid by us directly
or through NFE. We believe that insurance recosesi#l be available to offset some of those coatmther defendant also
made a $175 contribution toward the remediatioriscmsbe incurred by NFE. Chevron retained resmlitgifor further
investigation and remediation of certain identiferd/ironmental conditions on the portion of thegandy retained by it, as we
as in one area of the property acquired by NFE.

The EPA is investigating and planning for the reiagon of offsite contaminated groundwater that hagrated
from the Omega Chemical Corporation Superfund S@enega Chemical Site”), which is upgradient of litbi Tech’s Santa
Fe Springs, California facility. The EPA has nan®dbro-Tech and certain other subsidiaries of PAds@otentially
responsible parties (“PRPs”) due to groundwatetamamation from Phibro-Tech’s Santa Fe Springslitgdhat has allegedly
commingled with contaminated groundwater from threeQa Chemical Site. In September 2012, the EPAiexbti
approximately 140 PRPs, including Phibro-Tech dmddther subsidiaries, that they have been idedtds potentially
responsible for remedial action for the groundwateme affected by the Omega Chemical Site ané&RA oversight and
response costs. Phibro-Tech contends that grouedeamtamination at its site is due to historiga¢@tions that pre-date
Phibro-Tech and/or contaminated groundwater thainhigrated from upgradient properties. In addit®spccessor to a prior
owner of the Phibro-Tech site has asserted that®Ahtl PhibroFech are obligated to provide indemnification fsrpotentia
liability and defense costs relating to the grouathw plume affected by the Omega Chemical SitebrBHiech has vigorously
contested this position and has asserted thatutteessor to the prior owner is required to indeynRifibro-Tech for its
potential liability and defense costs. Furthermaragarby property owner has filed a complainh@ $uperior Court of the
State of California against many of the PRPs atlsgassociated with the groundwater plume affetiethe Omega Chemical
Site (including Phibro-Tech) for alleged contamioatof groundwater underneath its property; a grolpompanies that sent
chemicals to the Omega Chemical Site for procesaimgrecycling has filed a complaint under CERChAlie United States
District Court for the Central District of Califaaagainst many of the PRPs allegedly associatddtihe groundwater plume
affected by the Omega Chemical Site (including Riibech) for contribution toward past and futuretscassociated with the
investigation and remediation of the groundwaten# affected by the Omega Chemical Site; and #raesgroup of
companies has served Phibro-Tech with a NoticendBgerment and Intent to Sue Pursuant to RCRA8(a)1)(B)
seeking to abate alleged imminent and substamiddmgerment to health or the environment resuftiog the lack of
adequate offsite monitoring and groundwater sooocgrol associated with former and/or continuingmpions at Phibro-
Tech'’s Santa Fe Springs facility. Due to the ongaiature of the EPA’s investigation and Phibro-Tedispute with the prior
owner’s successor, at this time we cannot preditt any degree of certainty what, if any, liabilRhibro-Tech or the other
subsidiaries may ultimately have for investigatimmediation and the EPA oversight and responss essociated with the
affected groundwater plume.

Based upon information available, to the extenhstasts can be estimated with reasonable certaigtgstimated
the cost for complying with the NFE Consent Orded for further investigation and remediation ofritifed soil and
groundwater problems at operating sites, closed sihd thirdgarty sites, and closure costs for closed sitelsetapproximate
$7,273 and $8,292 at June 30, 2014 and 2
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respectively, which is included in current and lgagn liabilities on the consolidated balance sheldbwever, future events,
such as new information, changes in existing Emvitental Laws or their interpretation, and more wgs enforcement
policies of regulatory agencies, may give riseddiional expenditures or liabilities that could thaterial. For all purposes of
the discussion under this caption and elsewhetf@sreport, it should be noted that we take and:hiaken the position that
neither PAHC nor any of our subsidiaries is liafloleenvironmental or other claims made againstammore of our other
subsidiaries or for which any of such other sulasids may ultimately be responsible.

Claims and Litigation

During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, we recedraz$5,350 loss in our consolidated statemenpeifations on
the insurance claim previously recorded as an alss2010, certain customers claimed damages topbaeltry resulting from
the use of one of our animal health products. Wiewed we were entitled to coverage for the clairdathages under our
insurance policies, above any applicable sedfired retention or deductible. Our insuranceiearefused to cover the damay
claimed and denied coverage. We instituted a lag@bn to enforce our rights under the policiesibutune 2014 the trial cot
ruled against us. We have appealed the trial codetision. In July 2014, we reached settlemertts avid made payments to
our customers for their claims in amounts approxatyaequal to the liability previously accrued.

PAHC and its subsidiaries are party to a numbetais and lawsuits arising out of the normal cewkbusiness
including product liabilities, payment disputes gymvernmental regulation. Certain of these actg@ek damages in various
amounts. In many cases, such claims are coveratsbsance. We believe that none of the claims adjpgy lawsuits, either
individually or in the aggregate, will have a mékadverse effect on our financial position, résof operations, cash flows
liquidity.

Employment and Severance Agreem

We have entered into employment agreements withioegxecutive management and other employees velpiebify
severance benefits of up to 15 months of the eneglgycompensation.

14. Derivatives

We monitor our exposure to commodity prices, irgerates and foreign currency exchange rates, sederivatives
to manage certain of these risks. We designateatents as a hedge of a forecasted transactiohtbewariability of the cash
flows to be received or paid in the future relai®a recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedyée record the portion of
the changes in the expected cash flows relatedgoagnized asset or liability (the effective panji in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss). As the hedged itemalized, we report the gain or loss included icuatulated other
comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidatetgstants of operations on the same line as the datira. We immediately
recognize in the consolidated statements of ogersiin the same line as the hedged item, the poofithe changes in fair
value of derivatives used as cash flow hedgesshait offset by changes in the expected cash fleleded to a recognized
asset or liability (the ineffective portion).

We routinely assess whether the derivatives usbedge transactions are effective. If we deterraiderivative
ceases to be an effective hedge, we discontinugeh&ctounting, and recognize in the consolidaitestents of operations,
the period the derivative no longer qualifies d&dge, any gains or losses on the derivative.

We record derivatives at fair value in prepaid eges and other current assets in the consolidaledde sheets. V'
determine the fair value of derivative instrumevaised upon pricing models using observable manketts for these types of
financial instruments (level 2 inputs per ASC 8:
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At June 30, 2014, significant outstanding derixediemployed to manage market risk and designatedsh flow
hedges were:

Notional Fair value as of June 30
amount at
Instrument Hedge June 30, 201« 2014 2013
Options Brazilian Real call: R$ 78,001 $43z2 $ 36°
Options Brazilian Real put (R$ 78,000 (4€) (1,004

The unrecognized gains (losses) at June 30, 2&f4unrealized and will change depending on futtihange rates
until the underlying contracts mature. Of the $886inrecognized gains (losses) on derivative imsamts included in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)reg 30, 2014, we anticipate $386 of the currentvaliue would be
recorded in earnings within the next twelve monte. recognize gains (losses) on derivative instntsnas a component of
cost of goods sold when the hedged item is soldh@dge forecasted transactions for periods noteghieg the next twenty-
four months.

15. Fair Value Measurements

In assessing the fair value of financial instrurseattJune 30, 2014 and 2013, we used a varietyetfods and
assumptions which were based on estimates of meokelitions and risks existing at the time.
Current Assets and Liabilities

We consider the carrying amounts of current assedscurrent liabilities, except the current portaiong-term
debt, to be representative of their fair value bseaof the current nature of these items.
Letters of Credi

We obtain letters of credit in connection with eémtregulatory and insurance obligations, invenfauychases and
other contractual obligations. The contract valofethe letters of credit at June 30, 2014 and 2048re $17,140 and $14,954
respectively. The carrying values of these letbérsredit are considered to be representativeaeif tair values because of the
nature of the instruments.

Long Term Deb

We estimated the fair value of the Term B Loan #redSenior Notes based on quoted broker pricesl(®inputs
per ASC 820) and the fair values of the term Idzersed on quoted yields for the Senior Notes whietrevgimilar in structure,
maturity and interest rate (level 2 inputs per ASD).

As of June 3C 2014 2013
Fair values

Term B Loan $ 289,63¢ $ —
Senior notes due July 1, 20 — 322,50(
Term loan payable to Mayflower due December 3162 — 26,96¢
Term loan payable to BFI due August 1, 2( — 10,64«

16. Business Segment

The Animal Health segment manufactures and magketducts for the poultry, swine, cattle, dairy, aquiture and
ethanol markets. The business includes net sale®dicated feed additives and other related preducitritional specialty
products and vaccines. The Mineral Nutrition segnmesnufactures and markets trace minerals for altibe¢ swine, poultry
and pet food markets. The Performance Productsesigmanufactures and markets a variety of prodoctsse in the
personal care, automotive, industrial chemical @mehical catalyst industrie
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We evaluate performance and allocate resourcesl lmasthe Animal Health, Mineral Nutrition and Perfance
Products segments. Certain of our costs and amget®ot directly attributable to these segmentsdd/aot allocate such items
to the principal segments because they are nottosedhluate their operating results or financ@difion. Corporate costs
include the departmental operating costs of thedo&Directors, the Chairman, President and ChEiefcutive Officer, the
Chief Operating Officer, the Chief Financial Officéhe Senior Vice President and General CounselSenior Vice President
of Human Resources, the Chief Information Officed ¢he Executive Vice President of Corporate Sgrat€osts include the
executives and their staffs and include compensatial benefits, outside services, professionaldedffice space. Assets
include cash and cash equivalents, debt issue apndtsertain other assets.

We evaluate performance of our segments based justéd EBITDA. We define Adjusted EBITDA as EBITDA
plus (a) (income) loss from, and disposal of, distwed operations, (b) other expense or less aticeme, as separately
reported on our consolidated statements of opestiacluding foreign currency gains and losseslass on extinguishment
of debt, and (c) certain items that we considdreainusual or norecurring. We define EBITDA as net income plusrieres
expense, net, (ii) provision for income taxes sslbenefit for income taxes and (iii) depreciato amortization.

The accounting policies of our segments are theesgsrthose described in the summary of signifiaaobunting
policies included herein.

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012
Net sales
Animal Health $ 431,05. $ 384,94: $ 375,16
Mineral Nutrition 201,59¢ 203,16 210,09:
Performance Produc 59,26: 65,04 68,84

$ 691,91 $ 653,15: $ 654,10:

Adjusted EBITDA

Animal Health $ 100,28( $ 82,991 $ 70,45¢
Mineral Nutrition 11,63¢ 12,06¢ 13,00
Performance Produc 4,62¢ 2,927 5,13:
Corporate (25,94%) (22,239 (21,749

$ 90597 §$ 75,75¢ $ 66,85:

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to income before
income taxes

Adjusted EBITDA $ 90,597 $ 75,75« $ 66,85:
Depreciation and amortizatic (21,459 (19,029 (17,52))
Loss on insurance clai (5,350 — —
Interest expense, n (32,967) (35,629 (35,419
Foreign currency gains (losses), (1,759 (3,109 (1,197
Loss on extinguishment of de (22,777) — —
Other income (expense), r — (152) 40(
Income before income tax $ 6308 §$§ 17,84 $ 13,11«
As of June 3C 2014 2013
Identifiable assets
Animal Health $ 361,37t $ 329,32
Mineral Nutrition 57,46( 64,71¢
Performance Produc 23,42¢ 21,23
Corporate 30,05¢ 58,86

$ 472,32 $ 474,14.
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The Animal Health segment includes all goodwilleTAnimal Health segment includes advances to arestment
in equity method investee of $5,140 and $ 4,73dfdsine 30, 2014 and 201@spectively. The Performance Products seg
includes an investment in equity method investe®4d® and $275 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, ridsglgcCorporate
includes all cash and cash equivalents.

During our fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2@&3reorganized our reportable segments for findnefporting tc
better align them with how we currently review ogierg results for purposes of allocating resoueses managing
performance. We created two new reportable segnifet®\nimal Health segment and the Mineral Nuritsegment, and
eliminated the Animal Health & Nutrition (AH&N) segent. The Animal Heath segment consists of thenegsi units within
the former AH&N segment, excluding the Mineral Nitin business unit, which is now a separate rejdetsegment. In
accordance with ASC 288egment Reportingve have reclassified all amounts to conform tormw reportable segment
presentation.

17. Geographic Information

The following is information about our geographjeecations. Information is attributed to the geoyiamreas based
on the locations of our subsidiaries.

For the Years Ended June 3( 2014 2013 2012
Net sales
United State: $ 435,41 $ 414,76t $ 424,37:
Israel 89,73¢ 93,24¢ 101,30:
Latin America and Canac 84,77t 68,57 61,407
Europe and Africi 38,56 32,50: 30,08
Asia/Pacific 43,42: 44,05¢ 36,93

$ 691,91 $ 653,15: $ 654,10:

As of June 3C 2014 2013
Property, plant and equipment, net
United State: $ 40,92¢ $ 40,60
Israel 33,42¢ 30,83
Brazil 32,94¢ 30,98¢
Other 1,861 1,99¢

$ 109,15¢ $ 104,42:
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18. Selected Quarterly Results of Operations Data (Unalited)

The quarterly consolidated statement of operatinfosmation was prepared on the same basis asstamdd be read
in conjunction with, the audited consolidated fioi@h statements and related notes included herein.

Quarters Year
September 30 December 31 March 31, June 30, June 30,
For the Periods Endec 2013 2013 2014 2014 2014
(in thousands)
Net sales
Animal Health $ 101,17: $ 107,96t $107,80¢ $114,10f $431,05:
Mineral Nutrition 46,18¢ 50,63 49,90: 54,87¢ 201,59¢
Performance Produc 14,87: 14,14: 15,55¢ 14,69( 59,26:
Total net sale 162,22¢ 172,74: 173,26 183,67 691,91
Cost of goods sol 112,71t 121,58t 120,42! 129,41. 484,13¢
Gross profit 49,51 51,15¢ 52,84 54,26 207,77
Selling, general and administrative exper 33,11 34,13¢ 35,52( 41,20¢ 143,98:
Operating income (los! 16,391 17,01¢ 17,32: 13,057 63,794
Interest expens 8,77¢ 8,781 8,81( 6,70¢ 33,08:
Interest (income (44) (68) (66) 59 (119
Foreign currency (gains) losses, 64¢ 1,16t 27¢ (33%) 1,75:
Loss on extinguishment of de = — — 22,77 22,77
Income (loss) before income tay 7,014 7,13¢ 8,30: (16,149 6,30¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax 1,171 4,832 1,93¢ 1,49¢ 9,43¢
Net income (loss $ 5,84 $ 230 $ 6,37C $(17,64) $ (3,129
Net income per sha—basic and dilute: $ 0.1¢ $ 00¢ $ 021 $ (047) $ (0.10
Adjusted EBITDA
Animal Health $ 24,10 $ 2452. $ 2550¢ $ 26,14¢ $100,28(
Mineral Nutrition 2,46( 2,87¢ 2,801 3,491 11,63¢
Performance Produc 1,09¢ 1,10¢ 90¢€ 1,521 4,62¢€
Corporate (6,06%) (6,197) (6,774 (6,919) (25,949
Adjusted EBITDA $  21,59¢ $ 2231( $ 22,44 $ 24,24¢ $ 90,59
Quarters Year
September 30 December 31 March 31, June 30, June 30,
For the Periods Endec 2012 2012 2013 2013 2013
(in thousands)
Net sales
Animal Health $  96,12¢ $ 9423¢ $ 93,88: $100,69: $384,94:
Mineral Nutrition 49,79: 52,89: 51,75% 48,72¢ 203,16¢
Performance Produc 16,18¢ 17,03: 17,04t 14,77¢ 65,04
Total net sale 162,10t 164,15¢ 162,68! 164,20: 653,15:
Cost of goods sol 120,24( 120,97: 116,92 116,04! 474,18
Gross profit 41,86¢ 43,18¢ 45,75¢ 48,15¢ 178,96«
Selling, general and administrative exper 28,651 29,03( 31,29t 33,25 122,23:
Operating income (los! 13,20¢ 14,15¢ 14,46 14,90t 56,73:
Interest expens 8,89: 8,96¢ 8,901 9,00¢ 35,77
Interest (income (68) (14) (26) (34 (142)
Foreign currency (gains) losses, 16¢ 12¢ 83¢ 1,971 3,10¢
Other (income) expense, r (12 58 482 (377) 151
Income (loss) before income tay 4,22¢ 5,015 4,26¢ 4,33 17,84¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax 1,56¢ (7,05¢6) 86 (1,647 (7,049
Net income (loss $ 2,65¢ $ 12,077 $ 418 $ 597¢ $ 24,89
Net income per she-basic and dilute: $ 0.0¢ $ 04C $ 014 $ 02 $ 0.8
Adjusted EBITDA
Animal Health $ 20,10¢ $ 19,51¢ $ 20,33« $ 23,04« $ 82,991
Mineral Nutrition 2,69( 3,17¢ 3,43¢ 2,76¢ 12,06¢
Performance Produc 1,14¢ 1,82¢ 1,577 (1,627) 2,92
Corporate (6,039 (5,739 (5,930 (4,537) (22,239

Adjusted EBITDA $  17,90¢ $ 18,77¢ $ 1942( $ 19,65. $ 75,75«
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Item 9. Changesin and Disagreements with Accountants on Accountingnd Financial Disclosure

None.
[tem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedure

Management of the Company, with the participatibitsoChief Executive Officer and Chief Financiaffider,
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s distcontrols and procedures.

The Company’s disclosure controls and procedureslesigned to ensure information required to belalied by the
issuer in the reports it files or submits under$eeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedcirded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periodssjgd in the Commission’s rules and forms, arat $uch information is
accumulated and communicated to management ofdhg@ny, including its Chief Executive Officer anti€f Financial
Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding reaadrdisclosure.

Based on the evaluation, as of the end of the gedwered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, tleenpany’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offiamwncluded the Company’s disclosure controls andgmures were not
effective because of the material weaknesses iintennal control over financial reporting descdbeelow.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatibdeficiencies, in internal control over finariaieporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility a materiastatement of our annual or interim consolidatedrfcial statements will not
be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Based upon the evaluation, we have identified dfieWing material weaknesses in our internal cdstowver
financial reporting:

. We did not maintain effective internal controlsetusure processing and reporting of valid transastare
complete, accurate, and timely. Specifically, weehaot designed and implemented formal accountoligips
and procedures that define how transactions athedsusiness cycles should be initiated, recornpextessed
and reported and appropriately authorized and aegroT his material weakness resulted in audit adyjasts
with respect to the consolidated financial stateisér the year ended June 30, 2014, related teney
recognition, recording of inventory receipts aniddiparty manufacturing cost

. We did not maintain effective internal controls ptkee accounting for and disclosures of technicabanting
matters in the consolidated financial statemenecBically, we did not maintain a sufficient corapient of
resources with an appropriate level of accountimgvidedge, experience and training commensurate auith
structure and financial reporting requirementssThaterial weakness resulted in audit adjustmeletstified
with respect to the consolidated financial stateiséor the year ended June 30, 2014, related tbrd&bancing
costs and income tax disclosur

. We did not maintain effective internal controlstthestrict access to key financial systems androscto
appropriate users and ensure appropriate segregstauties is maintained. Certain personnel hagsxto
financial application, programs and data beyondtieaded to perform their individual job resporigibs and
without independent monitoring. In addition, cemtéihancial personnel had incompatible duties #ilmwed for
the creation, review and processing of certainnioi@ data without independent review and authtioma This
material weaknec<affects substantially all financial statement actel

Each of the material weaknesses described above result in a material misstatement of the anuahterim
consolidated financial statements that possiblyld/oot be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
Management's Report on Internal Controls over Finartial Reporting

The Annual Report on Form 10-K does not includegort of management ' s assessment regarding atteontrol
over financial reporting or an attestation repdrour independent registered public accounting filwe to a transition period
established by the rules of the SEC for newly publimpanies.
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Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

There have been no changes in our internal cootel financial reporting during the year ended J8®e2014, that
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenglly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting. We are currently
evaluating the controls and procedures we willglesind put in place to address the weaknesseshubsan “—Evaluation of
disclosure controls and procedures” and plan tdempnt appropriate measures as part of this effti¢. measures may
include additional staffing and other resourcesttengthen internal controls and financial repartin

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to our 2014 Proxy Statement tolds Wwith the
SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended Juhe2814.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Bssit@onduct and Ethics applicable to all officenrgadors and
employees, which is available on our website (&bwes.pahc.com ) under “Corporate Governance.”

Iltem 11. Executive Compensatior

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to our 2014 Proxy Statement talde With the
SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended Juhe2814.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement Related Stockholder Matter:

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to our 2014 Proxy Statement tolds Wwith the
SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended Juhe2814.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to our 2014 Proxy Statement talde With the
SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended Juhe2814.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to our 2014 Proxy Statement talde With the
SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended Juhe20814.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

We have filed the following documents as part @ #orm 10-K:

(1) Consolidated Financial Statemer

)
@)

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfinm

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Ifigears ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomihéofiscal years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 angl 201
Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2014 a8l 20

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&epsity (Deficit) for the fiscal years ended Juie 3014,
2013 and 2012

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Schedules: Non

The exhibits filed are listed in the Index to Extsbmmediately following the signature page oftAinnual
Report on Form 1-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdihnual
Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalfi®yundersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Phibro Animal Health Corporation

September 18, 2014 By: /s/ Jack C. Bendheim

Jack C. Bendheim
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10as been
signed by the following persons on behalf of thgigeant and in the capacities and on the datasatet.

Phibro Animal Health Corporation

September 18, 2014 By: /s/ Jack C. Bendheim

Jack C. Bendheim
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off

September 18, 2014 By: /s/ Richard G. Johnson

Richard G. Johnson
Chief Financial Office

September 18, 2014 By: /s/ Gerald K. Carlson

Gerald K. Carlson
Director and Chief Operating Offic:

September 18, 2014 By: /s/ Daniel M. Bendheim

Daniel M. Bendheim
Director and Executive Vice President,
Corporate Strateg

September 18, 2014 By: /s/ E. Thomas Corcoran

E. Thomas Corcoran
Director

September 18, 2014 By: /s/ Sam Gejdenson

Sam Gejdenson
Director

September 18, 2014 By: /s/ Ken Hanau

Ken Hanau
Director

September 18, 2014 By: /s/ Mary Lou Malanoski

Mary Lou Malanoski
Director

September 18, 2014 By: /s/ Carol A. Wrenn

Carol A. Wrenn
Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit 31.1 Chief Executive Office—Certification pursuant to Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200zSection 30:
Exhibit 31.Z Chief Financial Office—Certification pursuant to Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002zSection 30:
Exhibit 32.1’ Chief Executive Office—Certification pursuant to Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200zSection 90¢
Exhibit 32.2’ Chief Financial Office—Certification pursuant to Sarbai-Oxley Act of 200zSection 90¢

Exhibit 101.INS** XBRL Instance Documer

Exhibit 101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

Exhibit 101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
Exhibit 101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh
Exhibit 101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

Exhibit 101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

* This certification is deemed not filed for purposésection 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwidgjestt to the liability
of that section, nor shall it be deemed incorpatéte reference into any filing under the Securifies of 1933, as
amended, or the Exchange A

**  Furnished with this Annual Report on Form 10-K. duant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interadata files
are deemed not filed for purposes of sections 112af the Securities Act of 1933 and are deemediled for purposes
of section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Adi9#4.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Jack C. Bendheim, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended June 30, 2014 , of Phibro Anirdedlth
Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or aongtate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rralight of the circumstances under which suateshents were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered liy tbport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly
present in all material respects the financial dbor results of operations and cash flows ofréngistrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rulasl58e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatriabieformation relating to the registrant, inclog its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to usthgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in which
this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registatisclosure controls and procedures and presemtibis report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in thrgisteant’s internal control over financial repodifas defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) thatuoed during the registrant’s most recent fisagdrter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case mBanual report) that has materially affectedsaeasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @
over financial reporting, to the registrant’'s aoditand the audit committee of the registrant’stbad directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internalrobotser financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafect the registrant’s ability to record, procesgnmarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that itwes management or other employees who have disgmtirole in
the registrant’s internal control over financigboeting.

Dated: September 18,2014 /s/ Jack C. Bendheim

Jack C. Bendheim
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Richard G. Johnson, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended June 30, 2014 , of Phibro Anirdedlth
Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or aongtate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rralight of the circumstances under which suateshents were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered liy tbport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly
present in all material respects the financial dbor results of operations and cash flows ofréngistrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rulasl58e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatriabieformation relating to the registrant, inclog its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to usthgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in which
this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registatisclosure controls and procedures and presemtibis report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in thrgisteant’s internal control over financial repodifas defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) thatuoed during the registrant’s most recent fisagdrter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case mBanual report) that has materially affectedsaeasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @
over financial reporting, to the registrant’'s aoditand the audit committee of the registrant’stbad directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internalrobotser financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafect the registrant’s ability to record, procesgnmarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that itwes management or other employees who have disgmtirole in
the registrant’s internal control over financigboeting.

Dated: September 18,2014 /s/ Richard G. Johnson

Richard G. Johnson
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXL EY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002, each of the undersigned certifies thatpleisodic report
fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3¢r 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1884 that information

contained in this periodic report fairly preseimsall material respects, the financial conditiomd aesults of operations of the
issuer.

Dated: September 18,2014 /sl Jack C. Bendheim

Jack C. Bendheim
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off




EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXL EY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002, each of the undersigned certifies thatpleisodic report
fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3¢r 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1884 that information
contained in this periodic report fairly preseimsall material respects, the financial conditiomd aesults of operations of the

issuer.
Dated: September 18,2014 /s/ Richard G. Johnson

Richard G. Johnson
Chief Financial Office




